8.2019

International Journal: Interactive Mobile Technologies

Papers

Design and Use of a Mobile Application to Prevent Teachers' Absenteeism in a Higher Education Setting

Improved Direct Routing Approach for Mobile IP Systems

Quiz Tool Within Moodle and Blackboard Mobile Applications

User-Centred Design in Content Management System Development: The Case of EMasters

The Efficacy of MALL Instruction in Business English Learning

The Relationship between Segmentation and Question Location within Mobile Video Platforms for Enhancing the Ability of Recall

Fully Automated Classroom Attendance System

The Effect of Mobile Digital Content Applications Based on Gamification in the Development of Psychological Well-Being

Diagnosing Adoption to Mobile Learning

A Systematic Review of Tablet Technology in Mathematics Education

Short Papers

Mobile Application Based Modified Screening and Assessment Tools for Children with Autism

Digital Assessment Resources in Primary and Secondary School Classrooms: Teachers' Use and Perceptions

Table of Contents

Papers

Design and Use of a Mobile Application to Prevent Teachers' Absenteeism in a Higher Education Setting
Improved Direct Routing Approach for Mobile IP Systems
Quiz Tool Within Moodle and Blackboard Mobile Applications
User-Centred Design in Content Management System Development: The Case of EMasters 43 (Jelena Nakić, Antonija Burčul, Nikola Marangunić)
The Efficacy of MALL Instruction in Business English Learning
The Relationship between Segmentation and Question Location within Mobile Video Platforms for Enhancing the Ability of Recall
Fully Automated Classroom Attendance System
The Effect of Mobile Digital Content Applications Based on Gamification in the Development of Psychological Well-Being 107 (Waleed Salim Alhalafawy, Marwa Zaki Zaki)
Diagnosing Adoption to Mobile Learning
A Systematic Review of Tablet Technology in Mathematics Education
Short Papers
Mobile Application Based Modified Screening and Assessment Tools for Children with Autism
Digital Assessment Resources in Primary and Secondary School Classrooms: Teachers' Use and Perceptions

Design and Use of a Mobile Application to Prevent Teachers' Absenteeism in a Higher Education Setting

https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v13i08.10270

Suryaman Universitas Islam Raden Rahmat, Jawa Timur, Indonesia

Herri Mulyono ^(⊠) University of Muhammadiyah Prof. DR. Hamka, Jakarta, Indonesia hmulyono@uhamka.ac.id

Abstract—In this paper, we present a digital application developed to prevent teachers' absenteeism in a private university in Indonesia. In particular, we evaluated the development and the application of an Android-based attendance management system (AAMS) to monitor teachers' attendance and their teaching activity at a private university in the capital city of Jakarta, Indonesia. Adopting a design-based research approach, we observed the development procedure and interviewed three end-users of the application, i.e. teachers. The findings of the study revealed the potential use of AAMS as a digital tool to prevent absentee-ism among university teachers. The three main challenges were highlighted during the application of AAMS, including the processing time duration and system error, the reporting and analytics issues, and the input manipulation. Furthermore, a recommendation is offered on the basis of the findings.

Keywords—Digital application, attendance management system, teachers' absenteeism, mobile application

1 Introduction

Teacher absenteeism is generally viewed as a teacher's intentional or episodic absence from schoolwork [1], [2]. Teachers are said to be absent if the school administrators are not able to find them in the schools for any cause at the time of a random unannounced spot check [3]. With respect to the reason for teachers' absence, Sagie classified teacher absenteeism into either voluntary or involuntary on the basis of the reasons for their absence [4]. Voluntary absences are led by the teachers' direct willingness to not attend a teaching session at school [1]. This type of absenteeism may be a result of job dissatisfaction and a lack of commitment to the institution [5]. The latter is often caused by particular circumstances beyond the control of the teacher, such as illness or discretionary or other conditions such as marriage, mourning and administrative responsibilities [6]–[8].

A body of literature has reported the negative consequences of teacher absenteeism at school on the students' achievement, school management and school expenses, as

well as the school performance. A study conducted by Danteh, Yaboah, Sam and Monkah [9] in Kumasi, Ghana, for example, revealed that teacher absenteeism significantly lowers the students' performance in Basic Education Certificate Examination (BECE). Similarly, Miller, Murnane, and Willett [10] found that a substantial number of the absences are unauthorised, and a larger number of absences lead to significantly lower student achievement in a large urban school district in the northern part of the United States of America. Abayasekara and Arunatilake [11] also reported that student achievement is low in schools when the number of days of leave taken by the teachers is high. This was demonstrated using descriptive statistics which implied that the average number of teacher leave days was 15% of the total number of working school days.

In the context of developing countries, teacher absenteeism at schools has been a critical concern for the governments, educational bodies and, apparently, school administrators. A number of studies (i.e. Davies, 2018; Sabarwal & Sawdeh, 2018; Usman & Suryadarma, 2007) have found a high rate of teacher absences from their school itinerary. Iqbal, Muhammad, and Haider [15] investigated the causes of absenteeism among 100 public and private school teachers in Punjab, Pakistan. The results indicated that the rate of a public teacher's absence in the school was 54% per month, while that of the private teachers was 34%. Family reasons and sickness were observed to be the reasons for the absence of the public school teachers, while work dissatisfaction, job insecurity, and the work atmosphere were the reasons for the private teachers' absence in school. In addition, Mooij [16] conducted a longitudinal study in Pradesh, India, on the voluntary teacher absenteeism level. The findings revealed a high teacher absenteeism level because of poor infrastructural facilities, overcrowded classrooms, lack of motivation and inadequate training to deal with multi-lingual classes. The other reasons were related to the school context, such as the absence of rewards or incentives for the teachers to perform well.

More specifically in Indonesian school settings, McKenzie, Nugroho, Ozolins, McMillan, and Sumarto [17] carried out a large-scale study on the teacher absenteeism in Indonesian schools. The study was considered 880 primary and junior secondary schools across six regions—Java, Sulawesi, Sumatra, Kalimantan, Papua and Maluku, and Bali and Nusa Tenggara—including 8,300 teachers and 8,200 students. The researchers observed the classes and conducted interviews with the principals, teachers and district-level officials. They examined not only the teachers' chronic absence from school but also the teachers who, although present in school, did not attend a class or teach as scheduled. Unfortunately, the findings revealed that the teachers' truancy was generally higher in rural schools than in urban schools because the teachers worked at more than one institution and because of poor physical facilities. The truancy occurred over a loss of control from the district education office, school principals, as well as the students' parents or guardians. Moreover, the principal's contribution to the truancy was critical as they did not attend school themselves nor provided a positive role model to the teachers.

Many researchers have identified several factors contributing to teacher absenteeism, one of which concerns a teacher's low effort to attend class. In a recent study, Sabarwal and Jawdeh [12] explored the issue of teachers' low effort to maintain good

class attendance, particularly the concept of 'mental models' that lead to a teacher's absence in school. Examining the data of 16,000 teachers across developing countries such as Afghanistan, Argentina, Indonesia, Myanmar, Pakistan, Senegal, Tajikistan, and Tanzania (Zanzibar), these researchers found that teacher absenteeism was tolerable under certain conditions. The findings also suggested that many teachers considered the following types of absenteeism to be acceptable at school:

- When the prescribed curriculum had been completed
- · When the students were left with assignments to complete
- When the teacher was doing something useful for the society.

The study also showed that teachers in these countries believed that being assessed on the basis of the students' learning was sufficient to determine their performance. Sabarwal and Jawdeh [12] argue that teachers might not seem to increase this effort as they might not think they could or should do so. If teachers are enabled to identify their present levels of work as well as efforts to be "socially optimal and contextually justified, then they are less likely to increase effort in response to a change in the accountability and incentive structures" [12, p. 11].

The recent developments in the field of information and communication technology have offered alternative solutions for monitoring employees' attendance in particular organisations, particularly the teachers' attendance in schools (e.g. Duflo, Esther, Dupas, & Kremer, 2011; Ujan & Ismaili, 2011). Many researchers have suggested the use of an attendance management system (AMS), an alternative technology application developed to help an organisation manage manpower notes and analysis, day-today monitoring of attendance, maintenance of statutory registers, monitoring of leave records, calculation of overtime and transfer of the relevant information to the payroll system [20], [21]. AMSs can be generally categorised into four application types, namely manual systems, biometric systems, card-based systems, and e-commerce systems [22].

Baffoe [23] investigated a biometric AMS application called Rapid Application Development (RAD) in the rural educational institutions of Ghana. The findings showed that RAD provided the schools with an efficient way of generating reports and retrieving the attendance information of teachers in the rural districts. However, the application of a biometric system to manage the teachers' attendance can unfortunately raise a number of concerns. For example, for user enrolment, the users' fingerprints should meet the requirements of cleanliness, dryness, and a lack of scratches and/or swelling [24].

In addition to the AMS application, an Android-based e-commerce system has been considered an alternative that enables organisation managers to monitor not only the employees' attendance but also their efficiency [22]. Joshi, Shete, and Somani [25] evaluated an Android-based application for AMS for the advancement of institutional and educational systems in India. The proposed project was implemented in applications such as online study material, announcements of events and examinations, academic calendar, online attendance record, performance record, and even parent intimation system using Android applications. The findings of the study showed that the system helped the teachers to maintain their own attendance through a

smartphone and to monitor their students with respect to the students' assessments and attendance.

Bhattacharjee, Kundu, Raychaudhuri, and Chakraborty [26] introduced an AMS application compatible with all Android versions starting from 4.2 Jelly Bean. They connected the application to the college server so as to access and update the attendance over the college LAN. The application involved various items such as registration, courses and attendance for various purposes which shall be discussed later. The application allowed the addition of courses by the teacher and the addition of students to the respective courses. When a course was ready, it was visible in the selection area for marking attendance, checking the attendance percentage and even checking the date-wise attendance. After the app integration, the researchers found that the Android-based attendance application operated at a high level of efficiency. It appeared to be safe, easy and less time consuming. The app was user friendly and did not require the user to be close to the main system. Finally, the findings suggested that the storage, retrieval and evaluation of the users' data were performed with minimal errors and within the smallest-possible amount of time.

Investing in a system that keeps teachers present in the classroom should be considered as a priority for school managements, administrators and policymakers. A key part of this effort is to develop an appropriate school system which captures the daily attendance of the faculty members, generates faculty attendance reports and analytics, provides an absence notification system for the faculty members, chairperson and the dean, and includes an immediate communication system concerning the absences incurred [27]. The current study aimed at evaluating the development and application of an Android-based AMS (AAMS) to monitor teachers' attendance and their teaching activity at a private university in the capital city of Jakarta, Indonesia. To this end, the study documented the structure and the development process of AAMS and explored the perceptions of teachers towards the use of such an application to monitor their attendance and teaching activities.

2 Method

The current study was a part of a bigger project evaluating the role of technology to prevent teachers' absenteeism in higher education settings. In the study, we evaluated the development and application of AAMS to monitor teachers' attendance and their teaching activity at a private university in the capital city of Jakarta, Indonesia. To this end, the study documented the structure and the development process of AAMS and explored the perceptions of three teachers about the use of such an application to monitor their attendance and teaching activities in the classroom.

The study adopted a design-based research (DBR) approach to address the research objective. In educational research, Fishman, Penuel, Allen, Cheng, and Sabelli [28] argued that DBR allowed the researcher to design and test a particular innovation within real-world educational settings. The main objective of this research approach is to enable 'the impact of educational research and generate generalisable design principles' [29, p. 16]. To this end, in the current study, we worked closely with IT devel-

opers to gain the insights from the AAMS development procedure and observed the application of AAMS at a private university. We also explored the perception of three teachers as the end-users.

3 Narrative Development and Findings

The AAMS considered in the current study was an Android-based application developed to provide a system interface that monitors teacher attendance in classrooms. The interface system, later called U-Mobile, uses a client–server based model to allow engagement between clients and servers [30]–[33]. The system was developed using several tools, including MySQL server database, Apache, Android Apps Native and Application Programming Interface (API). U-Mobile was connected to a phone's GPS which limited the access of the application only to a particular position. This restricted the potential attempts by teachers to manipulate the data input.

To use U-Mobile, teachers were asked to download the application from Google Play Store and install it on their mobile phones. After the installation, the teachers were asked to log in to the application by using the usernames and passwords already given to them by the faculty administration. Figure 1 shows the login page and the welcome screen.



Fig. 1. Login page (left) and welcome screen (right)

U-Mobile features 12 menus, including attendance, teaching schedule, students under supervision (PA), examination schedule (exam), essay, supervisory schedule,

information, room, two next menus, chat and help desk (see Figure 2). Unfortunately, six of these twelve menus did not function well or did not work at all (e.g. users were unable to click on information, two next menus, chat and help desk).



Fig. 2. Screen menu page 1 (left) and screen menu page 2 (right)

Of these 12 menus, the attendance feature was used by the faculty administration to monitor both teachers and students. The feature required the teachers to complete three tasks: check students' attendance in the classroom, describe the topic being taught and save the data to the system (see Figure 3). In each teaching session, first, the teachers had to monitor their students' entry into the classroom and check their name in the application to mark their attendance. Teachers were also required to record the topics that they were teaching at the time and save them to the system. Teachers were counted as present in the class only if they completed these tasks and the save operation was successful.

	Meeting		
Class	Subject		
	Lecture		
Student's Number	Student's Name	Percentage	Present
Student's Number	Student's Name	Percentage	Present
Student's Number	Student's Name	Percentage	Present
Student's Number	Student's Name	Percentage	Present
Total of Students	Number of Student's Present		Number of Student's Absence
Торіс			
SAVE DATA			

Fig. 3. Attendance menu in U-Mobile

Technically, the U-Mobile application was user-friendly, allowing the end-users to operate the application at their ease. During the pilot, none of the participants reported any technical issues. Instead, they mentioned that the application screen used soft colours in the background which was comfortable for their eyes. They also reported that the icon menus with the accompanying texts provided them with information about how to navigate in the application.

U-Mobile was observed to effectively capture the daily attendance of teachers and record each of the teaching sessions on a day-to-day basis. The data inputs to the system by the teachers were stored directly to two databases: the academic bureau and the faculty administration bureau. This allowed immediate communication to the related parties in the bureaus concerning the absences incurred [27].

However, we identified three critical issues concerning the application, namely processing time duration and system error, reporting and analytics issues, and input manipulation. Each of the issues is discussed below:

3.1 Processing time and system error

The processing time required for the application to store the data into the central database at the faculty administration was considered acceptable. As mentioned earlier, the attendance feature in the application required the teachers to not only mark their attendance but also monitor their students' entry into the classroom. The student monitoring activity had to be performed one by one by checking the students' names in the application to mark their attendance. Note that each marking attempt required 3-7 s for the system to store it into the central database. For a class of 40 students, the

marking took approximately 3–7 min. The total time that the teachers spent to complete the tasks in the attendance menu ranged from 5 to 15 min depending on the speed of the Internet connection on the site.

All the participant teachers interviewed mentioned that tasks were frustrating because of a bad Internet connection on many sites across the faculty buildings. They also asserted that the marking menu icon frequently did not function well and displayed the message 'underdefined' (see Figure 4).



Fig. 4. System error in attendance feature

The effect of the long processing time and the system error was significant for the teachers. The teachers felt that monitoring students' attendance through the application reduced their teaching duration and thus affected their teaching plans. One of the teachers said:

'I tried several times to click on the menu, and it did not work at all. Obviously, this wasted my time. I had two teaching sessions of 100 min, and I spent more than 10 min only for this unsuccessful students' checking.' (Teacher B)

The teachers also reported the negative effect of the system error on their work performance and incentives. They mentioned that the error had caused them to not complete the required attendance set by the faculty administration and thus lowered the financial incentives they received. Teacher A confirmed:

'I lost about Rp. 300.000 (or USD 21) last month because of the system. I thought the system would automatically record my attendance when I marked the students'

attendance in the application. But, in fact, it did not. I tried to clarify this issue to the administration. When I met them, I was told that the system recorded me as not attending the classroom teaching. They told me to also complete my teaching report manually. This was ineffective, really.' (Teacher A)

Many researchers have reported the role of financial incentives in improving teachers' attendance in teaching classrooms [17], [34], [35]. Balu and Ehrlich [35], for example, suggested that financial incentives could improve the teachers' attendance in the teaching classroom. The fact that the U-Mobile system error made it impossible to record the teachers' attendance appropriately might directly affect the teachers' financial incentives and thus would negatively impact the teachers' attendance in the future.

3.2 Reporting and analytics issues

As discussed earlier, U-Mobile benefited the faculty administration in that it helped them record the teachers' attendance on a daily basis [27]. Unfortunately, we observed that the system did not feature the report menu for teachers as the end-users. The absence of reporting menu has restricted teachers from generating their attendance reports and analytics. As in the case of Feature 3, the teachers were only informed about the percentage of students' attendance and the number of students attending the classroom sessions. Such an absence put the teachers at a disadvantage in that they were not given a tool to help them reflect on their participation in classroom teaching.

3.3 Input manipulation

Earlier, we mentioned that U-Mobile was integrated with the end-user phone's GPS system where it was allowed to use the end-user's position data and link it to the central database. This integration enabled the system to monitor the end-user's position and only allowed teachers to input data from a particular position. The findings from the observation and the interviews with the teachers revealed that many of the teachers manipulated their attendance by modifying the GPS data input. Teacher C said:

'I was surprised that I could mark my students' attendance from the traffic light which was more 500 m away from the main building I taught in." (Teacher C)

Although, many teachers believed that the input manipulation was motivated by their personal intention, but because of the U-Mobile system, they could not reliably record their position. Teacher A, for example, asserted:

'I believed something wrong had happened with the application. I was in Building D, but it was strange that the application restricted me from inputting the attendance data.' (Teacher A)

Teacher B added:

'One of my students said to me that he could use the application from home. He showed me an application that allowed users to manipulate their position. I tried to download and install a fake GPS application into my phone. It worked!' (Teacher B)

4 Conclusions

In the current study, we evaluated the development process and the application of U-Mobile as a technological tool to monitor teachers' attendance and their teaching activity at a private university in the capital city of Jakarta, Indonesia. The teachers perceived the use of U-Mobile to monitor their teaching attendance as positive. However, three main challenges were identified during the project implementation, namely processing time duration and system error, reporting and analytics issues, and input manipulation. The further development of U-Mobile should address these three challenges. In this current study, we only involved a small number of participants which accordingly could not represent the overall view of university teachers about the use of U-Mobile. Further research is thus needed to address the effectiveness and the teachers' perception of the AAMS application in higher education settings with a relatively large sample.

5 References

- L. Cucchiella, F; Gastaldi, M; Ranieri, 'Managing absenteeism in the workplace: The case of an Italian multiutility company', Procedia - Soc. Behav. Sci., vol. 150, pp. 1157–1166, 2014. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sbspro.2014.09.131</u>
- [2] D. Griffith, Teacher absenteeism in charter and traditional public schools. Thomas B. Fordham Institute, 2017.
- [3] F. Chaudhury, N; Hammer, J; Kremer, M; Muralidharan, K; Rogers, 'Missing in action: Teacher and health worker absence in developing countries', J. Econ. Perspect., vol. 20, no. 1, pp. 91–116, 2006. https://doi.org/10.1257/089533006776526058
- [4] A. Sagie, 'Employee absenteeism, organizational commitment, and job satisfaction: Another look', J. Vocat. Behav., vol. 52, pp. 156–171, 1998. <u>https://doi.org/10.1006/jvbe. 1997.1581</u>
- [5] H. Salih, 'Staff absenteeism: The case of wa municipal education office of the Ghana education service', Open J. Soc. Sci., vol. 6, pp. 1–14, 2018. <u>https://doi.org/10.4236/jss.2018.6</u> 8001
- [6] J. Ost, B; Schiman, 'Workload and teacher absence', Econ. Educ. Rev., vol. 57, pp. 20–30, 2017.
- [7] M. Ronning, 'The effect of working conditions on teachers' sickness absence', Oslo, Discussion Papers, No. 684, Statistics Norway, Research Department, 2012.
- [8] S. Medeiros, A; Assuncao, A; Barreto, 'Absenteeism due to voice disorders in female teachers: A public health problem', Int arch occup Env. Heal., vol. 85, pp. 853–864, 2012. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s00420-011-0729-1</u>
- [9] J. Denteh, W; Yeboah, E; Sam, C; Monkah, 'The impact of student and teacher absenteeism on student performance at the junior high school: The case of the Kumasi Metro school district', Cont. J. Educ. Res., vol. 4, no. 1, pp. 7–17, 2011.
- [10] J. Miller, R; Murnane, R; Willett, 'Do teacher absences impact student achievement? Longitudinal evidence from one urban school district', Educ. Eval. Policy Anal., vol. 30, no. 2, pp. 181–200, 2008. <u>https://doi.org/10.3386/w13356</u>
- [11] A. Abayasekara and N. Arunatilake, 'School-level resource allocation and education outcomes in Sri Lanka', Int. J. Educ. Dev., vol. 61, pp. 127–141, 2018. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016</u> /j.ijedudev.2017.12.010

- [12] M. Sabarwal, S; Jawdeh, 'What teachers believe: Mental models about accountability, absenteeism, and student learning', Policy Research Working Paper 8454, World bank group: Education global practice, 2018. <u>https://doi.org/10.1596/1813-9450-8454</u>
- [13] E. Davies, 'Absence: Electoral cycles and teacher absenteeism in India', Polit. Econ. Educ., 2018.
- [14] S. Usman, Akhmadi, D. Suryadarma, and D. Usman, S; Suryadarma, 'Patterns of teacher absence in public primary schools in Indonesia', Asia Pacific J. Educ., vol. 27, no. 2, pp. 207–219, 2007. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/02188790701378826</u>
- [15] N. Iqbal, N; Muhammad, S; Haider, 'To explore the causes of absenteeism at government and private primary schools: A case study from Pakistan', Int. Lett. Soc. Humanist. Sci., vol. 54, pp. 21–25, 2015. https://doi.org/10.18052/www.scipress.com/ilshs.54.21
- [16] J. Mooij, 'Primary education, teachers' professionalism and social class about motivation and demotivation of government school teachers in India', Int. J. Educ. Dev., vol. 28, no. 5, pp. 508–523, 2008. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijedudev.2007.10.006</u>
- [17] P. McKenzie, D. Nugroho, C. Ozolins, J. McMillan, and S. Sumarto, 'Teachers absenteeism in Indonesia: Policy brief', Teach. Learn. Leadersh., vol. 11, 2014.
- [18] M. Dullo; Esther; Dupas, P; Kremer, 'Peer effects, teacher incentives, and the impact of tracking: Evidence from a randomized evaluation in Kenya', Am. Econ. Rev., pp. 1739– 1774, 2011. <u>https://doi.org/10.1257/aer.101.5.1739</u>
- [19] I. Ujan, E; Ismaili, I. A. Ujan, and I. A. Ismaili, 'Biometric attendance system', in Complex Medical Engineering (CME), 2011 IEEE/ICME International Conference on, 2011, pp. 499–501. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/iccme.2011.5876792</u>
- [20] A. Agrawal, A; Bansal, 'Online attendance management system using RFID with object counter', Int. J. Inf. Comput. Technol., vol. 3, no. 3, pp. 131–138, 2013.
- [21] L. Ezema, L; Uzuegbu, C; Eneh, J; Amanze, 'Fingerprint based attendance management system', Int. J. Sci. Eng. Res., vol. 6, no. 7, 2015.
- [22] R. Shakil, M; Nandi, 'Attendance management system for industrial worker using finger print scanner', Glob. J. Comput. Sci. Technol., vol. 13, no. 6, 2013.
- [23] C. Baffoe, 'A proposed GSM biometric attendance management system for Ghana education', Int. J. Adv. Netw. Appl., vol. 9, no. 3, pp. 3421–3427, 2017.
- [24] N. I. Zainal, K. A. Sidek, T. S. Gunawan, H. Manser, M. Kartiwi, and M. Zainal, N; Sidek, K; Gunawan, T; Mansor, H; Kartiwi, 'Design and development of portable classroom attendance system based on Arduino and fingerprint Biometric', in Information and Communication Technology for The Muslim World (ICT4M), 2014 The 5th International Conference on, 2014, pp. 1–4. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/ict4m.2014.7020601</u>
- [25] S. Joshi, R; Shete, V; Somani, 'Android based smart learning and attendance management system', Int. J. Adv. Res. Comput. Commun. Eng., vol. 4, no. 6, pp. 250–260, 2015.
- [26] P. Bhattacharjee, S; Kundu, D; Raychaudhuri, S; Chakraborty, 'Attendance management system an Android application', Int. J. Comput. Sci. Eng., vol. 4, no. 6, 2016.
- [27] L. P. I. Almiranez, G; Mercado, J; Aumentado, 'Ensuring quality performance of faculty attendance management system', 2017.
- [28] B. J. Fishman, W. R. Penuel, A.-R. Allen, B. H. Cheng, and N. Sabelli, 'Design-based implementation research: An emerging model for transforming the relationship of research and practice', Natl. Soc. Study Educ., vol. 112, no. 2, pp. 136–156, 2013.
- [29] T. Anderson and J. Shattuck, 'Design-based research: A decade of progress in education research?', Educ. Res., vol. 41, no. 1, pp. 16–25, 2012.
- [30] Y. Y. Sari, S. Zulaiha, and H. Mulyono, 'The development of a digital application to promote parents' involvement in a character education at primary schools', Pap. Rev., 2019.

- [31] S. Kratky and C. Reichenberger, 'Client/Server Development based on the Apple Event Object Model', Atlanta, 2013.
- [32] A. A. Kumbhar, K. S. Wanjara, D. H. Trivedi, A. U. Khairatkar, and D. Sharma, 'Automated attendance monitoring system using android platform', Int. J. Curr. Eng. Technol., vol. 4, no. 2, pp. 1096–1099, 2014.
- [33] H. S. Oluwatosin, 'Client-server model', IOSRJ Comput. Eng, vol. 16, no. 1, pp. 2278– 8727, 2014.
- [34] E. Duflo, R. Hanna, and S. P. Ryan, 'Incentives work: Getting teachers to come to school', Am. Econ. Rev., vol. 102, no. 4, pp. 1241–1278, 2012. <u>https://doi.org/10.1257/aer.102.4.1</u> 241
- [35] R. Balu and S. B. Ehrlich, 'Making Sense out of Incentives: A Framework for Considering the Design, Use, and Implementation of Incentives to Improve Attendance', J. Educ. Students Placed Risk, vol. 23, no. 1–2, pp. 93–106, 2018. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/10824669.20</u> <u>18.1438898</u>

6 Authors

Suryaman is an associate professor Universitas Islam Raden Rahmat, Indonesia. He obtained his Ph.D at State University of Malang, Indonesia. His research interests include education management and leadership, classroom management, integration of ICT in education settings. E-mail: maman suryaman58@yahoo.co.id

Herri Mulyono is a senior lecture at University of Muhammadiyah Prof. DR. HAMKA, Indonesia. He obtained his Ph.D at University of York. UK. His research interests include teaching English as a foreign language, computer assisted language learning (CALL), and teacher professional development.

Article submitted 2019-02-04. Resubmitted 2019-05-17. Final acceptance 2019-05-17. Final version published as submitted by the authors.

Improved Direct Routing Approach for Mobile IP Systems

https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v13i08.10721

Ali Alshahrani Arab Open University, Riyadh, KSA a.shahrani@arabou.edu.sa

Abstract-The mobile IP communication protocol is a flexible system for mobile connection that is designed to allow the device to be moved between networks while maintaining a permanent IP address. IP datagrams using mobile IP can be routed to a specific mobile station (MS) regardless of its current internet location. However, to facilitate such routable characteristics, the communication with an MS that is visiting a foreign network is intermediate with communication between the home agent (HA) and the foreign agent (FA) which increase the total delay and harms the communication performance, especially when the MS continuously moves from a network to another. Accordingly, to handle the delay issue, this paper proposes a new approach for mobile IP direct routing, based on the "follow-me" principle. The proposed approach depends on sending a new temporary care-of-address (CoA) for the previously visited network as the MS moves to another to keep a reliable tracking-like process with the HA. Accordingly, the agents of all the visited networks play the same principles as the HA role whenever the MS moves from a network to another. The proposed approach influences the delay and the speed of the delivery of internet packets. The simulation showed that the proposed method decreases the delay by up to 50% compared to the direct routing approach.

Keywords-Mobile IP, Routing, Care of address, Home Agent, Foreign Agent

1 Introduction

Mobile IP technology has been developed to ensure that a user of any mobile device can move from one network to another while maintaining a permanent IP address [1]. As a location independent, using mobile IP allows the IP datagrams to be routed by identifying each mobile station (MS) with a home address regardless of its current internet location. Accordingly, if the MS is positioned away from the home network, it is associated with a particular address, known as the care-of-address (CoA), which identifies its current location using the endpoint [2]. Generally, mobile IP is responsible for the registration of the MS with the home agent (HA) and routing the datagrams via the tunnel to the MS. The mobile IP usually maintains the TCP connection between the static and the mobile hosts and reduces the effects that are resulted from the mobility of the device; therefore, it helps to keep the TCP connection intact [10]. As

such, mobile IP is often regarded as a communication protocol that is controlled and standardized by the Internet Engineering Task Force (IETF).

MS is associated with two addresses, the care-of-address (CoA) and the permanent home address. For the implementation of the Mobile IP, two main entities play critical roles in the network connectivity; these are Home Agent (HA) and Foreign Agent (FA). HA stores the information concerning the MSs [3], maintains the entries of the MS location in the directory and acts as a router within the home network of the MS. Accordingly, HA ensures the delivery of datagrams through the tunneling technique to the MS. FA stores the information about all the mobile devices that are visiting the network and advertises the CoA [1]. The FA communicate with the MS to deliver and de-tunnel datagrams, which are then tunneled through the HA by the mobile host. In the absence of FA in the host network, the mobile device has to take over the responsibility of advertising and to address itself. In this case, the FA is usually apprehended as a router that offers a routing service and operates within the network that may be visited by various MSs [4]. This mechanism forms a unique architecture for the mobile IP as illustrated in Figure 1.

Mobility management provides seamless connectivity and session continuity between an MS and the network during its movement. HA is a central entity that tracks the movement of the IP address to keep MS connected and anchoring traffic from source to destination through point-to-point tunnels. The mobility challenge in mobile IP technology is growing with the rapid growth of mobile communication over IP, and the traffic in mobile IP technology will exceed wired communication in terms of the traffic load [5]. According to Cisco [6], the traffic load of the mobile data will be increased by a factor of 11 from 2013 to 2018, and 61% of the IP traffic will be dedicated to the routable devices. Accordingly, reducing the unnecessary traffic generated by changing the MS location is necessary to improve the performance of the network and reduce the total delay. Generally, the traffic is duplicated by the routing process in the mobile IP, in which both HA and FA intermediate the communication of a visited MS to facilitate its connectivity.



Fig. 1. Mobile IP Network Architecture

Two approaches are used to facilitate the mobile IP routing process; these are direct and indirect. These routing approaches showed robust features in routing the IP datagrams from a correspondent (CN) and MS, yet, each of which has its scalability limitations with routing via the anchor point. This limitation affects the performance of the network in general in terms of delay and transmission rate. Although the anchorless alternative is not possible due to the architecture of the Mobile IP technology, an enhanced anchor-based approach can be implemented by reliable tracking–like process with the HA in order to reduce the communication overhead while the MH is moving from a network to another.

This paper proposes a new approach, referred to as "follow me" approach that decreases the delay and increase the speed of the data transmission by sending a new temporary IP address (CoA) for the previously visited network as the MS moves from one network to another. The proposed approach keep the HA updated with the MS address by sending a temporary CoA continuously. Although updating the HA with MS routing required extra traffic load, it is trivial compared to the extra traffic load added by both the direct and indirect approach via the anchor point. Accordingly, the proposed approach decreases the load and total delay. Moreover, the proposed approach depends on ease the dependence on the anchor point to save the bandwidth. The detail of the proposed approach will be discussed in the following sections. The rest of the paper is organized as follows: Section 2, presents an overview of the direct and indirect routing approaches. Section 3 discusses the related work on mobility management in mobile IP technology. Section 4 presents the proposed work and discusses the technical details of the "follow me" approach. The experimental simulation results are presented in Section 5. Finally, the conclusion is presented in Section 6.

2 Mobile IP Routing: Overview

In the Mobile IP indirect routing approach, the CN sends a packet addressed by an MS's permanent address to the home network. Accordingly, there is no difference in the routing process in case that the MS is located in its home network or is visiting a foreign network. Thus, mobility is entirely transparent to the CN. In the transmission process, the packet is first forwarded as usual, to the MS's home network. Then, the HA interacts with an FA to trace the mobile station's CoA, as illustrated in Figure 2. The HA also looks out for packet arrival that is addressed to the MS whose home network is that of the HA, but that is currently located in a foreign network. The HA receives these IP packets and then forwards them to a mobile station in a two-step process [7]. First, the packet is forwarded to the FA, using the MS's CoA. Second, the packet is forwarded from the FA to the mobile station [8]. The HA needs to address the packet using the MS's CoA so that the network layer will route the datagram to the external network using the traditional routing algorithms. HA always encapsulates the CN's original datagram with a new larger datagram, which is addressed and delivered to the MS's CoA. The FA, who owns the CoA, will receive and de-capsulate the packet and extract the correspondent's original packet from the larger encapsulating packet [3, 9] before forwarding the packet into the MS.



Fig. 2. Mobile IP Indirect Routing

The indirect routing approach suffers from an inefficiency known as the triangle routing problem because the datagrams addressed to the MS must be routed first to the HA and then to the FA. Direct routing of mobile IP is a process in which a correspondent sends the IP packet(s) to an MS without passing through the HA. The route that is adopted by the packet for traveling is called direct route, and the process implemented by such route is called direct routing. In the mobile IP direct routing approach, a CN sends a request to an HA for the address of the MS. After receiving the permanent mobile address or the current CoA of the requested MS, the CN directly forward the packet(s) to the network where the MS is currently located, as illustrated in Figure 3 [10].

Accordingly, the direct approach reduces the dependency of the HA in forwarding the transmitted packets to the moving device, yet, the CN has to request for the address from the MH while transmitting the first packet. While this is small communication overhead, the significant communication overhead results when an MS keep moving from a network to another as packets are addressed to it, leading to another situation that is similar to the indirect approach. A comparison between the direct and indirect approaches based on the responsibility of the involved nodes is given in Table 1 [11, 12].



Fig. 3. Mobile IP Direct Routing

	Indirect	Direct
HA	Receives all the transmitted packets and transfers them to the FA.	Receives the first transmitted packet and trans- fers it to the FA. Receives and provides the CoA.
FA	Receives all the transmitted packets and transfers them to the MS. Traces the CoA of the visiting MS.	Receives the first transmitted packet and trans- fers it to the FA. Registers CoA to the visiting MS.
MS	Registers CoA with the FA	Registers CoA with the FA
CN	Sends all the transmitted packets to the HA.	Sends the first transmitted packet to the HA and communicates directly with the MS.

Table 1. Comparison between Direct and Indirect Approach

3 Related Work

The mobile IP routing approach allows users to move between networks and continue receiving the incoming session requests and support sessions in progress [13]. The previously discussed approaches for routing the mobile IP have disadvantages that have been addressed in the literature. Wong and Leung [14] compared between the performance of the direct and indirect approaches and conclude that "careful design is necessary in order to reduce the signaling and processing overhead for location update." Ho and Akyildiz [15] and Li et al. [16] provided an estimation of cost for the mobility of the mobile nodes across networks. Based on the conclusion of the cost estimation, various approaches for minimizing the communication overhead in mobile IP routing have been proposed. The researches for improving the mobility management have taken different directions, which can be summarized as follows: Estimation nodes' location for cost reduction, decentralization the communication using agents other than the network agent (i.e., HA and FA) for overhead reduction and estimating the closest agent for overhead reduction.

Choi and Tekinay [17] minimize the overhead of the location management process adaptively by predicting the mobility pattern. The adaptive estimation of the mobile location that is moving is only possible if the speed and path information is available and the mobility is taken place at a certain speed on a directed path. Adaptive estimation cannot be used to locate a randomly moving station. Thus, before the location is estimated, the history of the mobile movements are used to determine whether the location can be automatically estimated or not. Accordingly, adaptive estimation eliminates the need for further communication to locate the moving device. Similarly, Taheri and Zomaya [18] proposed an approach based on data clustering algorithm in order to estimate the location of the moving devices. The history of a device movement is used to predict the future movement of the node. The clustering algorithm is used to discover the network topology and automatically determine the routing path.

Zheng et al. [19] proposed an approach that allows the visiting node to use a temporary agent in the visited network. Accordingly, communication is intermediate with dynamic HA (DHA) to reduce the risk of a single point of failure and provide a flexible system. DHA assigns a temporary home address to the visiting node to shorten the distance between the visiting node and the HA, which in turn reduce the handoff latency.

Yen et al. [20] proposed a Global Dynamic Home Agent Discovery (GDHAD) that allows the visiting node to use the nearest HA through anycast protocol that discovers the closest HA to every node. This approach reduces the cost and delay of registration with the original HA. Cuevas et al. [21] proposed another distributed HA-based approach to reduce cost and latency. The proposed approach is based on peer-to-peer HA discovery. The proposed approach depends on overlay peer-to-peer networks formed by multiple HAs. Each HA has information about the location of the other HAs. An MS sends its current location to the current HA continuously and the current HA lunches a discovery process to find the closest HA to the MH. The current HA sends the MH the IP addresses of the closest HAs, who in turn connect to one of these HAs. Motoyoshi et al. [22] proposed a similar approach for locating the closest HA. The MH sends a registration request to the current HA, who maintains the path and history information of the MH and the distributed HA. The current HA finds the most suitable HA based on the history maintained and starts the delegation procedure with the selected HA. The current HA sends an acknowledgment to the HA as the delegation completed. Chen et al. [23] propose a mobility management approach to reduce the cost of communication using a Markov process that analyzes the tracking cost of the device mobility. A mobile subscriber (MS) grouping and equivalent quadrangular area are used to reduce the communication overhead with the stations. A summary of the reviewed literature is given in Table 2.

Approach	Goal	Approach Description	
Choi and Tekinay [17]	Estimation nodes' location for cost reduction.	Adaptively predicting the mobility pattern to deter- mine the location.	
Taheri and Zoma- ya [18]	Estimation nodes' location for cost reduction.	Estimates the location of the moving devices using network topology analysis.	
Zheng et al. [19]	Decentralization communication using agents other than HA.	Allows the visiting node to use a temporary HA in the visited network.	
Yen et al. [20]	Estimating the closest HA	Allows the visiting node to use the nearest HA through anycast protocol.	
Cuevas et al. [21]	Estimating the closest HA	The proposed approach is based on peer-to-peer HA discovery in overlay peer-to-peer networks.	
Motoyoshi et al. [22]	Estimating the closest HA	HA maintains the path and history information of th MH and the distributed HA to find the suitable HA.	
Chen et al. [23]	Estimating the closest HA	Uses a Markov process that analyzes the tracking cost of the device mobility and finds the best HA.	

Table 2. Comparison between Mobile IP Routing Enhancement Approaches

Although the existing literature addressed the problem of delay and communication overhead by locating and communicating with the HA of the visited network, the solution to the cost of registration and intermediate communication are still challenging the mobile IP technology. Accordingly, a new approach for mobile IP routing is required to solve this problem, which will be addressed in this paper.

4 The Proposed Approach

A new approach called *Follow me* is proposed by improving the commonly utilized direct routing approach for mobile IP. The proposed approach depends on sending a new temporary IP address (CoA) for the previously visited network as the MS moves to another network. Besides, the mobile node also registers its new CoA in its home network to keep a reliable tracking–like process with the home agent (HA).

4.1 The "Follow me" CoA registration process

A mobile station (MS) in mobile IP can be moved from a network to another. Accordingly, a mechanism for CoA registration is required with the HA and FA. In fol*low me* approach, when the MS moves from its home network to any foreign network, the foreign agent (FA) of a host network immediately sends a new temporary IP address (CoA) for the visiting MS. The MS then registers its new CoA in its home network. Then, when the MS leaves the visiting network and moves to another, the previous CoA will be discarded, and a new CoA from the current network's FA will be received and registered with the HA and the previously visiting network's HA. Accordingly, if no transmission process is being implemented while the MS moves, a correspondent will ignore the old CoA immediately after receiving the new CoA. However, if a transmission process is implemented while MS moves, the agent of the previously visiting network will receive the packets and transmitted them to the MS based on the recently received CoA. Then, after the internet session between MS and a CN is terminated using the TCP 3-way handshaking, the CN will use only the MS permanent IP address for the future connection with the underlying MS. To explain the process of CoA registration for the proposed system, an example of an autonomous network system is illustrated in Figure 4.

As given in Figure 4, the MS left the home network and moved towards a foreign network (FN1). After a while, the MS moves to FN2, FN3, FN7 and finally to FNn. Each time it moves, the MS receives a temporary address, which is then registered with the home network of the MS and is sent directly to the previous FN. Assume that the MS receives CoA1 from FN1 for T1 period when it moves to the first foreign network, where T_1 is the time the MS will remain in the network associated with FN₁. A session was in progress with a particular CN when MS moves from HN to FN₁. The MS sends its new temporary address CoA₁ to the HA and to the CN to ensure the internet session remains in use. Then, when the MS leaves FN_1 and moves towards FN_2 , it will lose CoA₁ and receive a new temporary IP address CoA₂ from FN_2 . The MS will send CoA_2 to the FN_1 and the HA. During the mobility of MS, when it will move through FN3, the same process of CoA registration will be repeated using CoA3 from FN_3 then CoA₄ from FN_7 followed by CoA₅ from FN_n . Accordingly, the MS always sends the new CoA to the previously visited network to notify it about its current address. Thus, if a packet is being transmitted while the MS is moving, the notified FA will direct the packet into the address that is sent by the moving MS. In such a way, re-transmission is avoided in all cases, which reduce the delay and en-

hance performance. The process of registering and distribution of the MS for the example that is given in Figure 4 is illustrated in Figure 5.



Fig. 4. Example of a Mobile station Mobility process



Fig. 5. Mobile IP "follow me" Direct Routing CoA Registration

4.2 The "Follow me" packet delivery mechanism

Packet delivery mechanism in the proposed follow me approach is implemented based on the location of the MS. The first scenario occurs when the MS is located within the home network. In this case, the CN will directly send a packet to the HA using the traditional internet routing techniques, taking into consideration the fact that the destination IP address of the packet is the mobile's permanent address. As the mobile is located within the home network scope, the packets will be directly forwarded to the desired MS. The MS then receives the packet and gives the required responses as requested. While when the MS is located within a foreign network, the MS will have a temporary address that was obtained from the foreign network and registered with the network agent(s). The CN transmits a packet to the MS, based on the CoA according to the following scenarios:

- The CN directly sends the first IP packet to the HA who will encapsulate the packet and forward it to the last visited network. After that, HA sends a particular service packet that contains the CoA to the CN that enable CN to send packets directly to MS without referring back to HA.
- The CN sends a request to the HA to inquire whether the current IP address of the MS is MA or CoA. After receiving the address, the corresponding network forwards the packet directly to the MS that is located in a visiting network.
- The CN sends a request to the HA to inquire whether the current IP address of the MS is MA or CoA. After receiving the address, the corresponding network forwards the first packet directly to the MS that is located in a visiting network.

The most critical scenario occurs when CN is transmission packets while the MS is moving to another network while. The previous FA forwards the packet from CN to the first network, and the previous FN will inform the CN about the new CoA for the MS. Accordingly, using the proposed packet delivery mechanism, the end to end delay will be enhanced, and the reliability of the transmission will be improved through the prevention of packet loss that may occur due to the movement of the mobile station in the visiting networks. The proposed mechanism minimizes the communication with the HA, as the correspondent refers to the HA only if the transmission is failed. Moreover, the FA will also have less overhead as the MS is responsible for acquiring the CoA once.

Example of the packet delivery mechanism in the proposed *follow me* approach compared to the traditional direct approach is illustrated in Figure 6. Assume that the CN sends the first packet directly to the MS that is located in R12. The MS moves to R9, and the packet from CN to R12 is not delivered. In the traditional direct approach, the CN will contact the HA for new CoA for the moving device then the packet will be sent again from the CN to R9. In this case, the total delay will be the end-to-end delay plus the encapsulation and de-capsulation process time for the two transmission attempts. While in the proposed follow me approach, R12 will inform for the CN about the new CoA for the moving device and the packet will be forwarded from R12 to R9. Accordingly, the time consuming double transmission will be eliminated using the *follow me* approach.



Fig. 6. Packet Delivery Process in Follow me and the Traditional Direct Routing

5 Comparison, Simulation, and Results

Numerical analysis and simulation are conducted to evaluate the performance of the proposed approach. Accordingly, six scenarios are implemented for the mobility of the devices, and the total delay at each scenario is calculated. A summary of the scenarios is given in Table 3.

Accordingly, there are three different delays in any of these scenarios; these are transmission delay (Ds), Encapsulation and de-encapsulation delay (Den) and CoA transmission delay (DCoA). These different forms of delay based on the depicted scenario will be evaluated using numerical simulation and mobile simulation. In the numerical analysis, without loss of generality, we assume that the transmission delay is identical regardless of the identity of the sender and the receiver nodes. Accordingly, we also assume that the transmission delay are

identical. Accordingly, the delay of each of the depicted scenario is calculated as given in Table 4.

Scenario		Direct Approach	Proposed Approach			
Located Node in	First Packet	S1. Total delay is equal to the transmission delay as the nacket is sent				
the Home Net- work	Other Packets	directly.				
	First Packet	S2: Total delay is equal to the transmission delay from CN to HA and HA to MS plus the encapsulation delay.				
Foreign Network	Other Packets	S3: Total delay is equal to delay of sending a particular service packet that contains the CoA to the CN after the first packet and the transmission delay from CN to MS plus the encapsulation delay.				
Relocated Visiting Node	First Packet	S4: Total delay is equal to the transmission delay from CN to HA and HA to departed network and the encapsulation delay. Besides, the delay of encapsula- tion and re-transmission delay n- times, to n-networks that are visited by the MS while the packet is transmitted.	S5: Total delay is equal to the transmission delay from CN to HA and HA to departed network and the encapsulation delay. Besides, the delay of re-transmission delay between n-times, to n-networks that are visited by the MS while the packet is transmitted.			
	Other Packets	S6: Total delay is equal to delay of sending a particular service packet that contains the CoA to the CN after the first packet and the transmission delay from CN to MS plus the encapsulation delay.				

Table 3. Comparison between the Direct Approach and Follow me Approach

Table 4. Representation of the	Total Delay in the Direct Approact	h and Follow Me Approach
--------------------------------	------------------------------------	--------------------------

Scenario	Equation	Unity Measure
S1	$D_{total} = Ds$	1
S2	$D_{total} = Ds_{CN-to-HA} + Ds_{HA-to-FA} + D_{en}$	3
S3	$D_{total} = Ds_{CN-to-HA} + Ds_{HA-to-FA} + D_{en} + D_{coA}$	4
<i>S4</i>	$D_{total} = Ds_{CN-to-HA} + (\sum_{i=1}^{n} Ds_i) + (\sum_{i=1}^{n} D_{coAi}) + D_{en}$	2n + 2
<i>S5</i>	$D_4 = Ds_{CN-to-HA} + \sum_{i=1}^{n} Ds_i + D_{coAi}$	n+2
<i>S6</i>	$D_{total} = Ds_{CN-to-HA} + Ds_{HA-to-FA} + D_{en} + D_{coA}$	4

Accordingly, the apparent delay occurs when the MS is moving continuously from a network to another forming the first-packet scenario repeatedly. Accordingly, if the relocating of the MS occurred with each packet transmission with a probability of 1, the direct approach delay will be almost double the delay in the *follow me* approach. The variation in delay between the two approaches decreases as the probability is decreased till the variation reach zero with moving probability of 0.

A mobile IP system was simulated using Java with four types of agents; these are HA, FA, MS, and CN. A set of functionalities with various frame types were developed to facilitate communication within the simulated environment. The mobile node can send a message, register with HA and deregister with FA. CN listen to incoming

messages are reply accordingly. The HA initiate a communication with the CN and with the FA to send messages to MS. The HA inform CN about the newly registered nodes and communicate messages with nodes and FA. The FA register MS nodes and communicate with CN. According to the simulated system, the direct approach and the follow-me approach were simulated based on different relocated probability which creates different scenarios according to the discussion above with different packet numbers and the total delay in a millisecond was captured and compared as illustrated in Figure 7.

As the results illustrate, the total delay of the follow me approach is less than the delay of the direct approach. The resulting gap is increasing when the relocating probability increase, in which the number of relocating of MS occurred more often. In the probability of 1.0, the total delay of the direct approach is almost double for the follow me approach. As noted in the results, the total delay variations are increased among the compared methods as the number of communicated packets increases, which clearly illustrates the benefits of using the proposed approach in reducing the total delay in real communication, in which the number of transmitted packets are substantially huge.











Fig. 7. The total Delay of the Direct Approach and Follow me Approach with different Relocation Probability and Packet Number

6 Conclusion

The mobile IP direct routing approach has become a popular method for mobile routing. However, it suffers from the problem of re-transmission as the mobile agent relocated from that network to another. Accordingly, in this paper, a new approach, which is referred to as 'follow me", is proposed to manage the direct routing of mobile IP. The proposed method depends on informing and allowing the agent of the previously visiting network to transmitted packets to the MS based on the received CoA. Accordingly, the proposed approach minimizes the communication with the HA, as the correspondent refers to the HA only if the transmission is failed. Moreover, the FA will also have less overhead as the MS is responsible for acquiring the CoA once. The simulation results showed that the total delay could be reduced up to the half in the case with a probability of mobile relocating of one.

7 Acknowledgement

This work was supported by the Arab Open University, KSA.

8 References

- Opos, J.M., et al. A performance analysis of indirect routing. in 2007 IEEE International Parallel and Distributed Processing Symposium. 2007. IEEE.
- [2] Mohammadpour, M., H. Parvin, and A. Chamkoori, Improvement of Routing Operation Based on Learning with Using Smart Local and Global Agents and with the Help of the Ant Colony Algorithm. Journal of Advances in Computer Research, 2017. 8(4): p. 107-119.

- [3] Perkins, C.E., Mobile networking through mobile IP. IEEE Internet computing, 1998. 2(1): p. 58-69. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/4236.656077</u>
- [4] Gohil, A., H. Modi, and S.K. Patel. 5G technology of mobile communication: A survey. in 2013 international conference on intelligent systems and signal processing (ISSP). 2013. IEEE. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/issp.2013.6526920</u>
- [5] Xylomenos, G., et al., Caching and mobility support in a publish-subscribe internet architecture. IEEE Communications Magazine, 2012. 50(7): p. 52-58. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/</u> mcom.2012.6231279
- [6] Cisco, I., Cisco visual networking index: Forecast and methodology, 2013–2018. CISCO White paper, 2013. 2018.
- [7] Clausen, T., U. Herberg, and J. Yi, Security Threats to the Optimized Link State Routing Protocol Version 2 (OLSRv2). 2017. <u>https://doi.org/10.17487/rfc8116</u>
- [8] Magnano, A., X. Fei, and A. Boukerche. Predictive mobile IP handover for vehicular networks. in 2015 IEEE 40th Conference on Local Computer Networks (LCN). 2015. IEEE. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/lcn.2015.7366328</u>
- [9] Kurose, J. and K. Ross, Computer networks: A top down approach featuring the internet. Peorsoim Addison Wesley, 2010.
- [10] Li, C., et al. Using indirect routing to recover from network traffic scheduling estimation error. in 2017 ACM/IEEE Symposium on Architectures for Networking and Communications Systems (ANCS). 2017. IEEE. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/ancs.2017.12</u>
- [11] Anastasiades, C., T. Braun, and V.A. Siris, Information-centric networking in mobile and opportunistic networks, in Wireless Networking for Moving Objects. 2014, Springer. p. 14-30. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-10834-6_2</u>
- [12] Lee, J. and S. Pack, Mobility management in future wireless networks: Past, present, and future. IEEE WCNC Tutorial, 2013.
- [13] Al-Surmi, I., M. Othman, and B.M. Ali, Mobility management for IP-based next generation mobile networks: Review, challenge and perspective. Journal of Network and computer Applications, 2012. 35(1): p. 295-315. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jnca.2011.09.001</u>
- [14] Wong, V.-S. and V.C. Leung, Location management for next-generation personal communications networks. IEEE network, 2000. 14(5): p. 18-24. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/65.871</u> <u>336</u>
- [15] Ho, J.S. and I.F. Akyildiz. A dynamic mobility tracking policy for wireless personal communications networks. in Proceedings of GLOBECOM'95. 1995. IEEE. <u>https://doi.org/10. 1109/glocom.1995.500211</u>
- [16] Li, J., H. Kameda, and K. Li, Optimal dynamic mobility management for PCS networks. IEEE/ACM Transactions on Networking, 2000. 8(3): p. 319-327. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/90.851978</u>
- [17] Choi, W.-J. and S. Tekinay. An adaptive location registration scheme with dynamic mobility classification. in 2002 IEEE International Conference on Communications. Conference Proceedings. ICC 2002 (Cat. No. 02CH37333). 2002. IEEE. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/icc.2</u> 002.996892
- [18] Taheri, J. and A.Y. Zomaya, Clustering techniques for dynamic location management in mobile computing. Journal of Parallel and Distributed Computing, 2007. 67(4): p. 430-447. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jpdc.2006.12.005</u>
- [19] Zheng, R., et al., A case for mobility support with temporary home agents. ACM SIGMOBILE Mobile Computing and Communications Review, 2002. 6(1): p. 32-46. <u>https://doi.org/10.1145/511226.511229</u>

- [20] Yen, Y.-S., et al., Global dynamic home agent discovery on mobile IPv6, in 2nd International Conferenceon Mobile Technology, Applications and Systems. 2005. <u>https://doi.org/ 10.1109/mtas.2005.207129</u>
- [21] Cuevas, R., et al. P2P based architecture for global home agent dynamic discovery in IP mobility. in 2007 IEEE 65th Vehicular Technology Conference-VTC2007-Spring. 2007. IEEE. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/vetecs.2007.194</u>
- [22] Motoyoshi, G., K. Leibnitz, and M. Murata, Proposal and evaluation of a functiondistributed mobility architecture for the future internet. IEICE transactions on communications, 2011. 94(7): p. 1952-1963. <u>https://doi.org/10.1587/transcom.e94.b.1952</u>
- [23] Chen, K.-T., S.-L. Su, and R.-F. Chang, Design and analysis of dynamic mobility tracking in wireless personal communication networks. IEEE Transactions on Vehicular Technology, 2002. 51(3): p. 486-497. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/tvt.2002.1002498</u>

9 Author

Ali Alshahrani is an assistant professor in ITC department, Arab Open University - KSA. He received his B.Cs degree in Information Technology and Computing, in 2008. His M.Sc. and Ph.D. from University of Essex, UK in Computer science, in 2015. His research interests include network security, image processing, e-learning and mobile systems.

Article submitted 2019-03-22. Resubmitted 2019-05-08. Final acceptance 2019-05-10. Final version published as submitted by the authors.

Quiz Tool Within Moodle and Blackboard Mobile Applications

https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v13i08.10552

Aayat Shdiafat ^(⊠), Randa Obeidallah Hashemite university, Zarqa, Jordan aayat@hu.edu.jo

Abstract—The development of a course is measured through Assessments. Tests and Quizzes measure performance and quality of course progress as well as student understanding of course contents. Most of Learning Management Systems (LMSs) provide a built in quiz tool to help instructor to design a quiz and obtain students records. Nowadays, LMSs companies provide versions (applications) that are compatible with mobile handheld devices. In this paper, we will investigate features available within quiz tool within the open source LMS Moodle and the proprietary LMS Blackboard.

Keywords—Quiz, Assessment, Moodle, Blackboard, Mobile, Application, Online, E-assessment, LMS, Learning

1 Introduction

Handheld devices such as: Laptops, Personal Digital Assistants (PDAs) and smart phones are becoming popular among people as they are portable and affordable wireless microcomputers with handwriting recognition technology. The evolution and continuous expansion of mobile devices has arisen the integration between the educational environment and the modern mobiles. The term mobile learning (Mlearning) refers to the use of handheld IT devices in training, learning and teaching [22]. It facilitates learners to access knowledge anytime and anywhere as well as to merge their learning experiences in a shared collaborative environment. It provides mobility of technology, Mobility of learners, and Mobility of learning [4]. M-learning is developed as an expansion of E-learning (Mobilearn 2003) and considered to be one of the newest trend in education application [29].

Currently, Learning Management System(LMS) is the core of e-learning. LMSs are deployed within institutions and organizations that are involved in education and training. LMS is supposed to support student learning and faculty teaching. Three main LMS vendors are available: Proprietary LMSs, Open-source LMSs, and Cloud-based LMSs [3]. The main differences between the three LMSs are summarized in Table1 [3] [16].

As mobile technology is being improved and expended, most of LMSs provide mobile application in addition to the desktop system to be used by student and instructor. Mobile application can prevent drawback of using web based learning [26].

LMSs mobile applications include built-in tool to benefit of using computer base exam [24]. It is known that e-assessment is important to develop learning method and enhance teaching strategies [18]. Different Quiz tool features are available in different LMSs mobile applications. In this paper, we will investigate features available within quiz tool in open source LMS Moodle and the proprietary LMS Blackboard.

This paper is structured as follows: Section 2 review the definition of mobile learning, section 3 introduce online mobile exam, section 4 examine Quiz features in Moodle mobile LMS and section 5 examine Quiz features in Blackboard mobile LMS, finally discussion and conclusion in section 6.

	Proprietary LMS	Open- Source LMS	Cloud-Based LMS
Cost	Vendors charge a license fee license fee and support is expensive	If not free, OS LMSs are cheaper than proprietary LMSs. No need to pay for maintenance and support	Very cost-effective cost is based on usage. No need to pay for maintenance and support
support and service	Vendors provide Customer service support for each license.	Lack of support and service. Heavy dependency on the online community	Depends on tools you choose.
Authentication	Authentication to software is usually by a Username and password	Authentication to software is usually by a Username and password	Authentication might be ar issue: depends on tools you choose but mainly use Username/ password
Code and Innova- tion	Vendors hold possession of the code. Vendors do not allow users to view or alter the source code.	Vendors share the code with their users. Users have the freedom to share and update the software without re- striction.	Vendors hold possession of the code. Vendors do not allow users to view or alter the source code.
Availability	Available through compa- nies that own the rights to the packages. Free trial is available to try before buy.	- These are freely available to download directly over the net.	Free social applications are available online. Free trial is available to try certain tools before buy.
Installation	Certain LMS tools require special Hardware/Software installation to access and use it.	Certain LMS tools require special Hardware/Software installation to access and use it.	No need to install addi- tional Hardware/Softwar e to access and use it.

Table 1. Differences between the three LMSs

2 Mobile Learning

Mobile learning (M-learning) is another type of education technology; students can study anywhere and anytime; it is the adoption of mobile technology with pedagogical education [8]. M-learning is defined as the use of handheld computer and wireless transmission for learning and education [17]. [21] showed that the mobile learning starts through using SMS in dissemination of educational Information in Russia.

The basic features that distinguish mobile learning from traditional learning method is the ability to acquire knowledge, collaborative learning phases, the ability to combine learning content, instant need of learning and the mobility of learning [9].

According to [2], M-learning is divided into three types: formal, informal and welldirected. The formal type includes some reminder like short message or notification.

The informal type as Facebook include exchange message and feedback to get data, and finally well-directed type uses media like video.

M-learning is a subset of Distance learning (D-learning). D-learning is term used to describe the ability to support learning for those in different geographical place [13]. M-learning is also a subset of e-learning that use electronic material in learning like internet, CDs, audio and video. The relationship between three learning system view in figure 1 [5].



Fig. 1. The Place of M-Learning as Part of E-Learning and D-Learning [5]

M-learning is more preferable due to flexibility to access course content, download lesson notes, submit an assignment, quiz and any other learning activity at any time from mobile devices [10] [1]. In order to design a good mobile learning project, five points are considered: Technology should be accessed anytime and anywhere, holding the technology, connecting to internet via mobile phone connectivity or wireless connection, integrating mobile learning by combining some features, and finally the education institution must support good course content suitable with mobile format [14]. In addition, availability of a mobile learning tool is a must which is a tool specifically designed for mobile learning [23], and mobile learning platform which include wireless network, resource platform and mobile device [30].

[25] designed an android platform application that is integrated with Moodle, the project includes design and implementation for tool in m-learning depending on Moodle, the proposed project is more flexibility, mobility and convenient than traditional e-learning method.

3 Online Mobile Exam

Online exam has spread rapidly in education institution, due to benefits of using computer base exam for both student and instructor such benefits are: reduce cost, reduce errors, and reduce stress when have online exam [24]. Online exam known as online assessment or/and computer based exam mean the use of a system to evaluate student achievement in the course. The objective for using e-assessment is to develop learning method and still enhance teaching strategies [18].

M-learning also include an assessment tool as part of their application. Many projects were designed by researchers to provide Online exam mobile application. Quizzler, M-quiz are quiz systems used in both PCs and mobile. These systems were developed by Victoria University of Wellington. CosyQTI developed by university of Piraeus,and C-POLMILE developed by the university of Birmingham for multiple choice question [20]. Mobi-exam is another example of such applications, it was used by [28] study to achieve mobile exam, the study focus on the development of online exam applied in mobile devices or PCs. The study showed that using such applications provide more flexible, simply, quickly online exam technique. [11] produce a prototype system called MES Mobile Exam System that is available for IOS and Android.

[27] proposed a model for e-exam in mobile devices named Time Adaptive for Mobile E-Exam(TAMEx). The researchers handled the time factor during the exam. This model is based on wireless connection (WLAN IEEE802.11) and RSSI that help to give student extra time if any loss of connection happens during exam, according to result: this model increase reliability of e-exam.

Another application called HTML5 application is used for mobile test; the application depends on Sencha Touch framework. It is suitable for IOS, Android, windows phone and Blackberry. The design of HTML5 app is based on MVC (Model View Controller) [6]. iQuiz tool proposed by [19] and adopted with Moodle to apply quiz, they try to solve limitations in Moodle quiz and iAssign package which supported by Moodle. The limitations as they mention are authoring not simple, iAssign integrated with Moodle without questionnaires, quiz database and questionnaires data not integrated in search tool. iQuiz add new question types, the ability to share and reuse the quiz resources.

Online mobile exam has drawback concentrated in security [12] and cheating. The Moodbile project created by [7] to enhance security of exam in mobile learning. Many weakness point that effect exam security were considered to achieve security in open source learning management system.

[15] Proposed a theoretical model for smartphone devices to authenticate the identity of students before and during the e-assessment session. The proposed model combined biometric techniques (fingerprint and facial recognition) to control the process of student's authentication.

In this paper we will consider Moodle and Blackboard mobile applications and study quiz features within these two applications.

4 Quiz Features in Moodle Mobile LMS

One of the most famous open source LMS is Moodle, with 143,205,877 users in 228 countries [Moodle, 2018]. Moodle is a free open source learning management system application that is adopted by international education institutions. It is available in 35 languages. Moodle provide a blended learning approach. Due to the revolutionary of mobile technology, Moodle provide a mobile application that is compatible with IOS and Android platforms. Through Moodle mobile, student and teacher can

easily access course material, easily upload file with different types, view forum discussion, glossary and course plan, reminder and notifications are also available, Moodle app also deliver quiz and assignment. Moodle is an HTML5 web application, need internet connection to provide their services while its provide some offline features. (Moodle,2018). Moodle mobile app works on devices running Android 4.4+ and IOS 6+. The Moodle mobile quiz require Moodle 3.1 onwards. Or install required plugins for older versions. Plugins are Templates generated when user open the plugin in app, Templates downloaded when user login, or Pure Java script plugins. The Moodle mobile app is an application used by both students and instructors. The design of a compatible quiz in Moodle mobile app is performed with Moodle desktop platform only, the ability to create a quiz using Moodle mobile app are not supported yet. It is important to highlight that quizzes in Moodle mobile app are not supported in safe browsers. Quiz features available in Moodle mobile Quiz activity module are described below:

4.1 Question types

The Quiz activity module is used to design quizzes with question types compatible with mobile app. Standard Question types are suitable for mobile access and can be graded directly, such types are: (Calculated, calculated multi-choice, calculated simple, Drag and drop into text, Drag and drop markers, Drag and drop onto image, Description, Essay, Matching, Embedded Answers, Multiple choice, Short Answer, Numerical, Random short-answer matching, Select missing words and True/False). Essay questions which require uploading a file from student are manually graded.

Third-party questions are not compatible for mobile app quiz such as: Combined, and STACK types which need plugins to be installed. Also, the image is not supported in Moodle mobile quiz.

4.2 Question bank

The question bank or bool is available in Moodle mobile quiz to help instructor to assemble a record that contains all questions divided in categories. Question bank can be used to help instructor to select all or part of these questions when creating a quiz. The quiz will not be available in Moodle mobile app, if the quiz is designed by using a Question bank that has an incompatible mobile question type. In this case, the quiz must be performed through Moodle desktop.

4.3 Question layout

The design of a compatible quiz in Moodle mobile app is performed with Moodle desktop platform only. The Moodle mobile quiz support the ability to determine number of questions per page, as well as support reshuffling and randomizing the appearing of question. The attribute that prevent student to move to next question if the current question is not answered known as blocked question is not available in Moodle mobile quiz.
4.4 Quiz attempt

The ability to validate the duration of online quiz attempt is supported. Instructor can determine the quiz duration from start-date/time to end-date/time. The quiz can be attempted after the start date/time only and must submitted before finish date/time. Instructor can determine number of times a student can attempts the quiz. Also, the time of quiz attempt is supported as well as the option to save for later and continue from last attempt. A massage will appear if the user tries to submit when connection lose or not connected to internet.

A remarkable feature is available which is the ability to download and attempt the quiz later offline. This is applicable if no time limit is set and no network address is required. Offline quiz is available through enabling the option "allow quiz to attempt offline in mobile app". When using offline the following options are not compatible: timer, access restriction by password or subnet, and the deferred feedback with or without CBM (Certainty-based marking).

4.5 Quiz grade and rubric

Both instructor and student can view grade for a quiz or for all course. Instructor can view the submission of quiz/assignment. also, student can see grade as weight and percentage, the total contribution of grade from all course are supported. Standard Question types are suitable for mobile access and can be graded directly except essay questions which require uploading a file from student and manual grading. For offline attempt; student can view the grade later since student can't submit the quiz offline, massage "finish but not submitted to the sit" is presented.

The instructor can write a feedback for student mark present in grade book, also the correct answer can be presented for students. A statistical report is provided for instructor for each question and the percent of answer for each choice made by students. Moodle mobile app provide an advance grading method; however, it does not apply a rubric to a mobile quiz. Rubrics are not yet supported.

4.6 Quiz authentication

Beside the course password, Instructor can create a password for the quiz to allow students to access the quiz. This process is performed during the design of the quiz. For security reasons, and to make sure that quiz is attempted from a certain network; IP network addresses will be considered. Quizzes in Moodle mobile app are not supported in safe browsers.

5 Quiz Features in Blackboard Mobile LMS

Blackboard is a proprietary LMS that support interactive teaching and learning across 90 countries reaching approximately 100 million users in over 30 languages (Blackboard, 2018). Blackboard provide two mobile applications designed for student

and instructor. Students use Blackboard app to view course content and material, achieve assignment, quiz, interact with other student via massage or via discussion forum with the ability to receive notification and reminder. while Blackboard instructor app is available for teacher to view course material, grade of assignments, upload file and send massage to student.

The Blackboard app and instructor app are available on IOS 4.0+, Android 2.2+, and Windows devices. For best used, it is advisable to upgrade the application with the latest updated version for without any extra fees, if Blackboard is deployed by the institution.

The Mobile quiz is created by using Blackboard desktop environment only and can be accessed through mobile and /or browser desktop, till now you can't create the quiz through mobile device or via Blackboard instructor app (Blackboard 2018). Quiz features available in Blackboard Mobile Quiz activity module are described below:

5.1 Question types

Blackboard mobile quiz support many types of questions, such as: true/false, multiple choice, short answer, essay, Hot spot, File Response such that only image file types will be accepted by the Blackboard Mobile Learn app. We noticed that images in test questions are not displayed. Incompatible mobile questions within the quiz require either to open the test in a desktop browser or in the in-app browser. When you include incompatible mobile question types in a test, the app treats the test as mobile incompatible and a browser is needed. If all the questions in quiz are compatible, then the randomize of question and the answer are supported.

5.2 Question bank

Instructor can create, preview and update question in database and then instructor can use all or part of them. Question bank or bool questions can be reused in other quizzes. However, question bank or pool are supported in Blackboard mobile application if and only if it includes questions with supported types. Otherwise, quiz attempt will be performed using Blackboard learn environment in in-app browser or desktop browser.

5.3 Question layout

The Mobile quiz is created by using Blackboard learn desktop environment only. If all questions in quiz are mobile compatible, then randomizing of questions and answers is supported. Mobile appearance of questions in test; "One at a time question presentation" option that allow one question per page is not compatible in mobile quiz.

5.4 Quiz attempt

The ability to set the duration of online quiz attempt is supported. Instructor can determine the quiz duration from start date/time to end date/time. The quiz can be attempted after the start date/time only and must be submitted before finish date/time. Instructor can determine number of times a student can attempt the quiz especially if it is self-assessment quiz. Timer option is not compatible with mobile quiz. However, the option "save for later" and continue from last session is available. The message " you can't save for later" will appear, if instructor prevents this option and requires submitting quiz with the first quiz attempt.

In Blackboard, attempting quiz offline is not supported. Student can view course contents, grades, feedback offline but cannot download quiz for offline attempt.

5.5 Quiz grade and rubric

Grade for overall course or for each quiz with feedback is supported. Blackboard app does not support feedback as attached file, new-box view annotation which is an inline grading comments, nor the response for each question answer feedback, these options are available only through desktop browser. The score of each question in quiz (correct or not) is not supported in mobile quiz.

Instructor can choose to enter the grade via grade forum discussion or individual discussion, and then student can see his/her grade with instructor feedback.

In the app, quiz rubrics are supported. Instructor can associate a rubric with the quiz. Student can view the rubric, but they need to access the course on a web browser to see the scores the instructor selected for each criterion.

Blackboard instructor app provide the summary of number of students submitted and overall class average, results can be viewed in graph. Details of assessment is available, like number of attempts and if a rubric is used. Other options are provided like ready to grade, ready to post, posted grade and not submitted grade. However, grading test is not supported with instructor app. Instructor need Blackboard environment for grading. instructor can add comment for students as feedback for quiz when post grades.

5.6 Quiz authentication

Beside the course password, Instructor can create a password for the quiz to allow students to access the quiz. This process is performed during the design of the quiz.

6 Discussion and Conclusion

Blackboard applications and Moodle application are widely used in mobile learning. This paper is concentrated on quiz tool available in these applications based on features mentioned before. Blackboard have separate mobile applications for student and instructor while Moodle have one application for all.

Both of the mobile applications share many quiz criteria: Moodle and blackboard have question bank for supported type of questions, Moodle app support more question types than Blackboard app. Moreover, layout feature is available for both under some restriction, and both support an unlimited time of attempt. if student did not finish the quiz the feature "save for later" is also supported in both mobile LMS. In addition, notification massage is used to remind students of a quiz is supported in Moodle and Blackboard, password for authentication is utilized in both applications.

Toward designing a quiz, instructor need to use desktop platform version for both Moodle and Blackboard. Unsupported questions in Blackboard app force student to open the quiz in app browser or desktop browser.

It is important to point that Moodle mobile quiz is not supported in safe browser. For un supported questions, student need to open desktop browser to complete the quiz.

Offline quiz feature is supported in Moodle app quiz; this feature can be defined as the ability to download a quiz to answer it later offline. this feature available only if the instructor activates the option "allow quiz to attempt offline in mobile app" when create a quiz, with offline quiz some features not work like timer, password, and the deferred feedback. The offline quiz not supported in Blackboard app.

Moodle app need to use plugins, which include 3 different types: Templates generated and downloaded when the user opens the plugins and Pure Java script plugins. The first type the template of plugin will be generated and download when user open the plugin in app. The second type Templates downloaded on login and rendered using JS data. Finally; Pure Java script plugins, this type need when you use feature like capture link in apps. If there is a question in quiz require a plugin not supported in the student's device the quiz will not work. While the users of blackboard apps do not need any plugins since they must use the latest edition.

In this paper, we have presented the relation between mobile learning, electronic learning and distance learning, and highlighted the features of quiz tool in Moodle app and blackboard app.

It is important to mention that cheating cannot be controlled in both apps unless the quiz is held in a closed room. Using mobile devices means that students are able to access downloadable course material and use them to answer the quiz. For future; we need to handle this issue to assure accurate quiz results.

7 References:

- Baran, E. (2014). A Review of Research on Mobile Learning in Teacher Education. Educational Technology & Society, 17 (4), 17–32.
- [2] Brink, J., 2011. M-learning: The future of training technology. ProQuest Education Journal.
- [3] Dobre, I. (2015). Learning management systems for higher education An overview of available options for higher education organizations. Procedia-Social and Behavioral Sciences, 180, 313–320. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sbspro.2015.02.122</u>
- [4] El-Hussein, M. O. M., & Cronje, J. C. (2010). Defining mobile learning in the higher education landscape. Journal of Educational Technology & Society, 13(3), 12-21.

- [5] Georgiev T., Georgieva E., and A. (2004). M-Learning a New Stage of E-Learning Smrikarov, International Conference on Computer Systems and Technologies - ompSys-Tech'2004, 4(28). <u>https://doi.org/10.1145/1050330.1050437</u>
- [6] Ji, Z., Zhang, X., Ganchev, I., & ODroma, M. (2013, July). Development of a senchatouch mtest mobile app for a mlearning system. In Advanced Learning Technologies (ICALT), 2013 IEEE 13th International Conference on (pp. 210-211). IEEE. <u>https://doi.org/10.110</u> <u>9/icalt.2013.64</u>
- [7] Kaiiali, M., Ozkaya, A., Altun, H., Haddad, M. H., & Alier, M. (2016). Designing a secure exam management system (SEMS) for M-learning environments. <u>https://doi.org/10.110</u> <u>9/tlt.2016.2524570</u>
- [8] Kukulska-Hulme, A. (2009). Will mobile learning change language learning?. ReCALL, 21(2), 157-165. <u>https://doi.org/10.1017/s0958344009000202</u>
- [9] Loomba, K., & Loomba, P. (2009). Mobile learning in knowledge development scenario. DESIDOC Journal of Library & Information Technology, 29(5), 54. <u>https://doi.org/10.14</u> <u>429/djlit.29.270</u>
- [10] Marwan, M. E., Madar, A. R., & Fuad, N. (2013). An overview of mobile application in learning for student of Kolej Poly-Tech Mara (KPTM) by using mobile phone. Journal of Asian Scientific Research, 3(6), 527.
- [11] Meng, Z., & Lu, J. (2011). Implementing the emerging mobile technologies in facilitating mobile exam system. IACSIT Press.
- [12] Miguel Moneo, J., Caballé Llobet, S., Xhafa, F., & Prieto Blázquez, J. (2015). Security in Online Web Learning Assessment. Providing an Effective Trustworthiness Approach to Support e-Learning Teams. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s11280-014-0320-2</u>
- [13] Moore, J. L., Dickson-Deane, C., & Galyen, K. (2011). e-Learning, online learning, and distance learning environments: Are they the same?. The Internet and Higher Education, 14(2), 129-135. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.iheduc.2010.10.001</u>
- [14] Naismith, L., & Corlett, D. (2006). Reflections on success: A retrospective of the mLearn conference series 2002-2005. In Across generations and cultures, mLearn 2006 book of abstracts (p. 118-20). Banff, Canada: mLearn 2006.
- [15] Obeidallah, R., Al Ahmad, A., Farouq, F. and Awad, S. (2015) 'Students authentication in e-assessment sessions: a theoretical biometric model for smartphone devices', Int. J. Business Information Systems, Vol. 19, No. 4, pp.450–464. <u>https://doi.org/10.1504/ijbis.20</u> <u>15.070204</u>
- [16] Pankaja, N., & Mukund Raj, P. K. (2013). Proprietary software versus open source software for education. American Journal of Engineering Research, 2(7), 124–130.
- [17] Park, Y. (2011). A pedagogical framework for mobile learning: Categorizing educational applications of mobile technologies into four types. The International Review of Research in Open and Distributed Learning, 12(2), 78-102. <u>https://doi.org/10.19173/irrodl.v12i2.</u> 791
- [18] Robles M. and BraathenS. (2002)," Online Assessment Techniques ", Delta Pi Epsilon Journal, VoL XLIV No. I Winter, 2002
- [19] Rodrigues, J. R. A., Brandão, L. O., Nascimento, M., Rodrigues, P., Brandão, A. A., Giroire, H., & Auzende, O. (2013, October). iQuiz: integrated assessment environment to improve Moodle Quiz. In Frontiers in Education Conference, 2013 IEEE (pp. 293-295). IEEE. https://doi.org/10.1109/fie.2013.6684834
- [20] Romero, C., Ventura, S., & De Bra, P. (2009). Using mobile and web-based computerized tests to evaluate university students. Computer Applications in Engineering Education, 17(4), 435-447. <u>https://doi.org/10.1002/cae.20242</u>

- [21] Sapargaliyev, D. (2012, November). Development of mobile learning in higher education of Russia. In Interactive Mobile and Computer Aided Learning (IMCL), 2012 International Conference on (pp. 48-51). IEEE. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/imcl.2012.6396449</u>
- [22] Sarrab, M., Elgamel, L., & Aldabbas, H. (2012). Mobile learning (m-learning) and educational environments. International journal of distributed and parallel systems, 3(4), 31. <u>https://doi.org/10.1115/1.860045_ch68</u>
- [23] Serafimov, L. (2013). Mobile learning platforms. The 9th International Scientific.
- [24] Sindre, G., & Vegendla, A. (2015). E-exams versus paper exams: a comparative analysis of cheating-related security threats and countermeasures. In Norwegian Information Security Conference (NISK) (Vol. 8, No. 1, pp. 34-45).
- [25] Singh, V. (2015, December). Android based student learning system. In Computer Science and Engineering (APWC on CSE), 2015 2nd Asia-Pacific World Congress on (pp. 1-9). IEEE. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/apwccse.2015.7476228</u>
- [26] Singh, G., Antony, D. A., Leavline, E. J., and Selvam, J. (2017). Mobile Application for m-Learning. International Journal of Advanced Research in Computer Science, 8(3).
- [27] Sukadarmika, G., Hartati, R. S., & Linawati, N. P. S. (2018). Introducing TAMEx Model for Availability of E-Exam in Wireless Environment. methods, 2, 3. <u>https://doi.org/10. 1109/icoiact.2018.8350741</u>
- [28] Tufekci, A., Ekinci, H., & Kose, U. (2013). Development of an internet-based exam system for mobile environments and evaluation of its usability. Mevlana International Journal of Education, 3(4), 57-74. <u>https://doi.org/10.13054/mije.13.59.3.4</u>
- [29] Wu, W. H., Wu, Y. C. J., Chen, C. Y., Kao, H. Y., Lin, C. H., & Huang, S. H. (2012). Review of trends from mobile learning studies: A meta-analysis. Computers & Education, 59(2), 817-827. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2012.03.016</u>
- [30] Yao, X., and Ma, R. (2017). Design of Management System of Mobile Learning Platform. Management & Engineering, (29), 8-14.
- [31] Yu-mei, P., Xue-jun, Z., & Li, L. (2010, March). Learning can happen anytime and anywhere: The application of m-learning in medical education. In Education Technology and Computer Science (ETCS), 2010 Second International Workshop on(Vol. 2, pp. 508-511). IEEE. <u>https://moodle.net/stats/ https://blackboard.com https://doi.org/10.1109/etcs.201 0.114</u>

8 Authors

Aayat Shdaifat works as a Tutor in Basic Science, Department in The Hashemite University. She obtained her Masters in Computer Information System from Jordan University in 2009. Her research interests are involved in Services Composition, elearning and information system.

Randa Obeidallah works as a Tutor in Computer Information System Department in The Hashemite University. She obtained her Masters in Computer Information System from Jordan University in 2009. Her Research interests are involved in Information Retrieval, e-learning Systems, and Information systems.

Article submitted 2019-03-24. Resubmitted 2019-04-28. Final acceptance 2019-05-10. Final version published as submitted by the authors.

User-Centred Design in Content Management System Development: The Case of EMasters

https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v13i08.10727

Jelena Nakić ([⊠]) University of Split, Split, Croatia jelena.nakic@pmfst.hr

Antonija Burčul Science High School, Split, Croatia

Nikola Marangunić University of Split, Split, Croatia

Abstract-Including users in design and development of an interactive product is crucial to achieve high level of usability. Content management systems have two categories of users, content creators and content consumers, and designers of these systems have to considers the needs of both user groups. In design of interactive learning systems, special attention has to be given to the process of learning, which means that functional, accessible and usable interface has to serve the purpose of knowledge acquisition. Designing for mobile learning brings additional challenges due to the small screens of mobile devices. The paper describes the process of utilization of user-centred design in development of a simple content management system for learning called EMasters. The aim of the EMasters is to enable teachers to easily create and organize courses which will be delivered to students to facilitate web-based and mobile learning. According to the user-centred design approach, teachers and students are involved in iterative process of design, implementation and evaluation of EMasters. Evaluation study used complementary methods and provided quantitative and qualitative feedback. The usability score reached good level and the guidelines for redesign of the system interface are drown. According to the obtained results, proposed framework is confirmed to be applicable in user-centred design of content management systems in general. In addition, the directions for adjustment of the framework for specific cases are provided.

Keywords—Mobile learning, user-centred design, user interface, content management system, usability, rapid prototyping, user testing

1 Introduction

The concept of learning anywhere anytime is rather old. If we consider textbooks as the first mobile learning devices, as suggested by Searson [1], then learning anywhere and anytime begins with the students reading textbooks on the bus on their way

to school. Contemporary digital learning environments support this concept since they are typically web-based and therefore available by any device connected to the Internet. In addition to learning, they bring new affordances such as online testing, communication with teachers and collaboration with peers. The pervasive owning of smartphones, tablets and other mobile devices allow learners to move freely while learning and to communicate with peers faster than ever before. Furthermore, the emerging paradigm of ubiquitous learning brings the dimension of "anyhow" to the plethora of benefits of mobile learning [2], [3], [4]. Recent trends in digital education also include adaptive learning systems, serious games and virtual environments. Research in intelligent and adaptive user interfaces enabled development of personalized learning environments that address user individual differences and deliver individually tailored content and learning paths through the course [4], [5], [6]. Introducing gamification elements into digital learning resources keeps students more focused and engaged in learning [7]. In simulated game-like environments such as 3D virtual worlds, serious games and virtual reality environments, learners can face real situations and learn directly from these first-person experiences [8], [9], [10], [11].

The common goal of all technological interventions in learning, including abovementioned trends, is to increase the ease of use of learning applications and to improve the learning outcomes of learners. These applications are usually highly interactive thus keeping the focus and motivation at learning. All these desirable features are results of application of the principles of interaction design and learner-centred design [12].

Considering specifically mobile learning, today learning applications are competing with prevalent usage of mobile phones for chatting, music, videos and social networks. Learning is no more a single process that is closed in controlled environment such as for example virtual worlds or virtual laboratories [9], [11]. Instead, learning activities are frequently interrupted with notifications from various applications that distract student while learning. Thus, besides the fact that uncontrollable usage of mobile phones leads to decreased learning performance of students in general [13], in case of mobile learning the process of learning is directly affected by the events at the same screen on which the learning occurs. In those circumstances, the importance of good design of learning applications for mobile devices becomes crucial. If the student is frustrated by the learning application he is currently using, the chances that after responding on a chat he will get back to learning are probably lower than in case of pleasant and meaningful learning experience. This fact raises the need for further research on finding more efficient ways of using mobile phones for learning.

The paper presents the process of design and development of a simple content management system for learning called the EMasters. The system is responsive i.e. adapted to small screens of mobile devices such as laptops, tablets and smartphones. The development cycle is an iterative process which is conducted by the principles of user-centred design.

The paper is structured as follows. After explaining the rationale for the study in the introductory section, Section 2 provides a theoretical framework with short review of online educational systems, their strengths and weaknesses. The theoretical section continues with definitions of the terms and methods used in the study. Section 3 brief-

ly presents the key points in design and development of the EMasters. Section 4 describes the procedure of conducted evaluation study and the results follow in Section 5. In Section 6 the obtained results are discussed, and the implications of findings are brought. Section 7 provides closing remarks.

2 Theoretical Background

2.1 Online educational systems

Many academic institutions and private organizations make continuous efforts and invest significant resources in providing online learning opportunities for their students or employees and network technologies continuously develop new possibilities for successful utilization of online leaning for personal growth [14]. Therefore the pool of learners is now expanded from the "traditional" students to a much broader scope which includes employees in a company or self-motivated learners who choose to attend some courses in their free time for individual development. The most common forms of online education in institutional settings are Massive Open Online Courses (MOOCs) [15] and Learning Management Systems (LMSs), e.g. Moodle [16] as a category of Content Management Systems (CMSs) specially indented for learning. Despite the different definitions and basic functions of these systems, as explained in [17], they aim to provide high-quality education to the cohorts of students in a cost-effective manner. They are widely implemented in high academic institutions, public and private organizations, either to support blended learning or to provide fully on-line education. These solutions are convenient for large institutions because teachers and management have control over learning achievements of the participants. In addition, they may obtain numerous reports on learning analytics, which is the basis for development of new policies and strategies and for progress of the institution.

However, researchers suggest that these institutional systems still do not succeed to meet the requirements. Some of frequently reported weak points are: high costs of development and continuous maintenance; user interface is often non-responsive, i.e. not adapted to small screens typical of mobile devices; students sometimes oppose to mandatory software, while teachers, who are expected to design learning content, are sometimes not ready to take this new role of course creators [18], [19], [20]. As a part of an answer to these challenges, small e-learning applications or microlearning applications have appeared lately as an alternative to learning content in typically large e-learning systems [21]. Microlearning as a novel type of digital instruction can contribute to interactivity in learning experience due to a very easy form of application and the ability of simple integration into online educational systems and virtual environments [21].

The common feature of all these forms of educational applications is that teacher/instructional designer need not to have any programming skills to be able to successfully create learning content. According to the definition of the CMSs, which are

in focus of this paper, teachers are provided with tools and features for creating the content of online courses and for moderating interaction with their students [17].

2.2 User-centred design

User-centred design (UCD) is covered by ISO standards related to a broader scope of human-centred design and usability [22]. ISO 9241-210:2010 describes requirements of human-centred design principles and activities that are related to the usage of computer systems. The standard concerns with ways to enhance human-system interaction through usage of both hardware and software components of interactive computer systems. The standard is intended to be used by professionals who manage the design and development of interactive systems. Figure 1 shows typical stages of UCD according to ISO:

- Plan the UCD process
- Understand and specify context of use
- Specify user requirements
- Produce design solutions
- Evaluate designs against requirements
- Design solution meets user requirements

In iterative process of designing, implementation and evaluation several phases are reoccurring as many times as needed to reach the final stage in which design solution meets user requirements to a great extent.



Fig. 1. The user-centred design process according to ISO 9241-210:2010

For software designers building interactive learning applications, Quintana, Krajcik, and Soloway [23] extended the traditional definition of UCD approach and proposed a definition of learner-centred design. They have considered three dimensions of interaction in learning systems: the audience (users vs. learners), the addressed problem (using tools vs. learning work) and underlying approach (supporting action vs. supporting learning). When designed for learners, educational software must address several unique needs of learners as users: the concept of learning by doing, individual differences and different levels of motivation [24].

Specifically, when designing CMSs, two categories of users have to be considered, namely the content creators and the content consumers. In interactive learning systems, content creators are teachers or instructional designers while content consumers are learners who use delivered content for knowledge acquisition. To ensure that system will be adopted by the users, both user categories must be engaged in the process of system design. The users expect to be able to control the interaction and user enrolment in design process is crucial to achieve this goal. This is especially important in informal learning where there is no institutional incentive or requirement for using specific software. To be adopted and really used, an application for both institutional and informal learning has to provide appealing user experience for teachers and learners.

The UCD approach is focusing on usability [25]. According to ISO [22] usability is: "extent to which a system, product or service can be used by specified users to achieve specified goals with effectiveness, efficiency and satisfaction in a specified context of use". Recently published new ISO Standard for Usability, Usability Reports and Usability Measures, ISO 9241-11:2018 extend this definition and explains that usability should not be considered as a property of a system but as an outcome of use [26].

Usability evaluation is regularly conducted during the evaluation phase of UCD process described in Figure 1. Moreover, evaluation and design are closely integrated in this process and some of the same methods are used both in evaluation and in the phase of specifying user requirements [12]. Methods of usability evaluation include [27]:

- Usability testing an evaluation process with users doing real tasks on a prototype or real system, while carefully observing their behaviour and emotional response during the interaction; also called user testing;
- Usability inspection method in which usability experts evaluate the interface according to a set of usability guidelines, with no user involvement;
- Usability inquiry method of gathering user feedback after the interaction with the system, usually through surveys, interviews of focus groups.

The methods differ in nature and in number of participants. Expert inspection requires significantly smaller number of participants compared to methods that involve end users. Since it may be very hard to find five usability experts to do the evaluation [28], user testing and usability inquiry are more frequently applied. However, to get different perspectives on the interface, research suggests triangulation of methods when possible [12].

Qualitative methods are usually conducted through formative evaluation to check the compliance with user requirements and to provide guidelines for interface redesign [29]. On the other hand, quantitative methods are more often used as a part of summative evaluation to confirm that design has reached high level of perceived usability [12], [29]. In the rest of the paper, we will explain in details the methods which are chosen to be applied in usability evaluation of EMasters, namely the thinking aloud protocol as one of user testing techniques followed by several questionnaires and an interview used in post-session usability inquiry (see Chapter 4).

3 Design and Development of the EMasters

The aim of the EMasters is to enable teachers to easily create and organize courses which will be delivered to students to facilitate web-based and mobile learning. Teachers register to the system, make courses and organize their content. As part of the course, they may write text and import other objects such as pictures, videos and microlearning applications. Besides learning content, the teachers can make quizzes for evaluation or self-evaluation of knowledge acquisition process. They can update and delete any piece of the course they have created. The application also has a forum section in which both the teachers and the students can start a discussion on a topic and reply to previous comments. In addition to these two user groups, the application has an administrator who is in charge of the system and controls the proper entry of all data.

The first design of the EMasters was made as a wireframe e.g. paper prototype for desktop, web-based and mobile interfaces. In a simplified process of UCD, that involves iteration of design, implementation and evaluation, the pilot testing of the first design was carried out with five students of University in Split, Croatia, Faculty of Science. Three participants tested the wireframe in teacher's role and two participants in student's role. According to the feedback from pilot testing, the second wireframe was made. Redesign included several changes in teacher's interface and student's interface. For example, buttons for updating and deleting a chapter in teacher's interface were replaced with hyperlinks. This feature is shown in Figure 2, as developed later in the implementation phase. In addition, the forum page, which shows a topic, was redesigned in a way that the field for entering the reply is enlarged and the button for submitting the entry is red instead of green. Figure 3 shows the forum page with the theme "Regular expressions" which is a topic in the "Unix" course.



Fig. 2. Homepage of the UNIX course in EMasters as displayed for teachers (on the left) and students (on the right)

EMasters		📕 Course 🔎 Forum 🕂 Add Course 🕻 Logoul
	Comments	
All comments on theme: Re	gularni izrazi	
First post on theme: profesor001	Data created: Aug. 23, 2017, 12:46 p.m.	Comment: New forum topic. Please, write your opinions on the new topic.
Other comments:		
Comment profession": How locations? Comment profession": University at a lab terms Comment profession": (Diababia Comment profession": (Diababia Comment profession": (Profession") Comment students/on": Marken kom. Comment students/on": Marken kom. Comment students/on": Informatic prosts/234 Comment andelabit: Marken da property		
Add Common		

Fig. 3. Screenshot of a forum topic on theme "Regular expressions" in EMasters

The EMasters application was created in Python programming language using Django framework [30]. Django makes use of Model-Template-View (MTV) application architecture as presented in Figure 4. Model is linked to a database where the data is being stored or retrieved from. This layer contains all the information regarding data storage, data connections, entry limitations, mandatory or non-mandatory data, etc. Template is a presentation of the model, i.e. HTML webpage that contains data with instructions on how the webpage should be displayed. The View in MTV architecture serves as a bridge between the other two layers. The user accesses the server using a web browser, after which Django ensures to open a specific view at the user's request. Finally, the database is accessed, and the data are used to display the webpage in the browser according to the request.



Fig. 4. Model-Template-View (MTV) software architecture [28]

To adapt the interface to devices with different screen sizes, Bootstrap is used as a front-end framework. Figure 5 shows responsive design of a typical content page for teacher, displayed at laptop and iPhone6/7/8. Layout of the same page for students does not have hyperlinks for updating and deleting existing objects nor the hyperlinks at the bottom of the page that enable adding new content and creating a quiz.



Fig. 5. Responsive design of a typical content page for teacher/course creator in EMasters

4 Usability Evaluation

Evaluation study was conducted in several individual user sessions with slightly different procedures for participants who accepted the role of teachers and the ones who took the role of students. The study begins with teachers' sessions. The students' sessions are conducted after all the teachers have finished creating their courses in the EMasters. Thus, the students were free to choose a course from the pool of courses delivered by the system. All participants followed the same method in the evaluation study but with different instruments according to their role. The evaluation procedure for each participant begins with user testing technique called thinking aloud protocol, which is conducted with teachers in the processes of course creating and later again with students in the processes of learning in the EMasters. The following steps involve usability inquiry methods (see Chapter 2.2.), namely post-session survey and semi-structured interview. Figure 6 briefly presents procedure of usability study with the steps of individual sessions carried out with teachers and students.



Fig. 6. The method of EMasters usability study

Users who accepted the role of teachers were asked to register in the EMasters and to create an online course on a topic of their choice. They were instructed to make learning content with minimum two chapters and a quiz. They were allowed, but not explicitly told, to import different types of external files, such as images and videos. The structure of the course was not precisely set. However, the teachers were suggested to follow the ADDIE model of instructional design [31] in the phases of course design and development. The teachers were able to review developed course by taking the role of student.

In the learning session, students were invited to register in the system and to select one of the actual learning courses. They were free to explore the content and take quizzes at their own pace and in order they prefer. They were also asked to find the forum and write a comment regarding one of the topics.

Both teachers and students were encouraged to think aloud while doing their tasks. The supervisor of the study observes the user behaviour in real time. He notes the user's comments as well as key aspects of the interaction such as unexpected steps or mistakes the user makes in the process of course creating or learning. The supervisor does not help the users in achieving their goals. After all users' sessions are completed, the evaluator's notebook becomes valuable resource of potential usability problems of both teacher's and student's interface.

4.1 Post-session survey

Following the procedure presented in Figure 6, after individual hands-on session in the EMasters, each participant was invited to fill in a survey. The post-session survey was hosted on Google Forms and included three sections: SUS questionnaire, qualitative feedback section and background section. Questions in the first two sections were

the same for both of the user roles, while background sections were specifically designed to be different for teachers and students.

The SUS [32], [33] is a standardized questionnaire for measuring perceived usability of the system and is used worldwide for overall usability evaluation of different systems [34], [35]. The reliability, validity and sensitivity of the SUS was confirmed in numerous studies as reported by Lewis and Sauro [36]. In the same paper they have provided a curved grading scale to interpret the overall SUS score and this scale will be used in our usability study. Although Brooke initially limited the interpretation of SUS to the overall score [32], Lewis and Sauro conducted a comprehensive psychometric analysis of the SUS and suggested that SUS results could also be interpreted by individual items [36]. Based on regression analysis they have provided item benchmarks related to overall SUS scores. Table 1 in the Results section of the paper shows all the SUS questions.

The second section of the post-session survey is designed to obtain qualitative feedback from the users. It included open-ended questions: What did you like the most in the EMaster system? What are the flaws? What improvements do you suggest? The users' subjective opinion about their experience in using the EMasters application can reveal major flows in design and help us develop guidelines for redesign of the system interface.

Finally, in the background section of the survey, we obtained demographic data of the users who participated in evaluation study. There were several multichoice questions, related to the role of the participants. The background section in the teacher's survey collected age, affiliation and the level of previous experience in using elearning systems as well as in creating online courses. On the other hand, in survey for students, the background section asked their age, time spent in online learning and specifically in mobile learning as well as previous experience in using e-learning systems.

4.2 Semi-structured interview

Semi-structured interview is carried out as an addition to qualitative feedback obtained from thinking aloud protocol and the post-session survey. The interview was conducted individually with each participant, immediately after they filled in the survey. The interview usually begun with several questions related to the answers that user provided in the survey and then continued in form of free dialog. The users had the opportunity to review their experience in using the system and to explain what improvements of the interface they would suggest and why.

Using complementary methods of usability evaluation, namely quantitative and qualitative methods, we can get deep insight in usability issues of the system being developed. The SUS gives us the score which reveals the severity of usability problems while qualitative methods may provide initiatives and concrete guidelines for interface redesign which is supposed to reduce recognized problems in interaction and increase the overall usability of the system.

5 Results

The study was conducted in the autumn semester 2018 at University in Split, Croatia, Faculty of Science. To obtain potentially wide scale of usability issues, the participants were recruited from students, pupils, teachers and general population. The results are presented separately for teacher's and student's interface.

5.1 Teacher's interface

Seven participants volunteered to use the application in the role of teacher/course creator. Age of participants ranged from 24 to 45 with the mean of 37.17 and standard deviation of 7.97. One participant was a student of educational vocations, two participants were high school teachers and one high school pedagogist. Since the application is intended to be used in informal learning, three participants were recruited from general population. Previous experience in creating online learning content ranged from novices (3 participants) to experts (1 participant).

All participants successfully created a course on a topic of their interest. The SUS items along with the mean scores and standard deviations for teacher's interface are shown in Table 1. The scores are ranged 0 to 4. It has to be noted here that even numbered questions have reversed polarity and their score is calculated accordingly, as described in [32], [33]. This means that for odd numbered questions the score in Table 1 represent the level of users' agreement with the statement while for even numbered questions the score represents the level of users' disagreement with the statement. Thus, for example, the score 2.71 on item no. 2. "*I found the system unnecessarily complex*" means that users rated simplicity of the interface with 2.71 or 67.75%. As a result, the higher score in Table 1 always stands for higher level of perceived users' satisfaction with the EMasters.

SUS question	Mean	SD
1. I think that I would like to use this system frequently.	3.00	0.82
2. I found the system unnecessarily complex.	2.71	1.38
3. I thought the system was easy to use.	3.14	0.38
4. I think that I would need the support of a technical person to be able to use this system.	1.86	1.07
5. I found the various functions in this system were well integrated.	3.00	0.82
6. I thought there was too much inconsistency in this system.	2.86	1.35
I would imagine that most people would learn to use this game very quickly.	2.71	0.49
8. I found the system very awkward to use.	3.14	0.69
9. I felt very confident using the system.	2.86	0.69
10. I needed to learn a lot of things before I could get going with this system.	3.14	0.90

Table 1. SUS results for teacher's interface

Overall SUS score for teacher's interface is given in Table 2. The obtained value means that satisfaction of participants who took the role of course creators is 71.1 %.

Considering individual ratings from participants, the minimum individual grade is 2.2 (55%) and the maximum 3.4 (85%).

Table 2. Summary of the SUS for teacher's interface

Ν	Mean	SD	Min	Max
7	2.84	0.93	2.2	3.4

In the qualitative feedback section of the post-session survey six of seven participants wrote positive impressions. Most of them appreciated the simplicity of the interface. The comments also included the "ease of use", "nice and intuitive design" as well as highly functional interaction. Five users reported that have experienced some flows of the EMasters system. They were not satisfied with: restricted possibilities in design of page content i.e. the positioning of objects on a page; the absence of data on students' usage and achievements; and the fact that quiz allows only multiple-choice type of questions. These issues were clarified in individual interviews with each participant. In addition, a user suggested that teacher should be able to edit only his/her own courses.

5.2 Student's interface

In the role of student, 14 volunteers took part in the study. Mean age was 28.28, with standard deviation of 10.15, minimum age of 12 and maximum age of 43. Two participants were primary school pupils, two high school students and one university student. The rest were adults with various backgrounds. Prior experience in using computers and mobile devices for learning was almost equally distributed in the sample (rare, sometimes, often, very often, regularly).

All participants registered in the system, took time for learning and taking the quiz on selected lesson. All of them succeeded in finding a forum and leaving a comment. The SUS results obtained from students are presented in Table 3 and the overall SUS score is given in Table 4. Overall students' satisfaction is 68.9%. The lowest individual student's grade is 1.6 (40%) and the highest grade is 3.8 (95%).

SUS question	Mean	SD
1. I think that I would like to use this system frequently.	2.43	1.16
2. I found the system unnecessarily complex.	2.86	1.17
3. I thought the system was easy to use.	2.79	1.42
4. I think that I would need the support of a technical person to be able to use this system.	2.50	1.40
5. I found the various functions in this system were well integrated.	2.50	0.65
6. I thought there was too much inconsistency in this system.	2.86	1.23
7. I would imagine that most people would learn to use this game very quickly.	3.07	1.14
8. I found the system very awkward to use.	2.57	1.34
9. I felt very confident using the system.	3.43	0.76
10. I needed to learn a lot of things before I could get going with this system.	2.57	1.60

Table 3. SUS results for student's interface

Ν	Mean	SD	Min	Max
14	2.76	1.22	1.6	3.8

Table 4. Summary of the SUS for student's interface

In the post-session survey, we obtained various feedback from users in the student's role. Four participants did not write comments regarding positive aspects of the application. The same users wrote that they did not experience difficulties in interaction and they had no suggestions for improvement. Six participants liked the ease of use and several students like the aspects that are more related to learning content than to the user interface. Considering users' opinion on shortcomings of the application, most of the students referred to weaknesses in learning content (too much text, not enough images, videos etc.) while two students had difficulties in reading because of the small letter size. Reported usability issues and suggestions for improvement from student's perspective were discussed in post-session interviews with each participant. As opposed to content pages, the users had no objections to the usage of quizzes and forum.

6 Discussion

According to the interpretation scale for SUS [36], where average grade (C) stands for SUS scores 65.0 - 71.0 and slightly above average grade (C+) stands for 71.1 - 72.5, we can conclude that users rated the EMasters application as good for course creation (71.1%) and learning (68.9%). Qualitative analysis also confirmed that the application is generally perceived as easy to use for both course creators and learners. Participants of the study appreciated the simplicity of the interface, clear design, availability of the content and the possibility of communication through forum. Discussing the weaknesses of the application, we collected significant number of comments. The obtained feedback is used to decide what comments are relevant for the interaction and can provide guidelines for redesign that could improve usability of the system. For example, enlarged letter size can be used for the text in content pages, or we can provide users with an option to set the letter size to desired value. It is important to communicate all reported issues with the users to reach the final decision on redesign. Thus, the issue of inability to manipulate the position of objects on a content page is considered as less relevant when compared to risk of a possible bad layout on small screens of mobile devices.

Conducted evaluation study revealed some concerns that are not usability problems but also demand consideration. They are particularly related to handling the quizzes and managing the course and its participants. In quizzes, the feature of displaying scores immediately after taking the quiz can be added. Major improvements of the system could include features for teachers such as administering the students, tracking their progress through the course and analyse their achievements on quizzes. Still, the initial incentive of the EMasters was to facilitate informal learning so these major improvements could be considered if the purpose of application is to be used in institutional settings.

Considering the procedure of conducted study, we have to notice that some of the results regarding student's interface may be the consequence of a poor design of learning content in some courses. Several users that took the role of course creators are not familiar with the principles of instructional design and did not apply any of them. Although these users can contribute in usability evaluation of teacher's interface, especially when developing applications for informal learning, their courses may have major flows related to content quality. On the other hand, the study shows that students who evaluate the interface in learning process sometimes have troubles identifying which problems are related to the usability and which to the content quality. This limitation can be overcome in a way that poorly designed courses are excluded from the second part of the study. This approach requires evaluation of developed courses by instructional design experts prior to the usability study of student's interface. Another solution is to engage only teachers or instructional designers to create online courses in the first phase of the study. Both options support the initial idea of the EMasters to be available for all, which means that everyone can create a course for interested audience on a topic of their own choice. Both solutions also ensure that the high usability level of the system will reinforce the process of content creation and of learning.

7 Conclusion

The paper, describing the case of design and development of simple learning CMS called the EMasters, presents an iterative process of user-centred design. The process begins with rapid prototyping and pilot testing of the first design. The second design is made according to the users' feedback and the implementation follows. To evaluate developed system, a comprehensive usability study was carried out. The evaluation method combined several well-known and reliable techniques of usability testing and usability inquiry. Quantitative results show that usability score reached a good level. Qualitative user feedback revealed several usability problems as well as other issues related to the content quality. The outcomes of the study provide guidelines for improvements which can be implemented in the next iteration of UCD for EMasters.

According to the obtained results, the evaluation framework confirmed to be suitable for iterative process of user-centred design of CMSs. The study shows that usability evaluation can be successfully applied in design process in a quick and cost-effective manner. In addition, the framework can be further adjusted and refined to fulfil the requirements of specific CMSs developed for the purpose of learning thus contributing to the researchers and practitioners in the field of design and development of learning CMSs.

8 References

 Searson, M. (2014) Foreword. In: Miller, C. and Doering, A. (eds). The new landscape of mobile learning: Redesigning education in an app-based world. Routledge

- [2] Pimmer, C., Mateescu, M. and Grohbiel, U. (2016). Mobile and ubiquitous learning in higher education settings. A systematic review of empirical studies. Computers in human behavior, 63: 490-501. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2016.05.057</u>
- [3] Cárdenas-Robledo, L. and Peña-Ayala, A. (2018). Ubiquitous learning: A systematic review. Telematics and Informatics, 35(5): 1097-1132. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tele.2018.01.009</u>
- [4] El Guabassi, I., Al Achhab, M., Jellouli, I. and EL Mohajir, B. E. (2018). Personalized Ubiquitous Learning via an Adaptive Engine. International Journal of Emerging Technologies in Learning. 13(12): 177-190. https://doi.org/10.3991/ijet.v13i12.7918
- [5] Nakić, J., Granić, A. and Glavinić, V. (2015). Anatomy of Student Models in Adaptive Learning Systems: A Systematic Literature Review of Individual Differences from 2001 to 2013. Journal of Educational Computing Research. 51(4): 459-489. <u>https://doi.org/10.21</u> <u>90/ec.51.4.e</u>
- [6] Tesene, M. (2018). Adaptable Selectivity: A Case Study in Evaluating and Selecting Adaptive Learning Courseware at Georgia State University. Current Issues in Emerging eLearning. 5(1)
- [7] Jagušt, T., Botički, I. and So, H.-J. (2018). Examining Competitive, Collaborative and Adaptive Gamification in Young Learners' Math Learning. Computers & education, 125: 444-457. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2018.06.022</u>
- [8] Dalgarno B. and Lee M. J. W. (2010). What are the learning affordances of 3-D virtual environments? British Journal of Educational Technology. 41(1): 10-32
- [9] Granić A., Nakić J. and Ćukušić M. (2017): Preliminary Evaluation of a 3D Serious Game in the Context of Entrepreneurship Education. In Strahonja V. and Kirinić V (eds): Proceedings of the 28th Central European Conference on Information and Intelligent Systems, CECIIS, Varaždin, Croatia. pp 91-98
- [10] Kokkalia, G., Drigas, A., Economou, A., Roussos, P. and Choli S. (2017). The Use of Serious Games in Preschool Education. International Journal of Emerging Technologies in Learning. 12(11): 15-27. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/ijet.v12i11.6991</u>
- [11] Khairudin M, Triatmaja A.K, Istanto W.J and Azman M. N. A (2019). Mobile Virtual Reality to Develop a Virtual Laboratorium for the Subject of Digital Engineering. International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies. 13(4): 80-95. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/</u> ijim.v13i04.10522
- [12] Preece, J.; Rogers, Y. and Sharp, H. (2015). Interaction Design: Beyond Human-Computer Interaction, 4th edition. John Wiley & Sons
- [13] Jumoke S., Oloruntoba, S. A. and Okafor B. (2015). Analysis of Mobile Phone Impact on Student Academic Performance in Tertiary Institution. International Journal of Emerging Technology and Advanced Engineering 5(1): 361-367
- [14] Daradkeh, Y.I., Testov, V.A. and Golubev, O.B. (2019). Educational Network Projects as Form of E-Learning. International Journal of Advanced Corporate Learning. 12(1): 29-40. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/ijac.v12i1.9465</u>
- [15] Sanchez-Gordon, S. and Lujan-Mora, S. (2018). Technological Innovations in Large-Scale Teaching: Five Roots of Massive Open Online Courses. Journal of Educational Computing Research 56(5): 623-644. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/0735633117727597</u>
- [16] <u>https://moodle.org</u>
- [17] Alshammari, S.H., Bilal Ali, M. and Rosli, M.S. (2018). LMS, CMS and LCMS: The confusion among them. Science International 30 (3): 455-459
- [18] Strang, K. D., and Vajjhala, N. R. (2017). Student Resistance to a Mandatory Learning Management System in Online Supply Chain Courses. Journal of Organizational and End User Computing. 29(3): 49-67. <u>https://doi.org/10.4018/joeuc.2017070103</u>

- [19] Schoepp, K. (2005). Barriers to technology integration in a technology-rich environment. Learning and Teaching in Higher Education. 2(1): 1-24
- [20] Al Meajel, T. M. and Sharadgah T. A. (2018). Barriers to Using the Blackboard System in Teaching and Learning: Faculty Perceptions. Technology, Knowledge and Learning. 23(2): 351-366. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10758-017-9323-2</u>
- [21] Park, Y. and Kim, Y. (2018). A Design and Development of micro-Learning Content in e-Learning System. International Journal on Advanced Science, Engineering and Information Technology. 8(1): 56-61
- [22] ISO 9241-210. (2010) Ergonomics of human-system interaction Part 210: Humancentred design for interactive systems
- [23] Quintana, C., Krajcik, J. and Soloway, E. (2000). Exploring a Structured Definition for Learner-Centered Design. In B. Fishman & S. O'Connor-Divelbiss (eds.), Fourth International Conference of the Learning Sciences. Mahwah, NJ: Erlbaum. pp. 256-263
- [24] Soloway, E., Jackson, S. L., Klein, J., Quintana, C., Reed, J., Spitulnik, J., Stratford, S.J., Studer, S., Eng, J., and Scala, N. (1996). Learning Theory in Practice: Case Studies in Learner-Centered Design. Human Factors in Computing Systems: CHI '96 Conference Proceedings, Vancouver, Canada. <u>https://doi.org/10.1145/238386.238476</u>
- [25] Norman, D.A. (1986). Cognitive Engineering. In: D.A. Norman & S.W. Draper (eds.), User Centered System Design. Lawrenece Erlbaum Associates
- [26] Bevan, N., Carter, J., Earthy, J., Geis, T. and Harker, S. (2016). New ISO Standards for Usability, Usability Reports and Usability Measures. Human-Computer Interaction. Theory, Design, Development and Practice: 18th International Conference, HCI International 2016, Toronto, ON, Canada. Proceedings, Part I. pp.268-278. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-39510-4_25</u>
- [27] Shneiderman, B., Plaisant, C., Cohen, M., Jacobs, S., Elmqvist, N. and Diakopoulos, N. (2016). Designing the User Interface: Strategies for Effective Human-Computer Interaction. 6th ed. Pearson
- [28] Lazar, J., Feng, J. H. and Hochheiser, H. (2010). Research Methods in Human-Computer Interaction. Wiley Publishing
- [29] Rubin, J. and Chisnell, D. (2008). Handbook of usability testing: how to plan, design, and conduct effective tests. 2nd ed. Wiley Publishing, Inc. Indianapolis
- [30] https://www.djangoproject.com
- [31] Arshavskiy, M. (2013). Instructional Design for eLearning: Essential guide to creating successful eLearning courses. CreateSpace Independent Publishing Platform
- [32] Brooke, J. (1996). SUS: A "quick and dirty" usability scale. In: Jordan, P. W., Thomas, B., Weerdmeester, B. A. and McClelland A. L. (eds.), Usability Evaluation in Industry. Taylor and Francis
- [33] Brooke, J. (2013). SUS: A retrospective. Journal of Usability Studies. 8(2): 29-40
- [34] Sauro, J. and Lewis, J. R. (2009). Correlations among prototypical usability metrics: Evidence for the construct of usability. In Proceedings of CHI 2009, Boston, MA: ACM. pp. 1609–1618. <u>https://doi.org/10.1145/1518701.1518947</u>
- [35] Lewis, J., Brown, J. and K. Mayes, D. (2015). Psychometric Evaluation of the EMO and the SUS in the Context of a Large-Sample Unmoderated Usability Study. International Journal of Human-Computer Interaction. 31(8): 545-553. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/104473</u> 18.2015.1064665
- [36] Lewis J. R. and Sauro J. (2018). Item benchmarks for the system usability scale. Journal of Usability Studies. 13(3), 158-167

9 Authors

Jelena Nakić is a Postdoctoral Researcher at the Department of Computer Science at the Faculty of Science, University of Split, Croatia. She holds Ph.D. and M.Sc. in Computer Science from the Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Computing, University of Zagreb, Croatia. Her research focus is web-based learning and adaptive elearning, particularly development and evaluation of interactive learning environments.

Antonija Burčul is a teacher of Computer Science at Science High School, Split, Croatia. She works also as a teaching assistant at The Department of Information Technology of University in Split and at EDIT Code School organized by Split-Dalmatia County.

Nikola Marangunić is an Assistant Professor at the Department of Social and Human Sciences, Faculty of Science at the University of Split, Croatia. He graduated psychology at the Faculty of Philosophy, University of Zagreb where he also achieved his M.Sc. and Ph.D. in the field of Human-Computer Interaction. His scientific interests are related to multidisciplinary research where he contributes through a perspective of the Cognitive Psychology.

Article submitted 2019-04-24. Resubmitted 2019-05-27. Final acceptance 2019-05-28. Final version published as submitted by the authors.

The Efficacy of MALL Instruction in Business English Learning

https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v13i08.9562

Raja Muhammad Ishtiaq Khan^(⊠) Majma'ah University, Zulfi, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia r.khan@mu.edu.sa

Noor Raha Mohd Radzuan Universiti Malaysia Pahang, Kuantan, Pahang, Malaysia.

Abdulmohsin Suliman Alkhunaizan, Ghulam Mustafa, Imran Khan Majma'ah University, Zulfi, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Abstract—The existing technological expansion has transformed pervasive revolutions in modern civilization, with continuing innovation of services and products. Nowadays people are having different channels of communication. Currently, mobile learning (M-learning) is being used extensively in teaching and learning foreign languages which further widens the mobility of learners. The usage of mobile instruction can lead learners towards a real interruption to learn effectively when used inappositely. The current study is an attempt to explore the potential usage of M-Learning in English for specific purpose (ESP) classes. For this intention smartphones were used in the ESP context for teaching Business English at College of Business Administration at a public sector university in Saudi Arabia. A questionnaire was distributed to 21 participants of the present study after 5 week exposure to M-learning activities in formal classroom. The findings revealed that ESP learners acknowledge M-learning as a prompt source of feedback in ESP. The results of this study also indicate that incorporation of M-learning in ESP learning with conventional classroom can support learners to develop their learning proficiency. Moreover, learners showed significantly positive attitude in mobile instruction in formal classroom.

Keywords-M-Learning; ESP; Mobile instruction, MALL Technology

1 Introduction

1.1 Background

The use of technology is practicable from global world to formal classrooms and it has combined education with the need of learners to a great extent. Successful language instruction requires the enthusiasm and creativity to motivate learners as well as to keep the teaching alive in language classrooms (Beatty, 2013; Patel & Jain, 2008; Pinter, 2017). The use of optimal instructional technology is a part of the provision of suitable

learning environment and opportunities to connect the requirements and principles of language learning. Therefore, it is the basic requirement for EFL teachers to get required awareness of technology usage that will develop and foster learning effectively (Yang & Chen, 2007). The moderate use of technology is fundamental aspect of inculcating technology as learners will face problems to grasp the positive usage of technology is also mandatory for the achievement of desired goals as simple integration of technology cannot promise the learning enhancement in formal or informal classroom (Vrasidas & Glass, 2005).

Learners acquire language informally by the means of availability of recourses. With the instant growth and persistent availability of digital handheld and mobile devices, technology has widened the access to learning material, which offers various learning expansion since early 1990s (Littlejohn & Pegler, 2007; Warschauer, 2004). These readily available opportunities have vivid capacity to transform the mechanism of learning and in favor of this informal instruction can be easily initiated to impede the process of learning in conventional classrooms. Macfarlane and Ottewill (2013) asserted that these technology oriented openings can also expedite more shared and interactive learning environment for learners, which are radically distinctive from conventional and informal learning setting that includes the traditional methods of watching television and reading newspapers. The use of technology is beneficial when it is used for the development of academic goals of the syllabus and classroom activities instead of devising instruction for the better usage of technology and its skills. Similarly, the integration of technology in language classes also requires the careful planning to address the learners' needs and usability for language learning tasks. This assertion is also confirmed by the Levy and Stockwell (2013) as computers are meant to perform the role of teacher, tutor and tool conveniently. This sort of formal learning is typically directed by an instructor, while informal learning is predominantly learner-centered and self-directed (Ehlers, 2009; Hirumi, 2002; Marsick & Watkins, 2015). As a result of the growing attraction of smartphones, digital technologies and the division between formal and in formal learning environment, is considered as immaterial (Bradwell, 2010).

Currently, android and smartphone technologies, as a platform for information and communication, have got a significant boost in the field of education recently and attracted the attention of various institutions to use it as instructional technology. This enormous familiarity has been guided by the development and availability of fast speed Wi-Fi, working habits, transformation of lifestyles and community standards (Salz & Moranz, 2013). Hutchins (2014) also highlighted this fact that the expansion of internet is growing by the usage of personal computers and smartphones in different educational and normal life settings. Likewise, the rise of the usage of mobile learning in education in Saudi Arabia is also accelerated in recent years (Alsuwayed, 2017). However, the expansion of smartphone devices has been mirrored in numerous countries around the globe, principally due to its manifold function. So, there is increase in smartphone technologies for the experts in the field of education to adventure the digital transformation which includes the practicality of expanding the use of technology and android

applications as a supplement to foster the language acquisition and learning sequence (Armstrong, 2016; Dingli & Seychell, 2015; Penny, 2017).

1.2 Research Questions

The present attempt tries to explore the answers of the following questions:

- 1. Do ESP learners reflect the mobile phone integration as an efficient way to learning English for Specific Purposes?
- 2. Do ESP learners recognize mobile phones as a useful technology in learning language?
- 3. What sort of language learning activities do learners employ in on their mobile phones?

2 Literature Review

2.1 Mobile Learning

Broadly speaking, mobile learning includes any sort of leaning intervened by the means of using mobile phone devices (Wishart, 2017) which can happen anytime, anywhere and at suitability of the user. The viability of smartphones urged scholars, teachers, practitioners and researchers to turn the focus of their consideration to emergent technologies and their probability as language teaching instrument. Several attempts have been made to explain the term M-learning, and mostly it is referred and dedicated either on intervening technology or on learners' flexibility. Page (2014) refers mobile learning as an indication of the prospective development in learning other researchers regarded it as closely associated to M-learning as subset of E-learning (Anderson, 2008; Motiwalla, 2007). Park and Heidemann (2011) refer mobile learning on the usage of mobile phone devices or wireless devices for perseverance of learning at any place.

The arena of mobile learning is persistently developing and equally current and past studies attempt to explicate the characteristics and elements of mobile learning. The main focus of major researchers (Guy, 2010; Melhuish & Falloon, 2010; Stockwell, 2007, 2010a; Stockwell & Liu, 2015; Wan, 2013) was to develop consensual interpretation, pedagogy and framework that can be appropriately integrated in the shift of latest technologies, distinctive prospects and mobility of learners in formal and informal education framework. Therefore, sufficient understanding of the term of M-learning is essential for the best use of this technology. The most prominent mobile devices comprise of android smartphones, laptops, tablets, MP3 players and small portable PCs, all of these have capability to facilitate and develop the process of learning (Pereira & Rodrigues, 2013). Contemporary expansions of social networking and social software have given smartphone devices more ubiquitous than in previous times, particularly it is more common amongst youth. M-learning software application should be guided by the instructors, irrespective of hurdles because of global change in the usage of software to attain its full benefits. The process of learning can occur well when it is aided by the

usage of smartphone, that may be one of the key benefits of the learning (Zhang, Wei, & Burston, 2011). In a meta-analysis Chee, Yahaya, Ibrahim, and Hasan (2017) also found a profound progression in developing learning skills of leaners. Most researchers (Al-Asmari & Rabb Khan, 2014; Badwelan, Drew, & Bahaddad, 2016; Fida, Farouq, Alamawi, & Kamfar, 2017) also acknowledge M-learning as positive instrument in developing learning process in Saudi Arabia.

2.2 Technology Integration in ESP Education

The global business setting is currently controlled by the practice of English related to business, which subsequently is heading to a growing involvement about teaching English for specific purposes. The existing technological advancement has determined profound variations in society in the shape of availability of new inventions and facilities, and new modes of communications universally (Stehr & Ruser, 2017). The prevalent usage of smartphone devices nowadays also provided appreciated place for teaching business English learners who have ample access of mobile devices, as it offers them supple and easy way to study their own. Because of the viability and availability of potable software and mobile phone devices is currently expanding and way there is also drastic change in teaching methodologies (Hadland, Borges-Rey, & Cameron, 2017). M-learning offers learners the possibility of exceling the restricted atmosphere of conventional classroom to create an attractive learning self-sufficiency. So, this wide range of business English applications for the development of learners' ability has also advanced in recent years.

The association between information and communication technology and ESP stays well in a strong effect of Computer-assisted language learning (CALL) with the advancement in linguistics and language learning (Shih, 2010). Technology integration in ESP classes can be seen in the shape of various digital and smart tools, access to the high speed internet to engage the leaners in developing their understanding. Like other modes of language learning ESP also requires learner-centered apps for the experience of technology with conventional classroom teaching to make teaching atmosphere interested. The role of technology in ESP is to support the learners to access to reliable material that has been utilized as an additional help for learning purposes (Nekrasova-Beker & Becker, 2017). It has also further developed the ways of organizing related language task from outside of the classroom to the traditional classroom setting by persistent use of WhatsApp, Snapshot and many other smartphone applications. Therefore, integration of technology advances the visualization process of language learning effectively, when it comes to ESP context, it can be used as for the content and development of business related vocabulary. The usage of technology in ESP teaching has modernized the methods and material for ESP students (Bloch, 2013).

Researchers (Alemi, Sarab, & Lari, 2012; Tayan, 2017) have indicated that learning backgrounds which are associated with enhancement of technological motivation for the learners, are more beneficial as compared to other methods of language instruction. McDonough and McDonough (2014) proposed that ESP requires a different approach and activities and it has also separate schema in the field of applied linguistics platform. Moreover, it has its own teaching methodologies and ways of engaging learners as well

as its interdisciplinary in research. Thus, it is a great delusion that findings of technological integration in EFL context can also be generalized to the finding of ESP teaching. In rapid revolutionizing instructive education environment, the potentials of technological learning are developing and they can be replaced to obsolete traditions of learning environment.

The result of Falloon (2017) identified the importance of the associating MALL with traditional classrooms. The function of handheld devices and scaffolding helped learners' to construct their understanding and link their experiences positively. Similarly, the use of MALL approach result in developing self-determined techniques outside the conventional classroom boundaries, where virtual connections and mobile phone devices bump into developing the goal of target language conversation requirements and benefits (Kukulska-Hulme, Lee, & Norris, 2017). The current attempt is also a part of modern technology to understand the process and need of integrating MALL technology in Arabic speaking ESP learners of accounting section of a public university of KSA.

3 Methodology and procedure

3.1 Methodology

The present study used the quantitative method for collecting data. Quantitative method allows researchers to be more reliable and objective in the results (Brannen, 2017). In order to quantify the results a questionnaire was adopted after analyzing previous studies in the filed relating MALL studies. The use of questionnaire is a useful and operative way of collecting data and information on the perceptions and attitudes of study participant on a given field or subject matter (Brown, 2001). All the learners were given 15 minutes after the formal classroom to engage in MALL activities. Learners were allowed to use their smartphones freely for the discussion about the taught topic. Learners were exposed to use their smartphones in the last part of their class for five weeks. For this purpose a WhatsApp group was created by the researcher and all the learners were asked to practice their exercises in this group. They shared their classroom activities by using WhatsApp. The data was collected in first academic semester of 2017.

3.2 Participants and Instrument of the study

21 ESP learners from College of Business Administration of a public university of Saudi Arabia participated in this research study. They study ESP as part of their syllabus for a period of one semester. All of the learners were assumed to have a similar level of English as they were placed in groups after a university placement test at the time of registration. The first language of learners is Arabic and they use Arabic as means of communication in campus. All of the learners have smartphones with fast data connection but they didn't have any past experience of using smartphones as an aid in

learning in the classroom. However, for current study they were exposed to use their cellphones during their classes regularly for a course of one semester.

Quantitative method was employed to gather the related information for the current study. The researcher inspected different prominent specialists in order to adopt questionnaire for collecting data. Moreover, the selection of classroom activities was also analyzed to check the recognition for the need of mobile learning in ESP classes. A questionnaire was adapted mainly from two different previous studies (Gaudreau, Miranda, & Gareau, 2014; Palalas, 2011). In the first part, seven elements on the usage of effectiveness were chosen to gauge the learners' understanding of-learning. Learners were asked to respond to these elements on the 5 point Likert scale from strongly disagree to strongly agree about the instruction of M-learning for ESP classes. The second section of questionnaire was related to learners' usage of M-Learning in conventional classroom setting. This part consisted of six elements where learners had to mark their understanding on the basis of 5 point Likert scale from never to very often frequency. In the last part of the questionnaire, advantages and disadvantages of mobile-based instruction in classroom were analyzed. Learners had to choose from already selected advantages and disadvantages from Palalas (2011).

4 Data collection and Results

After five weeks of the exposure of using smartphone, learners were asked to complete the questionnaire. They were asked to complete the questionnaire in their class time. The questionnaire was administered to preform intact group of 21 students of College of Business Administration faculty. After getting responses from the learners, data was evaluated descriptively by coding means and the percentages of the replies from the students. The remarks were separately collected and calculated in the final outcomes, therefore covering more individual awareness and learners' perception on the use of mobile phones in ESP classes. Moreover, data were also collected and analyzed descriptively on the prelisted advantages and disadvantages of smartphone integration in formal ESP classes.

4.1 The use of Smartphones in ESP classes

All the students were inquired to appraise their usage of smartphones after 5 weeks of smartphone instructions during conventional classroom on Likert scale from 1 to 5 (Very often=5; often = 4; rarely= 3; very rarely=2 and never; 1). Table 1 explains the usage of smartphone usage in typical classroom as an aid to their formal classes.

The use of smartphones in ESP Classes						
	Never	Very Rarely	Rarely	Often	Very often	
Searching supplementary material using Mobile	0	25%	35%	40%	0	
Sending emails using Mobile	0	59%	51%	0	0	
Navigating Educational websites	0	14%	67%	19%	0	
Note taking on the phone in the class	0	17%	43%	40%	0	
Use of social media	0	17%	43%	40%	0	
Use of phone for taking pictures	9%	55%	27%	9%		

Table 1. The use of Smartphones in ESP classes

Adapted from (Gaudreau et al., 2014).

This is obvious form the results that highest numbers of the learners were engaged in browsing internet to look for the supplementary material related to their formal classroom instructions and sending emails by the means of using smartphones. It is obvious from the above results that 59% students used smartphone for sending emails and 40% of students employed their efforts in finding supplementary material in classroom. Moreover, highest percentage of students indicated that they rarely used their smartphones for the searching class-related material as compared to 19% who used smartphones for this purpose. However, it is also noteworthy that a considerable number of students utilized their smartphones in browsing social network page in the class. The purpose of using smartphones for social networking can be further investigated. The minimum percentage was noticed for taking pictures during their classroom.

Effectiveness of Mobile Instruction in ESP Classes. To evaluate the efficiency of learners' development after using smartphones during the class time, learners were asked to gauge the effectiveness of smartphone instructions. They had to evaluate smartphone instructions on the identical scale ranging from 1-5 (Strongly Agree=5; Agree=4; No opinion= 3: Disagree= 2; strongly disagree=1). The table listed below explains the responses of ESP learners. The items of this part of questionnaire were adapted (Palalas, 2011).

MALL Instruction in ESP classes					
	Strongly Agree	Agree	Neutral	Disagree	Strongly Disagree
MALL offered an effective way of learning language	12%	67%	19%	2%	0
Developed English Learning Proficiency	3%	87%	10%	0	0
MALL offered Learners' centered learning	18%	52%	17%	10%	3%
MALL provided and easy and fun way of learning	11%	69%	8%	12%	0
I learned better with smartphone	2%	34%	28%	36%	0
I would use different apps for learning English	87%	9%	4%	0	0
Smartphones are a distraction in class	0	13%	10%	59%	28%

Table 2. Mobile Instruction in ESP classes

Adapted from (Palalas, 2011).

Students' responses indicate that M-learning is most operative part of learning. The data presents vital indication of improvement of learners' proficiency in learning English. 87% learners approved the instruction of smartphones develop learners' proficiency effectively. Moreover, a considerable numbers of leaners also agreed that mobile learning is an easy and enjoyable method of ESP learning. Similarly, 87% leaners also should their inclination towards the usage of smartphones applications for self-directed learning for ESP classes. However, some learners also identified that smartphone may cause distraction in classes but this percentage languished below the considerable number. Some learners showed indifference in integrating smartphone software in ESP classes. Nevertheless, many learners have marked smartphone integration as a fun way of learning.

4.2 Advantages and disadvantages of smartphone instruction in ESP Classes

Students were asked to mark prelisted advantages and disadvantages of smartphone immersion in formal classes that apply to their situation in the last section of the questionnaire. They were allowed to choose as many as they think comply with their situation in formal classroom teaching. The responses of students are listed below:

Usefulness of smartphones instruction in ESP Classes		
Learning Material is readily available	73%	
Ubiquitous Learning	52%	
Pronunciation development	28%	
Fun way of Learning	39%	
Source of instant Feedback from instructor	88%	
Offers collaborative learning	41%	

Table 3. Advantages of Smartphones Instruction in ESP classes.

Table 4. Disadvantages of smartphones Instruction in ESP classes.

Disadvantages of smartphones instruction in ESP Classes		
Small screen size	58%	
Data connectivity	89%	
Material surfing is time consuming	20%	
Lack of interactivity	30%	
Technical problems	40%	

This is viable from the responses collected from students, the immediate and instantaneous availability of accessible data; prompt feedback from peers or instructors are undoubtedly the prime advantages of smartphones instruction in formal ESP classes for the development of learning process. Most of the students indicated it a beneficial method of getting required information or details of certain responses whenever they need to look for online material. Furthermore, receiving and delivering instant comments is also regarded to be specifically helpful and productive way. Similarly, several

students from the targeted group also contemplate it as collaborative learning in the possibility to get required aid when required and less numbers of students regard smartphone instruction as fun way of learning in class. Contrarily, students also indicated smartphone instruction as problematic in learning process because of the lack of free access to Wi-Fi or data in the class. A remarkable number of students marked battery that glitches in using their smartphone for effectiveness of ESP instruction in the classroom. Some students also labeled the typing problem on small screen and duration of time for downloading material as it may create lack of connectivity and interaction is ESP learner exposure. However, it is noteworthy that time consumption percentage is languished at 20% which is important factor in formal classroom because of the time constraint of schedule.

5 Conclusion

No one can deny the fact of the ubiquitous presence of smartphones in our surroundings as chief source of communication in particular and an effective teaching aid for the progression of educational methods in general. The present study was an attempt to measure the potential of the M-learning integration in ESP context. The results of this study are in line with previous MALL studies (Badwelan et al., 2016; Macfarlane & Ottewill, 2013; Stockwell, 2010b) by creating different diverse learning opportunities. Due to its ubiquitous presence, this technology has a great role in language learning and teaching process. Owing a smartphone allows individuals to associate and develop coordination without any time constraint. Neglecting this proficiency of smartphones, in fact, is refusal of adopting modern methodologies. Like EFL teaching, ESP teaching also demands the attention of teachers to boost the possibility of mobile phones integration to get the benefit of this hand-held device. Therefore, the target of ESP teachers should be maximizing the utility of smartphones in typical and informal teaching situations. The goal of using technology should be the development of teaching process; not the usage of smartphones but in the way as these gadgets can assist learning accordingly. The findings of the data of present attempt indicated that usage of technology in ESP classroom need careful handling and management of this approach.

The integration of smartphones in this study fostered the process of provision of feedback effectively in ESP classes. A language instructor or a teacher can monitor the group activities as well as he can trace the performance of learners easily even if the number exceeds than the set standards. Similarly, it is an effective way of finding a solution of encountered problem by learners themselves. The result is self-directed learning and development of confidence among themselves. Moreover, from learners' perspective, smartphones are useful source of inducing constructivist –based background that can also affect the motivational level, collaboration and individualized engagement in learning process. Furthermore, the results of this study also indicate that integration of M-learning in ESP learning in traditional classroom can assist learners to develop their learning proficiency. In addition to the persistent benefits of M-learning, it is also important to consider the effective and purposeful usage in classroom. If the M-learning activities are not planned carefully, this technology can be real distraction

and mere wastage of time. So, careful handling and planning for developing learning process is essential part of devising M-learning classroom environment.

6 Implications and Limitation of the Study

It is commonly known fact the MALL is now indispensable learning asset and previous studies had established its positive effect on English language learners impressively. The present study suggests some implications of M-learning implementation and providing applied advantages of this learning tool efficiently. Firstly, it is valuable to integrate such learning tools in ESP language teaching by using already developed technological soft-wares programs to facilitate learners with attractive and motivating learning system inside as well as outside of the formal classroom setting. Moreover, curriculum developers and ESP instructors need to encourage learners to use this technology purposefully and for the sake of progression of their language learning. In addition the incorporation of this useful technological tool by the instructors provides opportunity of self-directed learning to great extent and learners' language learning efficiency can be developed by the means of interaction and communication with peers and instructors. The result is scaffolding effect on the ESP learners' learning ability. This enables leaners to share, discuss, correct, expand and assign responsibilities during the course of communication with teachers (Boettcher & Conrad, 2016).

Additionally, MALL is newly developed approach in teaching and learning process in education particularly in second or foreign language learning. Principally it signifies the practice of hand-held smartphone devices and tablets to learn and advance their language learning skills both in EFL and ESP context effectively. Literature is abundant with the studies that have been carried out in the recent past globally as well as in Saudi Arabia (Al-Asmari & Rabb Khan, 2014; Al-Masrai & Milton, 2012). In addition to numerous advantages, it also facilitates learners to be independent in learning process at the ease of the utility of time and background.

Like other research investigations, this study has also some limitations. The current study is limited to one section of a public university in ESP learning field with limited number of participants. Therefore, the findings of this attempt cannot be generalized to the other aspects of ESP learning as different subject matter requires different methodology. Moreover, if the study includes large number of students, more profound understanding of M-learning can be attained precisely. In addition, if the mobile instructions for classroom usage are given to participants better results can be gathered. Irrespective of less number of participants and M-learning usage in formal class current attempt is a solid foundation for further experimental research in this arena.

7 References

 Al-Asmari, A. M., & Rabb Khan, M. S. (2014). E-learning in Saudi Arabia: Past, present and future. Near and Middle Eastern Journal of Research in Education, 2. https://doi.org/10 .5339/nmejre.2014.2

- [2] Al-Masrai, A., & Milton, J. (2012). The Vocabulary Knowledge of University Students in Saudi Arabia. TESOL Arabia Perspectives, 19(3), 13-19.
- [3] Alemi, M., Sarab, M. R. A., & Lari, Z. (2012). Successful learning of academic word list via MALL: Mobile Assisted Language Learning. International Education Studies, 5(6), 99-109. https://doi.org/10.5539/ies.v5n6p99
- [4] Alsuwayed, H. (2017). Cloud-based E-learning Systems in Saudi Universities. Auckland University of Technology.
- [5] Anderson, T. (2008). The theory and practice of online learning: Athabasca University Press.
- [6] Armstrong, T. (2016). The power of the adolescent brain: Strategies for teaching Middle and High School students: ASCD.
- [7] Badwelan, A., Drew, S., & Bahaddad, A. A. (2016). Towards Acceptance M-Learning Approach in Higher Education in Saudi Arabia. International Journal of Business and Management, 11(8), 12. https://doi.org/10.5539/ijbm.v11n8p12
- [8] Beatty, K. (2013). Teaching & Researching: Computer-Assisted Language Learning: Routledge.
- [9] Bloch, J. (2013). Technology and ESP. The handbook of English for specific purposes, 385-401.
- [10] Boettcher, J. V., & Conrad, R.-M. (2016). The online teaching survival guide: Simple and practical pedagogical tips: John Wiley & Sons.
- [11] Bradwell, P. (2010). The edgeless university: Why higher education must embrace technology.
- [12] Brannen, J. (2017). Mixing methods: Qualitative and quantitative research: Routledge.
- [13] Brown, J. D. (2001). Using surveys in language programs: Cambridge University Press.
- [14] Chee, K. N., Yahaya, N., Ibrahim, N. H., & Hasan, M. N. (2017). Review of mobile learning trends 2010-2015: a meta-analysis. Journal of Educational Technology & Society, 20(2), 113-126.
- [15] Dingli, A., & Seychell, D. (2015). The new digital natives: Cutting the chord: Springer.
- [16] Ehlers, U. D. (2009). Web 2.0–e-learning 2.0–quality 2.0? Quality for new learning cultures. Quality Assurance in Education, 17(3), 296-314. https://doi.org/10.1108/09684880 910970687
- [17] Falloon, G. (2017). Mobile devices and apps as scaffolds to science learning in the primary classroom. Journal of Science Education and Technology, 26(6), 613-628. https://doi.org/ 10.1007/s10956-017-9702-4
- [18] Fida, N. M., Farouq, M., Alamawi, D., & Kamfar, H. (2017). Undergraduate medical students' perceptions of their learning experience in pediatric rotation at King Abdulaziz University Medical College in Jeddah, Saudi Arabia. Medical Teacher, 39(sup1), S37-S44. https://doi.org/10.1080/0142159x.2016.1254747
- [19] Gaudreau, P., Miranda, D., & Gareau, A. (2014). Canadian university students in wireless classrooms: What do they do on their laptops and does it really matter? Computers & education, 70, 245-255. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2013.08.019
- [20] Guy, R. (2010). Mobile learning: Pilot projects and initiatives: Informing Science.
- [21] Hadland, A., Borges-Rey, E., & Cameron, J. (2017). Mobile phones and the news: How UK mainstream news broadcasting is stalling the video revolution. Convergence, 1354856517703964.
- [22] Hirumi, A. (2002). Student-centered, technology-rich learning environments (SCenTRLE): Operationalizing constructivist approaches to teaching and learning. Journal of Technology and Teacher Education, 10(4), 497-537.

- [23] Hutchins, B. (2014). Sport on the move: The unfolding impact of mobile communications on the media sport content economy. Journal of Sport and Social Issues, 38(6), 509-527. https://doi.org/10.1177/0193723512458933
- [24] Kukulska-Hulme, A., Lee, H., & Norris, L. (2017). 15 Mobile Learning Revolution: Implications for Language Pedagogy. The Handbook of Technology and Second Language Teaching and Learning, 217. https://doi.org/10.1002/9781118914069.ch15
- [25] Levy, M., & Stockwell, G. (2013). CALL dimensions: Options and issues in computer-assisted language learning: Routledge.
- [26] Littlejohn, A., & Pegler, C. (2007). Preparing for blended e-learning: Routledge.
- [27] Macfarlane, B., & Ottewill, R. (2013). Effective learning and teaching in business and management: Routledge.
- [28] Marsick, V. J., & Watkins, K. (2015). Informal and Incidental Learning in the Workplace (Routledge Revivals): Routledge. https://doi.org/10.4324/9781315715926
- [29] McDonough, J., & McDonough, S. (2014). Research methods for English language teachers: Routledge.
- [30] Melhuish, K., & Falloon, G. (2010). Looking to the future: M-learning with the iPad.
- [31] Motiwalla, L. F. (2007). Mobile learning: A framework and evaluation. Computers & education, 49(3), 581-596.
- [32] Nekrasova-Beker, T., & Becker, A. (2017). 6 Integrating Project-Based Learning into English for Specific-Purposes Classrooms. Language for Specific Purposes: Trends in Curriculum Development, 101.
- [33] Page, T. (2014). Application-based mobile devices in design education. International Journal of Mobile Learning and Organisation, 8(2), 96-111. https://doi.org/10.1504/ijmlo.2014. 062347
- [34] Palalas, A. (2011). Mobile-assisted language learning: Designing for your students. Second language teaching and learning with technology: views of emergent researchers, 71-94. https://doi.org/10.14705/rpnet.2011.000007
- [35] Park, U., & Heidemann, J. (2011). Data muling with mobile phones for sensornets. Paper presented at the Proceedings of the 9th ACM Conference on Embedded Networked Sensor Systems. https://doi.org/10.1145/2070942.2070960
- [36] Patel, M., & Jain, P. M. (2008). English language teaching: Sunrise Publishers and Distributors.
- [37] Penny, J. (2017). Learning Rebooted: Education Fit for the Digital Age: Routledge.
- [38] Pereira, O. R., & Rodrigues, J. J. (2013). Survey and analysis of current mobile learning applications and technologies. ACM Computing Surveys (CSUR), 46(2), 27. https://doi. org/10.1145/2543581.2543594
- [39] Pinter, A. (2017). Teaching young language learners: Oxford University Press.
- [40] Salz, P. A., & Moranz, J. (2013). The everything guide to mobile apps: A practical guide to affordable mobile app development for your business: Everything Books.
- [41] Shih, R.-C. (2010). Blended learning using video-based blogs: Public speaking for English as a second language students. Australasian Journal of Educational Technology, 26(6). https://doi.org/10.14742/ajet.1048
- [42] Stehr, N., & Ruser, A. (2017). Knowledge Society, Knowledge Economy and Knowledge Democracy. Handbook of Cyber-Development, Cyber-Democracy, and Cyber-Defense, 1-20. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-06091-0 16-1
- [43] Stockwell, G. (2007). Vocabulary on the move: Investigating an intelligent mobile phonebased vocabulary tutor. Computer Assisted Language Learning, 20(4), 365-383. https:// doi.org/10.1080/09588220701745817

- [44] Stockwell, G. (2010a). Using mobile phones for vocabulary activities: Examining the effect of platform.
- [45] Stockwell, G. (2010b). Using mobile phones for vocabulary activities: Examining the effect of the platform. Language Learning & Technology, 14(2), 95-110.
- [46] Stockwell, G., & Liu, Y. C. (2015). Engaging in mobile phone-based activities for learning vocabulary: An investigation in Japan and Taiwan. Calico Journal, 32(2), 299. https:// doi.org/10.1558/cj.v32i2.25000
- [47] Tayan, B. M. (2017). Students and Teachers' Perceptions into the Viability of Mobile Technology Implementation to Support Language Learning for First Year Business Students in a Middle Eastern University. International Journal of Education and Literacy Studies, 5(2), 74-83. https://doi.org/10.7575/aiac.ijels.v.5n.2p.74
- [48] Vrasidas, C., & Glass, G. V. (2005). Achieving technology integration in classroom teaching. Preparing teachers to teach with technology, 3, 1-20.
- [49] Wan. (2013). Conceptualising mLearning literacy. International Journal of Mobile and Blended Learning (IJMBL), 5(1), 1-20.
- [50] Warschauer, M. (2004). Technology and social inclusion: Rethinking the digital divide: MIT press.
- [51] Wishart, J. (2017). Mobile Learning in Schools: Key Issues, Opportunities and Ideas for Practice: Routledge. https://doi.org/10.4324/9781315536774
- [52] Yang, S. C., & Chen, Y.-J. (2007). Technology-enhanced language learning: A case study. Computers in Human Behavior, 23(1), 860-879.
- [53] Zhang, H., Wei, S., & Burston, J. (2011). Reexamining the effectiveness of vocabulary learning via mobile phones. TOJET: The Turkish Online Journal of Educational Technology, 10(3).

8 Authors

Raja Muhammad Ishtiaq Khan is an English language Lecturer at Al-Majma'ah University, Saudi Arabia. He has a Cambridge CELTA certificate in teaching and has 10 years of experience in ESL and EFL. He is a PhD scholar and his research interests include Applied Linguistics, MALL, L2 Vocabulary learning and Teaching, Second Language Acquisition and EFL teaching (r.khan@mu.edu.sa).

Noor Raha Mohd Radzuan is a senior Lecturer at Universiti Malaysia Pahang, Malaysia. She earned her PhD in Applied Linguistics from Universiti Sains Malysia, Malysia. She has more than 12 years working experience. Her research interest includes workplace communication, second language learning strategies, L2 vocabulary learning and students' motivation (nraha@ump.edu.my).

Abdulmohsin AlKhunaizan is currently serving as an assistant professor at Majmaah University in the department of Information Systems and Computer Science. He is also serving as a Dean of PYP program of Majmaah University. He holds a PhD in information system, Brunel University UK. His research interests include M-Commerce, E-Learning and Mobile social network use (a.alkhunaiza@mu.edu.sa).

Ghulam Mustafa is an English language Lecturer at Al-Majma'ah University, Saudi Arabia. He has a Cambridge CELTA certificate in teaching and has 15 years of experience in ESL and EFL. He holds PGD in ELT degree from University of the
Paper-The Efficacy of MALL Instruction in Business English Learning

Punjab. He is a PhD scholar and his research interests include Applied Linguistics, Second Language Acquisition and EFL teaching (g.ismail@mu.edu.sa).

Imran Khan is an English language Lecturer at Al-Majma'ah University, Saudi Arabia. He holds a master degree in English Language & Literature and has 19 years of experience in ESL and EFL. He is a PhD scholar and his research interests include Applied Linguistics, CALL, L2 Reading, Second Language Acquisition and EFL teaching (imkk2010@gmail.com).

Article submitted 2018-09-18. Resubmitted 2019-04-17. Final acceptance 2019-05-12. Final version published as submitted by the authors.

The Relationship between Segmentation and Question Location within Mobile Video Platforms for Enhancing the Ability of Recall

https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v13i08.10614

Marwa Zaki Tawfiq Zaki Ain Shams University, Cairo, Egypt dr.marwa.zaki@sedu.asu.edu.eq; drmarwaa doc@hotmail.com

Abstract—The current research aimed at identifying the relationship between segmentation of video clips (Segmented Video (SV) / Non-Segmented Video (NSV) and Question location (Pre-questions Preq / Post question Postq) through Mobile Video Platforms on affecting the Recall ability among some students of the College of Education. The semi-experimental approach was used as based on the factorial designs (2×2). The research sample consisted of (63) female students from the College of Education at the University of Jeddah and randomly distributed to the four specified research groups. A Recall test has been developed. Analysis of variance (one and two) (ANOVA), Partial Eta Squared, and Schiff's post hoc comparison were employed to analyze data. The results showed the effectiveness of the segmented videos as compared to the non-segmented videos, and of the pre-questions as compared to the post questions, it also showed the priority of the fourth treatment of the interaction between segmented videos and pre-questions locations as compared with other experimental treatments.

Keywords-Mobile Video Platform, Segmentation, Question Location, Recall.

1 Introduction

Mobile Platforms are interactive online services that allow students and teachers have the access to digital content, interactive tools, and online resources to support and manage the learning and teaching process [1, 2]. Mobile platforms are also secure educational networks that give teachers simple ways to create and manage classrooms across the web, and provide a productive environment for interaction between teachers and learners, regardless of place or time [3]. Recently, several mobile video platforms have begun to emerge, allowing classrooms to provide the teacher with a variety of strategies that control the presentation of videos, and to offer some interactive features that were not available with video applications deployed across networks over the last few years. Among the technologies provided by Mobile video platforms is the possibility to split up one video for more than one segment in addition to the ability to add various questions within videos [4-6]. An example can be at some plat-

forms available at web and mobile like Edpuzzle (<u>https://edpuzzle.com/</u>), and Educanon platform (<u>http://www.educanon.com/</u>).

Videos are the main component of mobile platforms, but studies related to the examination of technical variables for digital video or the tools associated with these clips did not have the chance to be researched and studies [7]. This is consistent with what has been mentioned in literature that the design process for delivering videos across the web is in general limited and needs further examination and study [8, 9]. However, when talking about the video variables that are associated with the mobile video platform system, the segmentation variable becomes one of the most important video variables associated with controlling the pacing of instruction and reducing the excessive cognitive load, leading to the release of knowledge resources and an increase of working memory capacity in encoding new learner information for learners [10]. The principle of segmentation is based on the assumption that the educational program that allows the learner to control the speed of learning through tools that allow him to stop and follow while reading video presentations is more effective than the presentations that run from start to finish without interruption [11]. This is because digital video segmentation gives the learner the opportunity to stop the flow of information when necessary, and allows him to process information more precisely, thus promoting the learning process [12]. Although a large number of studies in literature supported segmented instruction (SI) versus non-segmented instruction (NSI) [10, 13, 14], the comparison between segmented and non-segmented remains one of the variables that need to be studied within a context that necessitates interaction with other variables [15].

Learning from videos across the web should not only be limited to viewing; however, the viewing process should be linked to a set of questions related to the video content [16, 17]. Regardless of the number of segments of a video - whether one or several - it is important to determine the best location for the questions that relate with each part of the video. Are the questions located before the beginning of each part? or are they placed at the end of each part? The use of questions within the videos is one of the important variables that need to be studied, especially that it has a strong relationship to the learner's ability to remember and retrieve [18]. Research in studies that focused on the placement of questions, whether before or after the learning content, leads us to the fact that most of the benefits that can be obtained from linking questions to videos comes from studies that have raised questions after viewing the content, while there is little knowledge about the potential benefits of questions being raised before viewing the content, although previous content questions help students encode subsequent information and improve memory performance [19]. In addition, the pre-questions that precede each part of the video may also be important and can be considered as a key tool that guides students to what they will learn and draw their curiosity for learning. It can also be used as a tool for Metacognition [20]. While some believe that pre questions may not enhance or even hamper the learning process because in this case they serve as a selective indicator for the learner's information that the learner should pay attention to what follows in content, thus ignoring other information that are not covered in pre questions [19], others believe that the importance of questions at the end of each part of a video comes as an indicator for hav-

ing the learner complete watching all the video content and ensure that being exposed to all the key content contained in the clip [16]. It also tests what the learner watches in the videos and helps him apply his new knowledge and however enhance the learning process [21].

The researcher was interested in the groups that handle video as based on segmentation and question location as one of the approaches that aimed at finding solutions to the problem the researcher encountered when teaching the e-learning course for students of the College of Education, especially that the in-classroom learning activities are based on a review of some of the available web-related videos of the course topics, that is followed by a discussion based on the review to the content of these clips. However, the researcher noted an inability to recall the contents of these sections, which are displayed free of charge through some sites and applications that do not have any characteristics based on the segmentation or locating questions, such as (YouTube) and (Vimeo). The researcher went on to try to know the effect of segmentation and the question location in the video clips to enhance the recall capabilities of the students of the College of Education in the e-learning curriculum.

Based on what have been mentioned above, the current research aims to determine the effect of video segmentation (segmentation vs. non-segmentation) and the location of questions through segmented videos, that is, before (prequestion) or after (postquestion) in developing the recall skill within the mobile platforms that are employed in teaching some subjects related to the e-learning course of students of the College of Education, University of Jeddah.

Therefore, the present research attempts to answer the following questions:

- (RQ1) What is the effect of segmenting videos (segmentation vs. non-segmentation) across mobile platforms in developing the recall skills of students?
- (RQ2) What is the impact of question location within the video (pre-question or post-question) across mobile platforms in developing the recall skills of students?
- (RQ3) What is the impact of the interaction between video segmentation and question location across mobile platforms in in developing the recall skills of students?
- The current research also tries to validate the following hypothesis:
- (H1) There is no statistically significant difference at the level of ≤ 0.05 between the mean scores of the experimental groups in the post measure of the recall test; due to the effect of segmentation.
- (H2) There is no statistically significant difference at the level of ≤ 0.05 between the mean scores of the experimental groups in the post measure of the recall test; due to the effect of question location.
- (H3) There is no statistically significant difference at the level of ≤ 0.05 between the mean scores of the experimental groups in the post measure of the recall test; due to the effect of the interaction between segmentation and question location.

2 Literature Review

2.1 Mobile video platforms

The e-learning revolution has produced a variety of systems that can be relied on in various learning and teaching processes, including mobile Platforms which have become dependent on unconventional tools in managing educational situations [22, 23]. mobile platforms have become one of the active tools in developing cooperation and creative thinking among learners [24, 25], and has proved reliable in the development of student engagement and responsible learning processes [3, 26]. The design variables of the mobile platforms have also created motivation and stimulation for learners to complete learning tasks [27], and improve learning through active participation in discussions and tasks [27]. Recent popular platforms include video-based platforms, including the edpuzzle platform which succeeded in providing interactive tools such as adding questions in various formats (right and wrong, multiple choice, and open questions). It also allows segmenting video clips so that each clip can handle specific subject area. Other features for these new platforms include anti-skipping to ensure that the student views all the contents of each section of the clip, with a choice that allow the student to re-view specific parts [28]. In addition, these new platforms accept adding subtitles to the clips and using them as a translation bar. They activate content aggregation feature that allow viewing available digital web-based sources next to the video clip through the platform [4].

The main content of the video platforms, which are the video clips themselves, and considering redesigning them so that learners can recall their contents again is an important issue [29]. It is essential for the instructional designer to keep in mind that large videos which exceed 10 minutes may result in the learner not completing the video content [30]. Some cognitive studies have shown that after 10 minutes the learner's stimuli gradually disappear, which means that the learner may not complete the video and then seek new videos immediately [31].

Other studies suggest that it is better to have an average video length of (6) minutes per clip [32]. However, when a video for one lesson is segmented for more than one part, the total parts of all videos should not exceed 20 minutes [33]. In addition, the presence of the teacher in these sections and the use of body language to emphasize some important information increases the student's interest in content areas where a teacher is present [34]. It may also be better to employ tools that allow discussion and comments on the contents of sections that are broadcasted to learners, so that the teacher can support learners who need some guidance when they study outside the classroom and respond to them within a short time rather than waiting for the scheduled class time [16, 35].

2.2 Digital video segmentation

Video segmentation is based on a premise that these presentations provide fast and continuous information flows, and each flow of information needs to be processed in

the working memory. Therefore, when not giving the learner enough time to process this information, it is likely that he/she may replace a new information with a previous one regularly without having them stored in the long-term memory [36]. That is why the process of segmentation work to divide the video into successive meaningful clips [37] by adding pauses between these parts that allow the learner to move from one part to another after pressing a follow button [38]. This helps reduce the cognitive load, organize new knowledge, address pre-stop content, control learners' speed of learning, and enable understanding of complex information and content [36, 39-41].

Segmentation also gives learners an opportunity to learn how to extract important information from a specific part before moving on to the next, as well as analyse the visual spatial structure of the content on the screen, which can be difficult to do when the display is constantly changing [42]. Several studies that were interested in segmentation processing versus non-segmentation processing have shown that segmentation process is very effective in developing the ability to acquire knowledge, apply new strategies [10], solving problems [14], enhance performance and conduct cognitive processes [43], and enhance the ability to recall [44].

The segmentation process can be considered as a form of temporal cueing [36], where the segmentation process allows a better focusing on the mini and magnified events within a single video clip [45]. Some have attributed the failure of some digital media - including video - in making a change in learning outcomes to a media design that lacks time organization; this time organization allows the learner to easily process web-based content. This makes segmentation one of the important design factors that should be taken into consideration when designing learning materials, especially that is a key tool that control the timing when processing the educational content [43]. However, segmentation is very important even when the learner does not have control on moving from one part to another withing the digital medium. This was made clear in the study of Spanjers [15] which pointed out that the automatic stop for (2) seconds that is followed by a display of information without any control on the part of the learner has positive results when compared to the display that goes without any stops.

2.3 Question location within digital video clips

Examining the optimal placement of questions within digital videos whether before or at the beginning of the segment means looking at the ideal design to employ questions as an instructional tool within the mobile video platforms, rather than simply looking at questions as tools for measurement and evaluation [19, 46]. This trend and orientation encourage having a good number of mobile video platforms that provide a variety of tools to manage the set of questions across videos [6, 47]. Questions that are presented at the beginning of learning process are called pre-question, while the questions that are presented at the end of the section are referred to as post-questions, and the various positions of the questions in the learning materials have multiple effects on the learners, so it is important to examine the optimal position for the placement of questions with regards to learning outcomes [48]. Some argue that the reliance on pre-questions means simply an activation of the prior knowledge, and an increase of the learners' concentration on the educational materials that will be pre-

sented later [19], while the post-questions are more related to the idea of retaining the impact of learning and raising the rates of remembrance [49]. Some studies have shown the effectiveness of the instructional materials that are preceded by questions as compared with other educational materials that are not preceded by any questions for memory development [50, 51]; this can also be found in the study of [19] that targeted a comparison between two groups. First is the experimental and it answered the pre-questions before watching the videos, the second is a control group that watched the videos without pre-questions. The results have shown that the performance of the experimental group was better than the control group, which means that there are positive effects when including pre-questions in videos. While other studies have indicated that there are limited effects of pre-questions; these effects are limited only to information that focused only on pre-questions [52, 53]. As an example, [52] presented a series of multiple-choice questions in three positions, one before explaining the lecture, the second at the end of the lecture, and the third before the unit test. The results indicated an improvement in the performance of students who got prequestions in the two groups, although they did not recall the pre-questioned information in the same way they recall non pre-questioned information. Hence, more than one study has pointed out that a failure to answer pre-questions by learners does not affect the positive advantages that pre-questions offer, especially that their primary role is coding the subsequent information [53, 54]. When some criticize the prequestions for their influence in directing the learner to pick only information related to questions [46], it can be noted that video presentations may not face this challenge because they have the ability to control the frequency of information display, allowing the learner to watch all information included in the presentation [46]. Some argue that the post-questions that come at the end of learning processes may have a significant role in improving the understanding of the content of previous questions, especially when these questions focus on inferences and the main ideas that relate to the displayed content, where this kind of question is considered in this case as Adjunct Questions [55]. In a study by [56] that compared the post-questions with the questions generated during learning or learning without questions, the results have shown the effectiveness of the post-questions in improving the efficacy of the recalling skills of the main ideas and factual details.

2.4 The ability to recall

The recall is the individual's ability to restore the information stored in his memory, and it is also the ability to remember information when instantly needed [57]. This recall may be a serial recall, in which the material must be remembered in a particular order, and there is also another kind of recall called free recall, through which the information can be brought in any order, and there is also an ordered recall where the learner must recall the words as requested and he/she should identify the sequence or the location of the words that he remembered. Another kind of recall is the caused recall where the learner is given certain information that could help him mention the requested topic, such as the first letter of the word [58-60]. Moreover, recall is one of the components of a broader process called retrieval; it contains two

major elements: recognition and recall where recognition is a form of memory, and it is easier than the recall because it depends on the existence of previously learnt stimulus. Recognition means that what the individual sees or hears in the present is part of a prior knowledge, while recall is concerned with remembering events and experiences that were learned in the past without an existed stimuli or situations that led to learning [61]. Recall requires two types of activities: first is to search the memory to determine the required information, and second is a simple examination to identify whether the information is familiar or not.

Segmentation can affect the learner's ability to recall information due to the ability of segmentation in organizing the encryption, processing, and storing of information in memory and recalling it from memory. This ultimately affects the memory capacity to perform the recall processes [38]. In addition, questions location significantly affects the ability to recall because pre-questions give indicators for a focus on subsequent content, which means paying more attention and encoding it. On the other hand, post-questions are certainly related to a previously presented information and a training to recall a content that relate to this type of question [52]. The video is also generally an effective tool in addressing the problems of recall as well as its active role in enhancing recall and has great ability to handle the recall errors [62]. The general characteristics of mobile video platforms support anti-oblivion and the ability to recall and remember. According to the decay theory, the main reason for obliviousness is the lack of use or practice of the acquired experience and the theory emphasizes the need to practice and use information from time to time to help retain them and keeping them vivid in memory [63]. The mobile video platforms that are based on segmentation and adding question solutions for dealing with obliviousness by allowing the learner to see each part of the content more than once and get trained to recall and encode information more than once, which ultimately enhances the learner's ability to recall [22, 23].

3 Theoretical Framework

Presenting the content at a rapid pace and in continuous flows without any interruption may exceed the cognitive ability of the learner and thus lead to a cognitive overload [12]. This means that instead of displaying videos in continuous flows, it is better to display them in segments by adding stops within the video through which the learner can moves from one part to another according to his desire and speed in acquiring information [36]. This comes in line with Richard Mayer's Cognitive Theory of Multimedia Learning (CTML) which recognizes the principle of segmentation. It is one of the basic principles of a theory that relates to how information is handled. The principle indicates that learning is best done when presenting content in parts to allow the learner to move between them at his/her own desire rather than continuously displaying them automatically [12]. Working memory performs three things at once: processing information related to external stimuli in working memory, keeping new information in working memory, retrieving information from long-term memory. The working memory capacity is in normal condition limited, and in case the cognitive

demands of an educational task exceed the memory capacity, it leads to Cognitive Overload. However, using segmentation in this case is one of the solutions through which the amount of information processed by the learner can be controlled without any cognitive overload [10, 44].

The Event Segmentation Theory (EST) recognizes an important principle that states that individuals recognize and perceive any activity in the form of separate events through a process called mental segmentation which happens by setting boundaries between events so that current information get perceived, attention processes become organized, and knowledge be stored in the long-term memory. This happens through a procedural process in which the person forms models of the event in his working memory on the basis of sensory information and prior knowledge. Based on these models, predictions are made of what will happen at the next moment and are then compared with what actually happens according to the new sensory information received, and when a difference exists between the expectations and the new sensory received information, a new event model will be constructed for the next part, and in this case the so-called event boundaries are distinguished [64]. There is no doubt that the principle of video clips segmentation provided within the digital video system platforms comes in line with the theory of the event by dividing video clips into separate events which make it easier for the learner process and understand the events' components.

According to Cognitive Load Theory (CLT), the more diverse are the sources of learning and the more varied are the relationships between these sources, the more cognitive burden it puts on the learner, and this makes the subject becomes more difficult in the learning process. However, one of the solutions that must be taken into account to solve such a problem is to provide sufficient time for the learner to be able to handle all elements of learning and draw up relationships between these elements [65]. Therefore, segmentation is offered as one of the solutions, which is compatible with the cognitive load theory, in providing the learner with enough time to process web-based educational presentations, which includes a diverse number of educational elements and topics [36, 66]. It is also important to take into consideration that segmentation may expand the time needed for learning due to the provided pauses through digital videos. However, cognitive load and learning outcomes do not improve with the span of time regardless of how long it is; rather, segmentation is the key factor in improving learning outcomes and in preparing the cognitive load for the learner to receive and process new information. This can be illustrated by Hassler and his colleagues, who have demonstrated the effectiveness of segmentation in all conditions under which the learning time was unified [67].

In normal educational environments, questions and tests are often considered tools for evaluating students' knowledge. It is an annoying event for both students and teaching staff; it is carried out at specific times of the academic year to assess knowledge and efficiency. However, questions are deeper than merely a measure of knowledge, they are effective tools for memory development and retention of what has been learnt; a phenomenon known as testing effect, which in other words mean to what could questions contribute to the survival of the learning effect [49]. Thus, the use of questions within digital stems from a rule that considers questions as a strategy

to acquire knowledge rather than a test or measure of learners' knowledge, and that the questions as unit is one of the learning events that has an effectiveness in the development of learning outcomes. This effectiveness may go beyond the direct study of a content that does not include any questions [53]. Questions are therefore one of the learning tools, and if any education system has a core set of tools that assist its learning process, questions should be considered as one of the most important tools.

4 Methodology

4.1 Design

This research is based on the semi-experimental approach. It relies on the factorial design (2×2) , which is used to measure the effect of independent variables, segmentation, question location on the dependent variable Recall that is related with the study of some of the topics of the e-learning course by the students of the College of Education at the University of Jeddah, and the following table (1) illustrates the experimental design of the research.

	Segmented video (SV)	Non-segmented video (NSV)
Pre-Questions (PREQ)	Group (1): A segmented video that con- sists of five parts; each part is preceded by questions	Group (2): A video that consists of one part and preceded by questions
Post-questions (POSTQ)	Group (3): A segmented video that con- sists of five parts; each part is followed by questions	Group (4): A video that consists of one part and followed by questions

Table 1. Research Experimental Design (2×2)

4.2 Sample

The current research sample consisted of 63 female students from the College of Education at the University of Jeddah in Saudi Arabia who are studying an "E-Learning" course. Students who were good at using the platform and who have the desire to participate were nominated. The selected students were randomly assigned into four groups, (PREQ + SV) which includes (17) students; the second group (PREQ + NSV) and it includes (16) students; the third group (POSTQ + SV) includes (15) students; and the fourth group (POSTQ + NSV) includes also (15) students.

4.3 Measures

The research sample students' ability to recall was evaluated by an open-ended test, in which the students answered two main questions, each was divided into four parts, which stimulated the recall of what was explained on the platform. The participants answered each question by writing their answers in each of the four question boxes; each box is allocated to one part of the four question arts. Each student's re-

sponse was evaluated by two teachers (interrater reliability, r = .88). The total value of the recall test scores was (46), which goes as follow: (23) degrees for each question where (3) degrees were assigned for the classification part; (3) degrees for the types part of; (6) degrees were also assigned to the characteristics part; (6) degrees for the tools part; and (5) degrees for the development cycle part. Recall Test Appendix (A)

4.4 Procedures

The procedures of the current research have been implemented according to the phases of educational design, specified in (5) basic phases as follows:

4.5 The analysis phase

During this phase, the basic to-be implemented task across the mobile video platform in the current research was analyzed. The educational tasks were based on the study of educational platforms and Web 2.0 applications which are one of the main topics of the e-learning course at the College of Education, University of Jeddah.

Each topic covered 5 main themes: concepts, types, characteristics, tools, and development cycle. The characteristics of the sample students were analyzed with regard to the previous use of mobile platforms. 77% of Students indicated that they use some platforms like Edmodo, and Edpuzzel. In addition, more than one mobile video platform were analyzed, such as Edpuzzel and Educanon, and the Edpuzzel platform was developed because it has all the potentials and characteristics associated with the research variables, and because of the popularity of this platform among the sample students. In addition, this platform (Edpuzzel) has the following features:

- A choice to upload or recall videos from video sharing sites such as YouTube.
- A free download of clips with a capacity of (1) Giga.
- An ability to create more than one chapter, with each having its own independent properties.
- Pauses and segmentation for videos are available.
- Each section can be re-viewed separately.
- A skip feature is available for any part of the video.
- Statistical information about whether or not the student is watching the video, the last time a video was watched, and the total percentage of students completing the video all can be provided.
- A control for the amount of time made available for viewing videos is also available.
- A choice to add questions within your videos and receive answers.
- A choice for sharing video with students through their various accounts.
- A choice to identify the number of students viewing each videos independently.
- A feedback on student inquiries and questions can be provided.

4.6 The design phase

During this stage the video platform and segmentation variables were designed and placed as follows:

Designing Educational Objectives: The educational objectives were based on (10) basic objectives related to the subjects of educational platforms and Web 2.0 applications.

Designing a Presentation for Digital Video: Two visual presentations were designed for educational platforms and Web 2.0 applications, each displaying the five core topics identified in the learning tasks. the learning objectives were also identified in the previous step, then a re-recording of the presentation has been made through one of the screen cam programs (SnagIt), and the video time range has been made not to exceed (10) minutes, so as to guarantee that the learner stay concentrated during the whole period of the video display.

Segmenting the Digital Video Clip: There are two modules for the digital video, which were designed as follows:

Segmenting Video (SV): Video clips were segmented in this module into five parts; each part includes one of the previously mentioned educational subject areas. The balance between these parts was taken into account with regards to time range, and the segmentation was performed using the Add Questions tool within the platform which will be provided with questions – both Pre and Post -in the next stage.

Non-Segmented Videos (NSV): In this processing, the video is played without any segmentation, which means that the video is only made of one part with a duration of 10-minute with no pauses.

Designing Question Location: Post and pre-questions were designed as to have the same formulations, but the only substantive difference between them was in the specific position of each question. The researcher was keen on directing a question for each of the content areas which are identified in five areas.

Designing Pre-question Location: Regarding the position of the pre-question within the segmented videos, a question was added before each of the five parts of the video. Question (1) starts at the first second of part one of the video presentations. In addition, each added pause contain a pre-question of the next part; while for nonsegmented videos, (5) questions were added at the first second of the video presentation.

Designing Post-question Location: Regarding the position of the post-question within the segmented videos, a question was added after each of the five parts of the video. Question (1) starts at the end of pause for part one. In addition, each added pause contains a post-question of the previous part; while for non-segmented videos, (5) questions were added at the end of the last minute (minute 10) of the video presentation.



Fig. 1. Illustrates the patterns of video segmentation and question location within the four experimental groups

Figure 1 Segment videos and question locations according to the experimental design

Specify the time period for viewing the video: Using the (Due) tool, one day was only allocated before the final application of the recall test.

Prevent Skipping: The "prevent skipping" option has been activated to prevent skipping of any part of the video before viewing it.

4.7 The development phase

At this stage, the teacher's account was activated through the Edpuzzel platform. Four semesters were also created; each one is assigned to an experimental processing. The code of each group was obtained. The structural evaluation of the platform was also carried out.

4.8 The application phase

At this stage, the equivalence of the groups was confirmed, the learning process was launched and the tasks performed via the digital video platform, the final post-implementation of the recall test was then carried out.

5 Results

The results of the four experimental groups were analyzed for Recall among the research sample students in relation to the Mean Scores and Standard Deviations, and with regards to current search variables, Segmentation and Non-segmentation(SV, NSV), Question location (Preq, Postq) Explains the results of the analysis. Table (2) illustrates the results of the analysis.

	segme	Total	
Question location	SV NSV		
	Mean=42.35	Mean=30.94	Mean=36.82
PREQ	SD=1.32	SD=1.95	SD=6.02
	N=17	N=16	N=33
POSTQ	Mean=37.07	Mean=23.33	Mean=30.20
	SD=1.33	SD=1.11	SD=7.09
	N=15	N=15	N=30
	Mean=39.88	Mean=27.26	Mean=33.67
Total	SD=2.98	SD=4.17	SD=7.30
	N=32	N=31	N=63

Table 2. Mean scores and standard deviations of the four research groups

The two-way ANOVA was conducted on the students' recall scores according to the segmentation (SV, NSV) and question location (PREQ, POSTQ) to identify significant differences between groups. Table (3) shows the results of two-way ANOVA.

 Table 3. The two-way ANOVA on the students' recall scores according to the segmentation and question location

Sum of Square	df	Mean of Square	F	Sig.	դ2
652.50	1	652.499	302.92	0.00	.837
2483.58	1	2483.581	1153.00	0.00	.951
21.10	1	21.098	9.70	0.00	.142
127.09	59	2.154			
74711.00	63				
	Sum of Square 652.50 2483.58 21.10 127.09 74711.00	Sum of Square df 652.50 1 2483.58 1 21.10 1 127.09 59 74711.00 63	Sum of SquaredfMean of Square652.501652.4992483.5812483.58121.10121.098127.09592.15474711.0063	Sum of Square df Mean of Square F 652.50 1 652.499 302.92 2483.58 1 2483.581 1153.00 21.10 1 21.098 9.70 127.09 59 2.154 1 74711.00 63	Sum of Square df Mean of Square F Sig. 652.50 1 652.499 302.92 0.00 2483.58 1 2483.581 1153.00 0.00 21.10 1 21.098 9.70 0.00 127.09 59 2.154 - - 74711.00 63 - - -

A summary of the main effects and interactions are presented in the three sections that follow:

5.1 Effects of video segmentation

The results have shown that there was significant difference on the main effect for the segmentation $[F_{(1, 63)}=302.923, P=0.00]$. Results indicated that (SV) students [M=39.88] significantly outscored (NSV) [M=27.26] in the recall scores. When estimating the effect size (Partial Eta Squared) to quantify and explain how much better the effect was, the results showed that the effect size was large for this interaction (η 2= 0.837), and so this result has practical implications for instructional designers of video.

5.2 Effects of question location

The results have shown that there was significant difference on the main effect for the question location [$F_{(1, 63)}$ = 1153.004, P=0.00]. Results indicated that (Preq) students [M=36.82] significantly outscored (POSTQ) [M=30.20] in the recall scores. When estimating the effect size (Partial Eta Squared) to quantify and explain how much better the effect was, the results showed that the effect size was large for this interaction (η 2= 0. 951), and so this result has practical implications for instructional designers of question location.

5.3 Effects of interaction between the video segmentation and question location

The interaction between the segmentation and question location has shown significant difference [$F_{(1, 63)} = 9.795$, p=0.003]. When estimating the effect size (Partial Eta Squared) to quantify and explain how much better the effect was, the results have shown that the effect size was noticeably large for this interaction (η 2= 0. 142). Result of Schiff's post hoc comparison indicated that (SV+PREQ) students [M=42.35] significantly outscored (NSV+PREQ) [M=30.94] [LSD=11.41, P=0.00], (SV+POSTQ) [M=37.07] [LSD=5.28, P=0.00] and (NSV+POSTQ) [M=23.33] [LSD=19.02, P=0.00] students in in the recall scores. Also results showed that (SV+POSTQ) [M=37.07] significantly outscored (NSV+PREQ) [M=30.94] [LSD=6.13, P=0.00], and (NSV+POSTQ) [M=23.33][LSD=13.74,P=0.00] in the recall scores. The results have also shown that (NSV+PREQ)[M=30.94] significantly outscored (NSV+PREQ)[M=30.94] [LSD=6.13, P=0.00], [M=23.33] [LSD=7.61, P=0.00] in the recall scores.

6 Discussion

6.1 Effects of video segmentation

The result that indicated the effectiveness of segmentation versus nonsegmentation of digital video in developing recall can be traced back to the ability of segmentation to organize learning subjects, and to place each cognitive unit in its own part; this helped learners understand the details of each part, process it and store it in their memory. The process of segmentation sets a dividing line between each cognitive unit and the unit that follows, thus giving the learner an opportunity to manipulate the content, and not be affected by the successive frequency at which the subsequent presentation can erase what was presented in the previous presentation. The process of segmentation helped to reduce the cognitive burden on learner and free his knowledge resources in a way that helped the sample individuals encode the majority of the information presented in the videos. The process of segmentation thus equipped the learners with greater ability to retrieve the acquired content. The real value of segmentation as compared to non-segmentation lies in the fact that it gives each learner enough time for a flexible handling to all learning contents. So it is the learner

who decides when to step forward and to what extent he can wait in this part; the learner can also watch the video again and again which is constantly reflected on the learner's recall-related capabilities. The current result is consistent with the cognitive theory of multimedia learning that recognizes the principle of segmentation in which learning is more effective when presenting content in the form of parts as it allows students to move between them. Segmentation rates according to the cognitive theory of multimedia learning may be one of the solutions that help control the amount of information that the learner handles without any additional knowledge burden. This finding is again consistent with was stated in the theory of segmentation, which pointed out that individuals are primarily aware of ongoing information in the form of separate events, and that segmentation gives the learner greater opportunity to deal with the presented events through what is known as mental segmentation. There is a consistency between the result of this research and the results of a large number of studies that targeted segmentation; the results of these studies have shown that segmentation are the best solution for the learner's coding, processing, and retrieve, which is ultimately reflected positively on what is called the recall [15, 36, 38, 68].

6.2 Effects of question location

The result that indicated the effectiveness of the placement of pre-questions as compared to post-question in the development of recall ability can be traced back to the fact that the placement of questions initially before viewing the information can provide signs to the cognitive content that must be focused on within the video. This state of alerting to the subsequent content of the videos, which makes the learner in a state of constant attention to search for information that matches the questions presented at the beginning of the content. However, pre-questions in this case act as wake-up stimuli of the coming video content, which makes the learner in a state of constant attention ready to search for information that matches the questions presented at the beginning of the content. In addition, the nature of the place in which the pre-questions are located makes it able to encode the basic themes of information, which makes the learner able to retrieve them again in more than one situation. Prequestions can also be considered as orientation keys to a testable content, which makes the learner highly focused with a content that relates to the presented questions, and thus can easily retrieve it later. Unlike post-questions, pre-questions can be considered as a planning tool for the following learning events and activities. When learners are presented with questions before watching the video, they become in an organized status for all the content details that he/she must learn. Learners' attention is at its highest level at the beginning of any educational situation and it begins to diminish over time. This may explain the strong influence of pre-questions as compared to the post-questions where the learner usually gives less attention to posquestion as compared to pre-questions. In addition, post-questions can be considered as a confirmation of the already raised information and do not have a role in coding knowledge, unlike pre-questions. This finding is consistent with what has been pointed out that pre-testing are effective tools in memory development and aniobliviousness, especially when the learner succeeds in answering these questions. It is

also a strategy that helps acquire knowledge rather than being an assessment tool for knowledge. This means that pre-testing can be used as a reliable educational tool within videos clips to organize coding, processing and storing information, and then retrieve it again. This result corresponds to previous studies that indicated the effectiveness of pre-testing [19, 50, 51, 53].

6.3 Effects of interaction between the video segmentation and question location:

This finding which states that the highest recall rate was for the group that used a segmented video with pre-questions can be traced to the fact the video segmentation helped students organize their learning and gave them the opportunity through various offered pauses to observe what was raised by pre-questions. Pauses also helped students to practice linking pre-questions with what was subsequently presented to them. It can also be said that video segmentation has contributed to enhance appropriating videos for the schematic role that pre-questions play. The success of the group who used video segmentation associated with pre-question over the third group who used segmented videos associated with post-question can be attributed to the fact that the handling done with the third group lacked the guiding and orienting role that prequestions could play; the third group relied on the post-questions that played an affirmative role on prior knowledge. The success of the handling done by the first group over the handling done by the second and fourth groups, which included nonsegmented video clips, can be traced to the fact that the handling of the second and fourth group faced additional cognitive burden because the clips did not have pauses that could enable the learner handle the already presented information and knowledge. The handling done with the second and fourth group lacked having intervals between the main themes of the content which reduced the learner's chances of an in-depth handling for each learning theme.

7 Conclusion

The current research focused on some design variables for web-based digital videos. These variables were based on segmentation, question location, and their relation with the recall ability. The research concluded that segmented videos have an advantage over non-segmented videos, pre-questions also have an advantage over postquestions, and that there is an advantage for the handling that includes interactions between segmentation and pre-questions. In the opinion of the research team that future research associated with mobile video platforms may be directed towards studying the relationship between some of the design variables of videos and the cognitive approaches of learners. Due to the importance of the role of the teacher in the process of learning, it is possible to study the degree of the teacher's presence through digital videos. Although the segmentation variable has been studied in more than one study, video segmentation rates still require further studies. Mobile video platforms need to

be developed so that to become compatible with specific categories of special needs people and addressing this issue is recommended by research orientations.

8 References

- K.-B. Ooi, J.-J. Hew, and V.-H. Lee, "Could the mobile and social perspectives of mobile social learning platforms motivate learners to learn continuously?," Computers & Education, vol. 120, pp. 127-145, 2018/05/01/ 2018. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2018.01</u> .017
- [2] A. A. Zeidan, W. S. Alhalafawy, and M. Z. Tawfiq, "The Effect of (Macro/Micro) Wiki Content Organization on Developing Metacognition Skills," Life Science Journal, vol. 14, p. 12, 2017.
- [3] K. Balasubramanian, V. Jaykumar, and L. N. Fukey, "A Study on "Student Preference towards the Use of Edmodo as a Learning Platform to Create Responsible Learning Environment"," Procedia - Social and Behavioral Sciences, vol. 144, pp. 416-422, 2014/08/20/ 2014. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sbspro.2014.07.311
- [4] A. Kleftodimos and G. Evangelidis, "An interactive video-based learning environment supporting learning analytics: Insights obtained from analyzing learner activity data," in State-of-the-Art and Future Directions of Smart Learning, ed: Springer, 2016, pp. 471-481. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-287-868-7 56
- [5] S. Rabidoux and A. Rottmann, "Re-envisioning the Archaic Higher Education Learning Environment: Implementation Processes for Flipped Classrooms," International Journal on E-Learning, vol. 17, pp. 85-93, 2018.
- [6] C. C. Shelton, A. E. Warren, and L. M. Archambault, "Exploring the use of interactive digital storytelling video: Promoting student engagement and learning in a university hybrid course," TechTrends, vol. 60, pp. 465-474, 2016. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s11528-016-0082-z</u>
- [7] C.-L. Lai and G.-J. Hwang, "A self-regulated flipped classroom approach to improving students' learning performance in a mathematics course," Computers & Education, vol. 100, pp. 126-140, 2016/09/01/ 2016. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2016.05.006</u>
- [8] Y.-T. Chien and C.-Y. Chang, "Comparison of different instructional multimedia designs for improving student science-process skill learning," Journal of Science Education and Technology, vol. 21, pp. 106-113, 2012. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10956-011-9286-3</u>
- [9] M. Merkt, S. Weigand, A. Heier, and S. Schwan, "Learning with videos vs. learning with print: The role of interactive features," Learning and Instruction, vol. 21, pp. 687-704, 2011. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.learninstruc.2011.03.004</u>
- [10] D. L. Lusk, A. D. Evans, T. R. Jeffrey, K. R. Palmer, C. S. Wikstrom, and P. E. Doolittle, "Multimedia learning and individual differences: Mediating the effects of working memory capacity with segmentation," British Journal of Educational Technology, vol. 40, pp. 636-651, 2009. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1467-8535.2008.00848.x</u>
- [11] R. E. Mayer and P. Chandler, "When learning is just a click away: Does simple user interaction foster deeper understanding of multimedia messages?," Journal of educational psychology, vol. 93, p. 390, 2001. <u>https://doi.org/10.1037//0022-0663.93.2.390</u>
- [12] R. E. Mayer, The Cambridge handbook of multimedia learning: Cambridge university press, 2005.
- [13] H. Hassanabadi, E. S. Robatjazi, and A. P. Savoji, "Cognitive consequences of segmentation and modality methods in learning from instructional animations," Procedia-Social and

Behavioral Sciences, vol. 30, pp. 1481-1487, 2011. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sbspro.2011.</u> 10.287

- [14] H. K. Tabbers and B. de Koeijer, "Learner control in animated multimedia instructions," Instructional Science, vol. 38, pp. 441-453, 2010. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s11251-009-9119-4</u>
- [15] I. A. E. Spanjers, P. Wouters, T. van Gog, and J. J. G. van Merriënboer, "An expertise reversal effect of segmentation in learning from animated worked-out examples," Computers in Human Behavior, vol. 27, pp. 46-52, 2011/01/01/ 2011. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.20</u> <u>10.05.011</u>
- [16] A. Fidalgo-Blanco, M. Martinez-Nuñez, O. Borrás-Gene, and J. J. Sanchez-Medina, "Micro flip teaching–An innovative model to promote the active involvement of students," Computers in Human Behavior, vol. 72, pp. 713-723, 2017. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.</u> 2016.07.060
- [17] C. K. Lo, C. W. Lie, and K. F. Hew, "Applying "First Principles of Instruction" as a design theory of the flipped classroom: Findings from a collective study of four secondary school subjects," Computers & Education, vol. 118, pp. 150-165, 2018/03/01/ 2018. <u>https:// doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2017.12.003</u>
- [18] S. K. Carpenter, S. Rahman, and K. Perkins, "The effects of prequestions on classroom learning," Journal of Experimental Psychology: Applied, vol. 24, p. 34, 2018. <u>https:// doi.org/10.1037/xap0000145</u>
- [19] S. K. Carpenter and A. R. Toftness, "The effect of prequestions on learning from video presentations," Journal of Applied Research in Memory and Cognition, vol. 6, pp. 104-109, 2017. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jarmac.2016.07.014</u>
- [20] B. Finn and S. K. Tauber, "When confidence is not a signal of knowing: How students' experiences and beliefs about processing fluency can lead to miscalibrated confidence," Educational Psychology Review, vol. 27, pp. 567-586, 2015. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s106</u> <u>48-015-9313-7</u>
- [21] C. K. Lo, C. W. Lie, and K. F. Hew, "Applying "First Principles of Instruction" as a design theory of the flipped classroom: Findings from a collective study of four secondary school subjects," Computers & Education, vol. 118, pp. 150-165, 2018/03/01/ 2018. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2017.12.003</u>
- [22] S. Arnab, R. Bhakta, S. K. Merry, M. Smith, K. Star, and M. Duncan, "Competition and Collaboration Using a Social and Gamified Online Learning Platform," in 10th European Conference on Games Based Learning: ECGBL 2016, 2016, p. 19.
- [23] M. Urh, G. Vukovic, E. Jereb, and R. Pintar, "The Model for Introduction of Gamification into E-learning in Higher Education," Procedia - Social and Behavioral Sciences, vol. 197, pp. 388-397, 2015/07/25/ 2015. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sbspro.2015.07.154</u>
- [24] M. Thongmak, "Social network system in classroom: antecedents of Edmodo© adoption," Journal of e-Learning and Higher Education, vol. 2013, pp. 1-15, 2013. <u>https://doi.org/10.5171/2013.657749</u>
- [25] H. M. Alfawareh and S. Jusoh, "The Use and Effects of Smartphones in Higher Education," International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies (iJIM), vol. 11, pp. 103-111, 2017. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v11i6.7453</u>
- [26] R. A. Ali and M. R. M. Arshad, "Investigating the Perception of Students Regarding M-Learning Concept in Egyptian Schools," iJIM, vol. 11, pp. 112-122, 2017. <u>https://doi.org/ 10.3991/ijim.v11i6.7361</u>
- [27] M. Batsila, C. Tsihouridis, and D. Vavougios, "Entering the Web-2 Edmodo World to Support Learning: Tracing Teachers' Opinion After Using it in their Classes," International

Journal of Emerging Technologies in Learning, vol. 9, 2014. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/</u> ijet.v9i1.3018

- [28] C. Webel, C. Sheffel, and K. A. Conner, "Flipping instruction in a fifth grade class: A case of an elementary mathematics specialist," Teaching and Teacher Education, vol. 71, pp. 271-282, 2018/04/01/ 2018. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tate.2018.01.007</u>
- [29] T. Endres, S. Carpenter, A. Martin, and A. Renkl, "Enhancing learning by retrieval: Enriching free recall with elaborative prompting," Learning and Instruction, vol. 49, pp. 13-20, 2017/06/01/ 2017. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.learninstruc.2016.11.010</u>
- [30] K.-y. Lee and Y.-c. Lai, "Facilitating higher-order thinking with the flipped classroom model: a student teacher's experience in a Hong Kong secondary school," Research and Practice in Technology Enhanced Learning, vol. 12, p. 8, 2017. <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/ s41039-017-0048-6</u>
- [31] J. Medina, Brain rules: 12 principles for surviving and thriving at work, home, and school: ReadHowYouWant. com, 2011.
- [32] P. J. Guo, J. Kim, and R. Rubin, "How video production affects student engagement: An empirical study of mooc videos," in Proceedings of the first ACM conference on Learning@ scale conference, 2014, pp. 41-50. <u>https://doi.org/10.1145/2556325.2566239</u>
- [33] J. J. Vazquez and E. P. Chiang, "Flipping out! A case study on how to flip the principles of economics classroom," International Advances in Economic Research, vol. 21, pp. 379-390, 2015. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11294-015-9549-5
- [34] J. Wang and P. D. Antonenko, "Instructor presence in instructional video: Effects on visual attention, recall, and perceived learning," Computers in Human Behavior, vol. 71, pp. 79-89, 2017/06/01/ 2017. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2017.01.049</u>
- [35] H. Yoshida, "Perceived usefulness of" flipped learning" on instructional design for elementary and secondary education: With focus on pre-service teacher education," International Journal of Information and Education Technology, vol. 6, p. 430, 2016. <u>https://doi.org/10.7763/ijiet.2016.v6.727</u>
- [36] I. A. E. Spanjers, T. van Gog, and J. J. G. van Merriënboer, "A Theoretical Analysis of How Segmentation of Dynamic Visualizations Optimizes Students' Learning," Educational Psychology Review, vol. 22, pp. 411-423, 2010/12/01 2010. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/ s10648-010-9135-6</u>
- [37] W. Schnotz and R. K. Lowe, "A unified view of learning from animated and static graphics," Learning with animation: Research implications for design, pp. 304-356, 2008.
- [38] P. E. Doolittle, L. H. Bryant, and J. R. Chittum, "Effects of degree of segmentation and learner disposition on multimedia learning," British Journal of Educational Technology, vol. 46, pp. 1333-1343, 2015. https://doi.org/10.1111/bjet.12203
- [39] R. E. Mayer, G. T. Dow, and S. Mayer, "Multimedia learning in an interactive selfexplaining environment: What works in the design of agent-based microworlds?," Journal of educational psychology, vol. 95, p. 806, 2003. <u>https://doi.org/10.1037/0022-0663.95.4.806</u>
- [40] E. Akdemir and A. Arslan, "Development of Motivation Scale for Teachers," Procedia -Social and Behavioral Sciences, vol. 106, pp. 860-864, 2013/12/10/ 2013. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sbspro.2013.12.098</u>
- [41] A. Khacharem, I. A. E. Spanjers, B. Zoudji, S. Kalyuga, and H. Ripoll, "Using segmentation to support the learning from animated soccer scenes: An effect of prior knowledge," Psychology of Sport and Exercise, vol. 14, pp. 154-160, 2013/03/01/ 2013. <u>https://doi.org/ 10.1016/j.psychsport.2012.10.006</u>
- [42] R. K. Lowe, "Animation and learning: Value for money," in Beyond the comfort zone: Proceedings of the 21st ASCILITE Conference, 2004, pp. 558-561.

- [43] A. Z. M. Ali, "Effects of teacher controlled segmented-animation presentation in facilitating learning," Journal of Educational Multimedia and Hypermedia, vol. 19, pp. 367-378, 2010.
- [44] J. Cheon, S. Crooks, and S. Chung, "Does segmenting principle counteract modality principle in instructional animation?," British Journal of Educational Technology, vol. 45, pp. 56-64, 2014. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/bjet.12021</u>
- [45] K. Meyer, T. Rasch, and W. Schnotz, "Effects of animation's speed of presentation on perceptual processing and learning," Learning and Instruction, vol. 20, pp. 136-145, 2010. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.learninstruc.2009.02.016</u>
- [46] S. Rahman, "The effects of prequestions on classroom learning," Iowa State University, 2017.
- [47] A. Yassine, M. Berrada, A. Tahiri, and D. Chenouni, "A Cross-Platform Mobile Application for Learning Programming Basics," International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies (iJIM), vol. 12, pp. 139-151, 2018. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v12i7.9442</u>
- [48] F. J. Dowaliby, "Adjunct questions in prose: A question position-by-reading ability interaction," American annals of the deaf, pp. 50-53, 1990. <u>https://doi.org/10.1353/aad.2012.</u> 0430
- [49] H. L. Roediger III and J. D. Karpicke, "Test-enhanced learning: Taking memory tests improves long-term retention," Psychological science, vol. 17, pp. 249-255, 2006. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1467-9280.2006.01693.x</u>
- [50] S. K. Carpenter, "Testing enhances the transfer of learning," Current directions in psychological science, vol. 21, pp. 279-283, 2012.
- [51] J. Dunlosky, K. A. Rawson, E. J. Marsh, M. J. Nathan, and D. T. Willingham, "Improving students' learning with effective learning techniques: Promising directions from cognitive and educational psychology," Psychological Science in the Public Interest, vol. 14, pp. 4-58, 2013. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/1529100612453266</u>
- [52] M. A. McDaniel, P. K. Agarwal, B. J. Huelser, K. B. McDermott, and H. L. Roediger III, "Test-enhanced learning in a middle school science classroom: The effects of quiz frequency and placement," Journal of Educational Psychology, vol. 103, p. 399, 2011. <u>https:// doi.org/10.1037/a0021782</u>
- [53] L. E. Richland, N. Kornell, and L. S. Kao, "The pretesting effect: Do unsuccessful retrieval attempts enhance learning?," Journal of Experimental Psychology: Applied, vol. 15, p. 243, 2009. <u>https://doi.org/10.1037/a0016496</u>
- [54] M. Pressley, R. Tanenbaum, M. A. McDaniel, and E. Wood, "What happens when university students try to answer prequestions that accompany textbook material?," Contemporary Educational Psychology, vol. 15, pp. 27-35, 1990. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/0361-476x</u> (90)90003-j
- [55] S. T. Peverly and R. Wood, "The Effects of Adjunct Questions and Feedback on Improving the Reading Comprehension Skills of Learning-Disabled Adolescents," Contemporary Educational Psychology, vol. 26, pp. 25-43, 2001/01/01/ 2001. <u>https://doi.org/10.1006/ ceps.1999.1025</u>
- [56] P. R. Denner and J. P. Rickards, "A developmental comparison of the effects of provided and generated questions on text recall," Contemporary Educational Psychology, vol. 12, pp. 135-146, 1987/04/01/ 1987. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/s0361-476x(87)80047-4</u>
- [57] C. Pesce, C. Crova, L. Cereatti, R. Casella, and M. Bellucci, "Physical activity and mental performance in preadolescents: Effects of acute exercise on free-recall memory," Mental Health and Physical Activity, vol. 2, pp. 16-22, 2009. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.mhpa. 2009.02.001</u>

- [58] P. Bhatarah, G. Ward, and L. Tan, "Examining the relationship between free recall and immediate serial recall: The serial nature of recall and the effect of test expectancy," Memory & Cognition, vol. 36, pp. 20-34, 2008. <u>https://doi.org/10.3758/mc.36.1.20</u>
- [59] K. A. Klein, K. M. Addis, and M. J. Kahana, "A comparative analysis of serial and free recall," Memory & Cognition, vol. 33, pp. 833-839, 2005. <u>https://doi.org/10.3758/bf03</u> <u>193078</u>
- [60] H. L. Roediger, "The effectiveness of four mnemonics in ordering recall," Journal of Experimental Psychology: Human Learning and Memory, vol. 6, p. 558, 1980. <u>https://doi.org</u> /10.1037//0278-7393.6.5.558
- [61] J. R. Anderson, Cognitive psychology and its implications, 6 ed. New York: worth publishing, 2005.
- [62] M. J. Peters, M. Hauschildt, S. Moritz, and L. Jelinek, "Impact of emotionality on memory and meta-memory in schizophrenia using video sequences," Journal of Behavior Therapy and Experimental Psychiatry, vol. 44, pp. 77-83, 2013. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jbtep. 2012.07.003</u>
- [63] T. J. Ricker, E. Vergauwe, and N. Cowan, "Decay theory of immediate memory: From Brown (1958) to today (2014)," The Quarterly Journal of Experimental Psychology, vol. 69, pp. 1969-1995, 2016. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/17470218.2014.914546</u>
- [64] J. M. Zacks, N. K. Speer, K. M. Swallow, T. S. Braver, and J. R. Reynolds, "Event perception: a mind-brain perspective," Psychological bulletin, vol. 133, p. 273, 2007. <u>https://doi.org/10.1037/0033-2909.133.2.273</u>
- [65] J. Sweller, J. J. Van Merrienboer, and F. G. Paas, "Cognitive architecture and instructional design," Educational psychology review, vol. 10, pp. 251-296, 1998. <u>https://doi.org/10.10</u> 23/a:1022193728205
- [66] T. G. Tin, N. A. Atan, M. N. H. M. Said, M. F. Ali, S. Mohd, and M. Z. A. Hamid, "Integrating Animations in Chinese Character Writing Based on Cognitive Theory of Multimedia Learning to Promote Students' Writing Skills," International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies (iJIM), vol. 12, pp. 97-111, 2018. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v12</u> i7.9671
- [67] B. S. Hasler, B. Kersten, and J. Sweller, "Learner control, cognitive load and instructional animation," Applied cognitive psychology, vol. 21, pp. 713-729, 2007. <u>https://doi.org/10. 1002/acp.1345</u>
- [68] N. Biard, S. Cojean, and E. Jamet, "Effects of segmentation and pacing on procedural learning by video," Computers in Human Behavior, 2017/12/05/ 2017. <u>https://doi.org/10. 1016/j.chb.2017.12.002</u>

9 Author

Dr. Marwa Zaki Tawfiq Zaki, associate Professor, Instructional technology Department, College of Specific Education, Ain Shams University, Cairo, Egypt, Research Interests in the field of E-Learning, Mobile Games, 3D environments, Augmented Reality. (e-mail: dr.marwa.zaki@sedu.asu.edu.eg; drmarwaa_doc@hotmail. com)

Article submitted 2019-04-06. Resubmitted 2019-05-20. Final acceptance 2019-05-20. Final version published as submitted by the authors.

Paper-Fully Automated Classroom Attendance System

Fully Automated Classroom Attendance System

https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v13i08.10100

Eid Al Hajri, Farrukh Hafeez ^(⊠), Ameer Azhar N V Jubail Industrial College, KSA farrukhhafeez82@hotmail.com

Abstract—This paper is based on the study and the implementation of the pilot project for customized, automated, highly secured class room management system known as fully automated classroom attendance system. In this research paper, the strategies, design, development and implementation of a pilot project for class room attendance management systems is explained in detail. As a pilot project, mobile app is built on Android platform using Xamarin programming. Prototype of proposed system provides high level of authentication by embedding face recognition and biometric verification together with radio frequency identification system (RFID) system. Though given model features are specially designed for our college needs, but this model can be modified for general usage and can be applied for all academic levels i.e. school, college, universities. Among the other features of system, one important feature is selection of system to work in smart mode in which system closes after predefined time.

Keywords—USB RFID proximity sensor, RFID Cards, attendance management system, mobile application, smart mode system, face recognition, thumb verification.

1 Introduction

In recent time, technology trend is to switch from typical traditional system to fast, smart and interactive system which can be linked to some web application, so that users can access the system at any place at any time. Radio frequency identification system abbreviated generally as RFID has proven its self-one of the secured, inexpensive and fast emerging technology. RFID application area includes access management, location based services, smart homes, airports, super markets, tracking vehicles for road pricing and speed controlling [1-4]. This technology transformation of system into RFID system has been adopted in attendance systems and different models have been proposed [5].In some models, RFID system is integrated with fingerprint [6].In some models along with RFID, other parameters like face recognition are also applied [8].In most of the systems models, focus is on systems which can detect false and bogus attendance, an undeniable requirement, but in this paper a system model is proposed which can be able to do pre and post attendance requirements, the proposed system model implementation is based on Jubail Industrial college defined protocols for student attendance, and the system is able to address and comply all college procedures related to student attendance smoothly and efficiently. With recent advancement and technology trend toward IOT, it is preferable that system should be able to access anywhere at any time.

2 Background

In this section college rules regarding student attendance system are discussed. As like most of academic intuition, academic semester consist of sixteen weeks, before starting classes, faculty member prepare their attendance file, contains all student list for both theory and lab. For attendance teacher call students name one by one and mark their attendance in a paper. The students coming after certain minutes (in Jubail Industrial College 3 minutes) are considered late and students coming after five minutes are considered marked as absent. All these steps are done manually. Teachers spend their valuable time for taking attendance and needed to be attentive to observe who is coming late or who is absent. In addition to that, if student goes outside classroom for some reason he should return within 5 minutes, in case if he takes more than 5 minutes he will be marked absent for this period. Currently in JIC, after taking the attendance manually, the teacher will be entering the attendance manually to a data base known as SIS (Students Information System). In the Proposed system, each student will be issued a separate RFID card, or a RFID tag can be embedded in the existing student ID card. The students are supposed to come with RFID cards to the classroom. For avoiding using of card by other student every RFID card is linked with database, where student biometric thumb impression and face recognition can be verified by using designed app options. Implementation of the idea proposed in this paper enhances the competitiveness in the current world of IOT. As a pilot model mobile app is designed named "JIC CMS". Jubail Industrial College Class Room Management System.

3 System Design

In the whole scenario explained above, it was required to design such an efficient and smart system which would be able to solve all problems is required. For this an RFID based system with specially designed app has been developed. App name is "JIC CMS", Jubail Industrial College Classroom management system. This app is designed on Xamarin platform. In our designed system every faculty member will have its RFID Reader and mobile with installed application. Technical detail of RFID reader is mentioned in table 1.The operation of App starts from staff account generation which includes staff personal details, department details etc. App screen shot is shown in Fig 1. After creation of account new window with three options will be available, Enrolment, Attendance and Report as shown in Fig 2

Specification	Specification Value
Supply Voltage	DC 5V
Maximum working current	< 10mA
Card sensing speed	less than 200ms
Encoding	Manchester 64-bit, modules 64
Operating temperature	$-10'C \sim +70'C$
Operating frequency	125KHZ
Baud rate	9600Kbit/s
Support Card Type	EM4100, TK4100
Read Range	5 cm
Dimensions	$63 \times 18 \times 8 \text{ (mm)}$
Output format	10 digit decimal

Table 1.	RFID Reader	Specification



Fig. 1. Faculty Personal Information window screen shot



Fig. 2. JIC CMS App option

Paper-Fully Automated Classroom Attendance System

4 Enrolment Section

In the enrolment screen teacher can upload the name of student, student id number, course details, activity details, section details etc. available at the beginning of the semester. This uploading should be done only once at the beginning of each semester for each course.

- ψ ± ● ■					
< ENROLLMENT					
Select Course					
EEE 222 - Electrical Machines and Cor 🔹 👻					
Period Class Type Section					
2 • Theory • 12					
皆 select file					
Browse File					
Sava					

Fig. 3. Enrolment section screen shot

5 Attendance Section

In this section regular attendance system that is based on RFID is defined. For identification of bogus attendance and to provide higher level of verification thumb verification and face recognition can be embedded in customized mobile app in attendance section option. This bio metric identifiers verification is extremely applicable during examination for ensuring smooth conduction of exam. Details of implementation and working algorithms are also part of this section. Figure 4 shows flow chart of attendance section.

5.1 **RFID** identification system

In our designed system it is assumed that every faculty member will have its 125KHZ RFID Reader and mobile with installed application. Every student is provided with an RFID card. 10 digit unique card numbers are assigned to each RFID card. RFID Card number is mapped to student Identification number in RFID database. Low frequency (125 KHz) is used which can be detected with RFID reader with distance of 5 cm. Faculty member connect USB stick to his mobile and open app "JIC CMS" and open concerned section. As the students enter to the classroom mark their attendance by simply showing the RFID tag to the card reader, students can just keep

the RFID in the line of sight distance. If the student comes within first "3" minutes, he will be detected and marked as present as shown in figure 5. After three minutes present option will convert automatically into late and will be valid for next two minutes, within this duration i.e. Three- five minutes system will be marked as late entry. Similarly according to the college rules a student coming after five minutes will be treated as an absent as shown in figure 6. All this features are implemented by linking the student entry to the system clock.



Fig. 4. Attendance section flow chart

Paper-Fully Automated Classroom Attendance System



Fig. 5. Automatic Attendance system Screen shot (a) Before pressing start (b) Within "3" Minutes Marking Present

⊉ ± . 🗉 🕲 🖬 🐨 🖬 11:00 AM	ψ ≟ 💿 🚍 💿				
< ATTENDANCE	< ATTENDANCE				
Select Course	Select Course				
EEE 224 - Theory - 12 - Introduction to 🛛 🔻	EEE 224 - Theory - 12 - Introduction to 🛛 🔻				
Period: Date: Day:	Period: Date: Day:				
1 - 12/20/2018 Thursday	1 - 12/20/2018 Thursday				
Late	Attendance is Over				
Disease Attack Card	35290222 SULAIMAN MEDLIH A ALMUTAIRI [P]				
35290222 SULAIMAN MEDLIH A ALMUTAIRI [P]	34290414 HASSAN MOHAMMAD MOHAMMAD ALOUFI [P]				
34290414 HASSAN MOHAMMAD MOHAMMAD ALOUFI [P]	35290352 ABDULLAH ALI A AL-GHAMDI [P]				
35290352 ABDULLAH ALI A AL-GHAMDI [P]	36190321 ALHAMAR ALI HUSSIN A [L]				
36190321 ALHAMAR ALI HUSSIN A [L]	362900081 ABDULHAKIM HAMAD M AL HAMAD [A]				
D C					
(c)	(d)				

Fig. 6. Automatic Attendance system Screen shot (c) Between"3-5" Minutes Marking Late (d) After "5" Minutes Marking Absent

5.2 Thumb verification system

In this section implementation of thumb verification system together with working algorithm used in mobile app designed by Xamarin will be discussed. Framework of biometric authentication system is shown in Figure 7. At the time of admission, student thumb templates are extracted and stored into the database. During the thumb verification process, using app option the system applies the same technique for thumb matching process. After matching thumb impression system generates student details like ID no, student picture, can be seen in screenshot on figure no 8.



Fig. 7. Thumb Verification flow chart Fig. 8. biometric impression Screen shot

Regional sliding Technique: Selection of correct template on touch screen mobile devices is one of the important aspects. There are several difficulties like unconscious slipping of finger while pressing, occlusion of thumb more than the target size, etc. Substantial research shows that target size which is one of the critical factors affects user, must be near to 9.6mm. Although number of techniques like tap tap, shift, thumb pace, escape are available. In all these techniques named before have issues of targeting not only the selected area but also surrounding area. Based on these facts designed and implemented our app on Regional sliding technique for sensing and target selection during target selection. Research shows Regional sliding performs in shorter time with lowest mean error rate and also less effected on small target. Fig. 9 shows comparative analysis of Regional sliding with shift and Tap Tap techniques as stated in [16].

Paper-Fully Automated Classroom Attendance System



Fig. 9. (a) Mean performance time (b) Mean Error rate

Face verification system: To provide higher level of security, face verification option is selected. It is assumed at the time of admission and enrollment high quality image has been stored in data base for verification purpose. For face verification in real time it was required to implement some algorithm. Face Recognition process consist of face detection, preprocessing and finally application of any face Recognition algorithm. Face detection is implemented by using HOG, histogram of oriented gradients algorithm. Typical steps involved are defined in block diagram figure no 10



Fig. 10.Block Diagram of Histogram of oriented gradients algorithm

Selection and application of suitable face detection algorithm was one of the prime task. In smart phones either android or IOS platform based, face detection implementation is easy after the availability of open CV. Open CV (Open Source Computer Vision) is an open source library for image processing and computer vision, originally developed by Intel and free for both commercial and non-commercial use. The face recognition is made easy by the Face Recognizer in Open CV. Figure 11 shows comparison of different algorithm .Substantial research shows all algorithms are relative accurate but open face shows more accurate and results are more reliable over other available algorithms. Open face is based on deep convolutional networks (CNNs) technique. Figure 12 shows implementation of open face using CNNs. Figure 12 is divided into two parts. Left side is using for extraction of features, needed to perform only once. On the right side images are extracted from dlib's pre trained detector working on HOG algorithm, after certain pre-processing send to convolutional neural network. CNN use these features which are obtained from deep neural network, for predicting person image is passed through right part, and the person classification will be given out.



Fig. 11.Comparison of Open face and other algorithm [XII]



Fig. 12.Open Face's project structure (B, AmosAmos, B., LB.,, 2016)

Paper-Fully Automated Classroom Attendance System



Fig. 13.Face Recognition using open CV for JIC CMS: (a) 44% accuracy Unknown (b) 51% accuracy Recognized

6 Report Section

In this option of JIC CMS app any students Presence reports (weekly, monthly or for any specific duration) can be seen. In addition to report generation, special privilege option is available to perform manual modification in case of special need.

				हि 📶 1	7% 🗎 1:02 am
<	REPORT SECTION				
Introduction to Microprocessor					
	FROM DATE		09/0	6/2018	
	TO DATE		09/06/2018		
	GET RECORD		EMAIL RECORD		
Student ID	Student Name	Total F	resence	Total Late-ins	Total Absence
34290414	HASSAN MOHAMMAD MOHAMMAD ALOUFI		1	0	2
35290222	SULAIMAN MEDLIH A ALMUTAIRI		0	1	2
35290352	ABDULLAH ALI A AL-GHAMDI		0	0	3
36190321	ALHAMAR ALI HUSSIN A		1	0	2
362900081	ABDULHAKIM HAMAD M AL HAMAD		1	0	2

Fig. 14.Screen Shot of Report Section.

7 Conclusion

The implemented system offers number of befits over traditional system includes freedom of delivering lecture with full focus without notifying student timing. As it is fully automated, the chance of error in the attendance entry is NIL. Options of biometric identification make system invincible. Although designed app options are customized to college rules but concept of application is applicable to any academic level or organizational level. Application of thumb/ face recognition reduce misuse of RFID card. Linking this app with student information, which student use to see their attendance, will drastically save faculty time and resources as well.

8 Future Work

Although proposed model gives an idea of smart class but still improvement place is there. RFID reader range can be increased by replacing high range RFID reader. During our study of this project it was found that instead of using Xamarin, using of other mobile development tools like Ionic, React Native will lead to better application result at the cost of time and resources.

9 References

- Barenji, A. V., & Değirmenci, C. (2015). Robot Control System based on Web Application and RFID Technology. MATEC Web of Conferences, 28, 04001. <u>https://doi.org/10. 1051/matecconf/20152804001</u>
- [2] Chen, X., Yu, J., Yao, Y., Wang, C., & Valderas, D. (2014). RFID Technology and Applications. International Journal of Antennas and Propagation, 2014, 1-1. doi:10.1155/2014/ 184934
- [3] Fescioglu-Unver, N., Choi, S. H., Sheen, D., & Kumara, S. (2014). RFID in production and service systems: Technology, applications and issues. Information Systems Frontiers, 17(6), 1369-1380. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10796-014-9518-1</u>
- [4] Qiu, Y., Zhou, L., & Zhu, Q. Y. (2013). A Case Study for High-Level Course Website Development Based on RFID and Face Recognition. Applied Mechanics and Materials, 411-414, 458-461. <u>https://doi.org/10.4028/www.scientific.net/amm.411-414.458</u>
- [5] HaMyat Nwe, T. M. (2015). Students' Attendance Management System Based On RFID And Fingerprint Reader. International Journal of Scientific & Technology Research.
- [6] Cui, L., Zhang, T., Zhang, H., Wang, L., & Wang, F. (2017). Design of Attendance Check System Based on Ethernet Technology and Fingerprint Recognition. DEStech Transactions on Economics, Business and Management, (Emem). <u>https://doi.org/10.12783/dtem/emem 2017/17088</u>
- [7] Lee, W., Choi, J., & Lee, D. (2017). Comparative Performance Analysis of Anticollision Protocols in RFID Networks. RFID Handbook, 161-180. <u>https://doi.org/10.1201/97814200</u> <u>55009.ch9</u>
- [8] Qiu, Y., Zhou, L., & Zhu, Q. Y. (2013). A Case Study for High-Level Course Website Development Based on RFID and Face Recognition. Applied Mechanics and Materials, 411-414, 458-461. <u>https://doi.org/10.4028/www.scientific.net/amm.411-414.458</u>
- [9] Rfid Based Attendance System. (2017). International Journal of Recent Trends in Engineering and Research, 3(4), 94-97. <u>https://doi.org/10.23883/ijrter.2017.3114.wjkh4</u>
- [10] Video-BasedfaceRecognition. (n.d.).SpringerReference.doi:10.1007/springerreference_730 82

Paper-Fully Automated Classroom Attendance System

- [11] Alsmirat, M. A., Al-Alem, F., Al-Ayyoub, M., Jararweh, Y., & Gupta, B. (2018). Impact of digital fingerprint image quality on the fingerprint recognition accuracy. Multimedia Tools and Applications, 1-40. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s11042-017-5537-5</u>
- [12] Chun Yu, W. Y. (2017). RegionalSliding: Facilitating small target selection with marking menu for one-handed thumb use on touchscreen-based mobile devices (Vol. 17). Amsterdam,: Elsevier Science B. V. A. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.pmcj.2014.02.005</u>
- [13] Fabio Roli, L. L. (2014). Analysis of unsupervised template update in biometric recognition systems (Vol. 37). New York, USA: Elsevier Science. doi:10.1016/j.patrec.2013.05.021
- [14] Iloanusi, Ogechukwu N (2016). Effective statistical-based and dynamic fingerprint preprocessing technique (1st ed., Vol. 6). IET Biometrics. <u>https://doi.org/10.1049/iet-bmt.2015.0</u> 064
- [15] Amos, B., Ludwiczuk, B., & Satyanarayanan, M. (2016). OpenFace : A general- purposeface recognition library with mobile applications.
- [16] N. (2017). A Comparison of faical recognization algorithm. Bachelour Thesis Degree program in BIT.
- [17] H. (2013). Comparison of different algorithm for face Recogization (9th ed., Vol. 13,Ser. 10). GLobaol Journal Inc (USA).

10 Authors

Eid Al Hajiri is currently the Managing Director of Jubail Industrial College. He obtained his Bachelor degree in Electrical Engineering from Purdue University. He received his Masters and PhD from University of Sheffield in Process Safety Engineering, Automatic Control & Systems Engineering respectively. He has large years of industrial and academic experience in Saudi Aramco Company, SABIC, Jubail Industrial College etc. He obtained many certifications related to instrumentation and control engineering, education etc. He published many papers in international publications. His research interest include Advanced Robotics and Automation in industry and academics, Academic-Industry Collaboration and Industrial Cluster Management

Farrukh Hafeez is working as a Lecturer of Instrumentation and Control Engineering Technology at Jubail Industrial College. He received his B.E. degree in Electronics and M.E degree in Industrial control System from NED University of Engineering & Technology Karachi, Pakistan in 2005 and 2009 respectively. His research interest include control system design and applications.

Ameer Azhar has more than 27 years of experience in various universities and colleges in India, Sultanate of Oman, United Arab Emirates and Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Currently he is working as a Senior Lecturer of Instrumentation and Control Engineering Technology at JIC. He received his B.Tech. Degree in Electronics and Communication Engineering and M.Tech degree in Computer Science and Engineering from University of Calicut. His areas of interest include microprocessors, micro-controllers, computer control, industrial control and computer algorithms.

Article submitted 2019-01-06. Resubmitted 2019-04-11. Final acceptance 2019-05-24. Final version published as submitted by the authors.

Paper-The Effect of Mobile Digital Content Applications Based on Gamification in the Development ...

The Effect of Mobile Digital Content Applications Based on Gamification in the Development of Psychological Well-Being

https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v13i08.10725

Waleed Salim Alhalafawy King Abdulaziz University, Jeddah, Saudi Arabia Kingdom Ain shams university, Cairo, Egypt

> Marwa Zaki Tawfiq Zaki ^(⊠) Ain Shams University, Cairo, Egypt dr.marwa.zaki@sedu.asu.edu.eg

Abstract-The aim of this research is to design a proposed model for Mobile Digital Content Applications Based on Gamification and measure its effectiveness in the development of psychological well-being among the graduate students of King Abdulaziz University who are challenged with issues related to the nature of postgraduate studies, which may affect their levels of psychological well-being. Research sample consisted of (62) students, partdicularly those who are students of the postgraduate programs at King Abdulaziz University. The study has applied the semi-experimental approach that is based on two group design. The experimental group used an application version called "My Academic Advisor", which was developed according to the proposed model, while the control group used a version that did not include any methods or tools for gamification. A measure of psychological well-being was built through the mobile digital content applications. The measure in its final version consisted of 6 themes that included (36) indicators of psychological well-being; 6 indicators for each theme. The results of the application showed the effectiveness of the proposed model of the gamification in the development of psychological wellbeing among the experimental group students compared to the students of the control group.

Keywords—Gamification; Mobile Digital Content Applications (MDCA); Psychological Well-Being (PWB).

1 Introduction

Gamification is a trend in research that recently has become popular in educational. It refers to applying attributes and elements of games in educational contexts that are not play-based, that is, to bring fun and motivation to the educational environments, and to turn monotony and stereotyping learning events into an enjoyment experience [1, 2] Gamification in educational environment means raising challenges within the

Paper-The Effect of Mobile Digital Content Applications Based on Gamification in the Development ...

educational context. There are tasks that must be carried out by the learner who is given points, badges and passes through different levels depending on the way he/she performs these tasks. Moreover, learners or users are classified according to their achievement rates [3, 4].

Gamification is primarily based on external stimuli which sometimes has a negative impact on self-motivation. People who perform activities due to external incentives, once removed, they become less willing to perform learning tasks and activities [5-7]. However, some research studies that aimed at analyzing performances and tasks implementation that are stimulated by external incentives as compared to those not stimulated by any incentives have shown that the effectiveness of the performance and task implementation is in favor of the group that was supported by incentives, as indicated by study [8] that examined 12 different studies which aimed at running (25) comparisons; these comparisons included incentive assisted performance vs performances that did not receive any incentive at all. The results have shown an effect degree of (0.6) in favor of groups that obtained additional external incentives, which means that it is difficult to develop an educational system without considering the motivational system involved in this system.

[9], With regards to MDCA that has been developed to deliver content for learners, McLoughlin believes that these applications are very important because they support dynamic technologies that provide the learner with an opportunity of education that has greater control, self-autonomy, and make the learner more connected to learning events because most of them are adaptive to their characteristics and meet the learner's needs. Digital content applications also make the learner more interactive because the content is formulated in accordance with the learner's perspective and the way he/she processes information. Therefore, it is important to study the structure of digital incentives through applications of digital mobile content and determine the mechanism of implementing and managing them in a way that optimizes the use of these applications, especially under the confirmation of a variety of studies that the use of methods and tools for mixing in digital environments needs further studies [10, 11].

Postgraduate students face challenging situations that make them in need of enhancing a feeling of well-being, and thus avoid any negative feelings. This invites researchers to search for reliable tools that could enhance the psychological wellbeing. However, some studies have shown an existence of a positive relationship between the mobile digital content media and applications and the psychological wellbeing; this means that it is possible to rely on the mobile applications gamification incentives for enhancing psychological well-being [12, 13]. In fact, the current research is trying to investigate this issue by studying the relationship between the gamification of the mobile digital content and psychological well-being among postgraduate students.

The current research thus tries to answer the following questions:

- (RQ1) What are the themes and indicators of Psychological Well-being that could be obtained through Mobile Digital Content Applications?
- (RQ2) What is the proposed model of the mobile digital content gamification for the development of PWB among postgraduate students?
• (RQ3) How effectiveness is the proposed model of the mobile digital content gamification for the development of PWB among postgraduate students?

1.1 The current search also tries to validate the following hypothesis:

(H1) There is no statistical difference at the level 0.05 between the average scores of the experimental group; the one who uses a mobile application based on gamification, and the average scores of the experimental group; the one who uses a mobile application without any methods of gamification in the post measurement of PWB through mobile digital content application, due to gamification tools influence.

2 Literature Review

2.1 Gamification

Generally, gamification is a term that is closely related to Games, and not Play. This is because playing offers more freedom and a bit of restraints, unlike games that mean constraints, challenges, competition, and goals to be pursued and realized [2, 14]. Gamification is known to be the use of game design elements in a non-game contexts not depending on playing" [15], also known as Using game-based mechanics, aesthetics and game thinking to engage people, motivate action, promote learning, and solve problems [16]. In a more in-depth look at the concept of gamification, four terms that are relevant to the concept of gamification can be emphasized [15, 17]:

- Game as a Term: Refers It refers to a presence of the following components: a goal to be achieved, rules to determine how to reach the goal, feedback system that provides information on the level of progress towards the goal, and finally voluntary participation.
- Element as a Term: It helps distinguish between the concept of gamification and serious games which are used as whole games but for non-recreational purposes. Gamification refers to the explicit use of certain elements: points, badges, leader-boards, progress bars that are used in non-gaming contexts.
- **Design as a Term**: It means the use of Game Design instead of game-based technologies. This is because gamification invests in the design elements and not the technologies and programming that are used in developing digital games.
- Non-gaming Contexts as a Term: The field of applying gamification is very broad and not limited with restrictions, and as mentioned before, gamification is used in non-gaming contexts.

2.2 Mobile digital content applications (MDCA)

Anderson believes that MDCA are e-services that connect a group of individuals who share common characteristics and interests in a frame of human relationships. Anderson sees mobile digital content applications as "a more interactive, participatory

and social development of the forms and tools used across networks"[18]. This happens through a growing set of tools that learners use to gather information and interact in appropriate ways [19-21]. Here MDCA succeed to make a big move in web technologies rendering them as more creative and attractive, [22], through a philosophy to maximize collective intelligence among a group of users which added value to every user participating with a dynamic information [23]. Mobile social applications are tools that provide unique opportunities to socially exchange all kinds of information and multimedia through synchronous and asynchronous communications that encourage interaction and sharing of different knowledge production [24, 25]. This means that MDCA are comprehensive services in which people interact usin their mobile devices, and however allows learner to share activities and interests, make friends, and look for interests and activities adopted by other learners.

When talking about the characteristics of MDCA, it can be emphasized that it is not a standard or technology per se, but a framework for delivering shared applications via new user interfaces [22, 26, 27]. The MDCA are based on a basic philosophy which says that unique content is more important than the program, because unique content is able to attract learners and provide a variety of creative and inventive opportunities, as well as keeping content as digital objects instead of pages (as understood previously) that are easy to exchange and interact [24]. Digital content applications are based on the concepts of interaction between learners that facilitate thoughtful and critical discussion in order to acquire basic knowledge; digital content applications are not simply an application to achieve a goal but rather a tool for shaping knowledge within a framework of an ongoing process of construction in which the learner is mainly involved [10]. As a result, digital content applications have changed its role from the transmission, availability and distribution of learners' educational materials and use to the idea of participating in the production of these materials, so that digital content applications become educational sources and portals rather than being objects of specific categories [28-31].

2.3 Psychological well-beings (PWB):

PWB can be defined as a set of behavioral indicators that generally display high levels of individual satisfaction, and can be identified with reference to six main factors as follows [32-35]:

- Autonomy: Refers to an individual's autonomy and his ability to make decisions, resist social pressures, and control personal behavior during interaction with others.
- Environmental Mastery: Refers to the ability of an individual to organize conditions and control varied activities, benefit effectively from surrounding conditions, and to provide suitable environment and personal flexibility.
- **Personal Growth**: Refers to the individual's ability to develop his abilities, increase his effectiveness and his personal competence in different aspects, and enhance a sense of optimism.

- Positive Relations with other: refers to the individual's ability to form friendships and social relationships with others on the basis of friendliness, empathy, mutual trust, understanding, influence, friendship, and the willingness to give and take.
- Purpose Life: refers to the ability of an individual to define his goals in life objectively, and to have a clear goal and vision that direct his actions and behaviors, together with perseverance and insistence in order to achieve his goals.
- Self-Acceptance: refers to the ability of self-realization, positive attitudes towards one's personality and past life, and acceptance of various manifestations of the self, including positive and negative manifestations.

There is a clear relationship between gamification and PWB, where the systems give the user an independence of decision-making and freedom of choice, which is one of the basic components of PWB. Gamification helps the learner to control the implementation of activities, tasks of learning, and personal flexibility, which is reflected on the environmental capacity of the learner. Gamification considers the development of gradual levels of challenges; therefore it contributes to the development of the learner and his sense of optimism, which leads to the process of personal development, and through the joint-working groups provided through the gamification, the learner build positive relationships with others which contributes positively to the improvement of PWB. Gamification also depends on specific clear set of goals that every learner seeks to achieve through various stages, which makes the learner's life purposeful. In addition, gamification and the tasks it included, through which the learner moves using self-supported external motives, make the learner satisfied with himself and all its reflective manifestations [36-38].

2.4 Theoretical framework

Among digital content applications, gamification usage is supported by the Self-Determination Theory (SDT) indicating that the learner's move toward tasks execution is driven by a set of intrinsic motivations that do not work mechanically because they require appropriate support and feedback by the environment, which is noticed through the incentives provided by the gamification system [4, 39-41].

In the learning environment, gamification usage has a correlation with the Motivation Theory (MT) definitely in the part related to extrinsic motivation, which can compensate the difference between internal incentives and the learner's actual level. It is possible that learner may have an internal desire to be high achiever in learning but may fail due to his weak scientific and cognitive abilities; therefore the external incentives have a significant role in motivating the learner to reach the desired level [42].

The basic psychological Needs Theory (BPNT) refers to the existence of a set of factors that make any activity fun and motivational to intrinsic motives, these factors are: Autonomy, Competence, and Relatedness as provided by gamification systems that stimulate independence by giving the learner a sense of willing and freedom when it comes to the implementation of tasks, It stimulates competence by giving the learner a sense of effectiveness in the accomplishment of tasks and influencing the

environment in which they are present. Finally, they encourage the competence generated by the learner's social relationships with his peers within the learning environment and the involvement he felt in his capacity as a member of the groups formed during the task's implementation [10-12]

Flow Theory (FT) is one of the theories that supports gamification usage, although it is highly concerned with internal motives as a necessity for the state of flow; however, the incentives provided through the gamification system to push flow processes leads to a greater sense of well-being, and encourage continuity, through which learner know that he is right, which help him keep in line with the flow processes to reach the desired goal [43, 44].

The design of the proposed application is based on these theories so that the application work on supporting learners with incentives that meet their basic needs and compensate for the difference between their internal incentives and the desired level. In addition, it guarantees having the learners present in a continuous flow of learning through digital content applications.

3 Methodology

3.1 Design

The two group-experimental designs are used by the research team. The first group used my "academic advisor" application developed by the research team, which does not include any use of the gamification methods, while the second group is the experimental one used the application developed in line with the methods of gamification. Table (1) illustrates the experimental design of the research.

Table 1. Research experimental design

Research both groups	Dependent variables	
Experimental group (1)	Applying "My academic advisor" application without gamification	Psychological Well-Bing
Experimental group (2)	Applying a gamification-based application of "My academic advisor"	application

The independent variables, as shown in the previous table, were based on the applications of a gamification-based digital content. The dependent variables were based on the PWB through the digital content applications.

3.2 Sample

The study sample consisted of (62) students out of (91) students who are studying a course named "Learning Technologies and Resources", at the General Diploma Program of Education, King Abdul-Aziz University, in the academic year 2016/2017. The sample was assigned through two stages. In the first stage, the sample individuals were chosen intentionally as per two criteria: the first was a technical criterion in

terms of possession of suitable mobile phones by the sample individuals, in addition to using some social applications available through these phones. The second criterion was related to the consent of the sample individuals to join the research experiment, while in the second stage, sample individuals were distributed randomly with (31) students in each group.

3.3 Measures

In the current research, PWB is linked to indicators of well-being that happen as a result of learning through certain applications of digital mobile content. However, to prepare the scale of PWB through the applications of mobile digital content, more than one scale of PWB, including (Ryff's scale of psychological well-being, 1989), and the Psychometric Well-being Scale were developed [35]. In accordance with the nature of well-being themes as found in the previous scales, in addition to the nature of learning through MDCA and the nature of postgraduate students in the current research, the scale of PWB was developed through MDCA. The scale includes six themes:(1) self-independence (2) environmental enabling (3) personal development, (4) positive relationships, (5) purposeful life, (6) self-acceptance. The measure contains all in all (36) individuals, distributed on the six measure themes by (6) items for each theme: (3) positive, and (3) negative. The scale was presented to a group of arbitrators to verify its validity and relevance to the postgraduate students (education field). Students were asked to evaluate each item with reference to the five-scale evaluation (strongly agree, agree, neutral, disagree, strongly disagree), and degrees from 1 to 5 respectively are given in the case of positive expressions and vice versa in the case of negative expressions (items are coded based on a 5-point Likert type scale (from 1 = strongly disagree to 5 = strongly agree). The measure stability is ensured before application, where Cronbach's α (= 0.769).

3.4 Procedures

The procedures of this research study have been implemented as compatible with the stages of the specified educational design through five main stages as follow:

Analysis stage: The educational tasks, in this stage, to be executed through the proposed model, where the current research focused on the educational content tasks and activities within a course named "educational Techniques and Learning Resources" for general diploma students (education), where (8) educational tasks related to the research and theoretical study on the educational technology innovations are determined. Nevertheless, the learner's characteristics related to using the mobile technology were analyzed. A result indicates (76.6%) of the sample individuals own android-based mobile phones, and (93%) of students use the mobile phone to access the internet. (88.6%) of Students use mobile social applications, both public and private. And through applying the scale of PWB through applications of mobile digital content, the researcher showed a significant decrease in the PWB indicators in the research sample.

Design stage: Through this stage, the proposed model is designed to use gamification in MDCA, according to the following:

Designing an Educational Objective: The educational objectives, under discussion, were related to the curriculum of educational techniques and learning resources, especially the Unit of Educational Technology Innovations. Accordingly, a list of educational objectives was established which included (18) objectives.

Designing Tasks: 8 step-by-step tasks have been designed, the first level includes two tasks for the analysis of the technical innovation characteristics and for the collection of information in multimedia model; the second level includes (3) tasks that contained recorded videos about innovations, preparing technical projects, and developing innovation visual channels.

Designing Mechanisms: An illustration has been made to each of the following: the nature of the challenges in each task, the additional opportunities that each student can receive as a result of his communication with the teacher about the tasks, the mechanisms of positive competition, how to cooperate, the timing of the feedback. It is essential to determine a list of rewards that each person can obtain, the status of every person according to the number of points and badges he collected, the announcement of the final winners according to the leaderboards, and how every student expresses himself and achievements.

Designing Gamification Tools: It has relied on (3) tools, presented as follows:

- **Points:** The numbers of points are assigned in each task, with total of (100) points, in accordance with table (2).
- **Badges**: (5) Badges were designed as follows: one for a student collaborating with his colleagues; a full grade-badge that is awarded to a student who obtains full grade in one level; the level champion badge that is given to the student who completes the level and receives all points and gets into the pride of place in terms of time; the task accomplishment badge which is given to student who completes each task separately; and distinctive badge that is provided to the person who achieves (90%) of the total points.
- Leaderboards: They are designed to identify the order of the students according to the number of points and badges obtained by every student, as per the performance of the various tasks across the three levels identified.

First l	evel tasks	Second	level tasks	Third level tasks	
Number of tasks	Task points	Number of tasks	Task points	Number of tasks	Task points
2	5	3	10	3	20
Total o	f 10 points	Total of	f 20 points	Total o	f 60 points

Table 2. Tasks points in accordance with the graduated levels

Digital content application design "academic advisor": The proposed application includes (3) basic components:

1. Guidance tools (including 4 tools): Study Programs, Your Guidance Services, Set an Appointment, and Send an Inquiry

- 2. Content tools via social media channels (including 4) tools: YouTube, Twitter, Blogger, and Instagram
- 3. (gamification tools "3"): Rewards, Tasks, My Rewards, News. The application tools can be displayed as follows:
- Study Programs: Through which the student learns all the basic information about graduate programs (general information about the program, program vision, program message, program objectives, program outputs, study plan, course descriptions, and program admission).
- Your Guidance Services: under which the student recognizes all guidance services that can be obtained through the application.
- Set an appointment: Through this tool, every student asks an appointment with teaching board member charged with the academic guidance.
- Send an Inquiry: every student has any query regarding the content, sends a direct inquiry to the academic advisor.
- Content (social media): digital content, through this tool, is accessed using social media applications and four main channels are identified for content delivery, including the YouTube video application, Twitter), the application of Blogger, and (Instagram).
- Rewards Regulations: Through this Regulation, the student can identify the regulations governing the complaints, the tasks required and the mechanism to obtain rewards for each task.
- My Rewards: Each student can recognize the rewards he has received as a result of his / her performance. The rewards are set in 3 types: points, badges, and leader-boards.



Fig. 1. Reward page with the proposed application

- News: you will be able, through this tool, to identify the latest news about the program, all news, and information about the winners of the various competitions.
- Application Interface: The application's main page, including all components of the application as described in the following figure No (2):



Fig. 2. Main interface of application

Educational content organization: Content is presented constructively so that the learner will be able to access the main ideas of the content through channels of social communication identified in channels (4), which were mentioned previously, and linked to the developed application.

Educational strategies design: Several strategies have been adopted, including: competitive learning, collaborative learning, participatory learning, research learning, problem solving, and project-based learning, in a manner such strategies can suit the gamification system.

Development stage: At this stage, the overall structure of the application was produced by android studio, and the three components of the application were developed, which included guidance and counseling tools, content tools and gamification tools, as well as the production of some digital media that would be used in the digital content application.

Implementation stage: Under digital content application, prior application of gamification well-being scale was implemented, then launching the process of learning and implementation of tasks through application, Implementation of the learning strategies identified during the implementation of the educational tasks, then considering the post-application of PWB through MDCA.

4 Results

4.1 The scale of PWB through (MDCA):

The PWB scale, as presented in the theoretical framework, and the procedures carried out in the preparation of the search tool, included (6) various themes: autonomy, environmental enabling, personal development, positive relationships, purposeful life, Self-acceptance, and the scale composes of (36) vocabularies, were distributed on the six themes, 6 vocabularies for each theme.

4.2 The proposed model for (MDCA) Based on gamification:

The mobile digital content application gamifications suggested model is reached as discussed in the research procedures. The Model (3) included basic components for MDCA, model (10) covers characteristics of gamification using the mobile digital content application, (7) characteristics of mobile applications in general, (10) diverse mechanisms, (5) dynamic elements of gamification, (4) theories forming the basic principles of the gamification system, (3) gamification tools, (3) principles for managing incentives, and Figure (3) below illustrates the components of the proposed model and Details.



Fig. 3. The proposed model for (MDCA) Based on gamification

4.3 The effectiveness of (MDCA) based on gamification in the development of (PWB)

T-test was used to recognize the significance of difference between the experimental group (1) and experimental group (2), to verify the validity of the first hypothesis of the comparison between the first group that used the application of the developed digital content without relying on the gamification system and the second group that used the proposed model for MDCA based on the gamification system.

Table (3) shows the results of the T test for the research both groups individual degree averages

 Table 3. The arithmetic mean, standard deviation, and t-test with regard to the research both groups individuals degree average

Group	Ν	Mean	SD	t	DF	Sig
Group (1) MDCA without gamification system	31	125.71	2.39	44.70	(0)	0.000
Group (2) The suggested MDCA based on the gamification system	31	169.62	3.81	44.70	60	0.000

There are statistically significant differences, as shown in the previous table, between the experimental group (2) using the proposed application based on the gamification (M = 169.62, SD = 3.81) and the first group that used the application without the gamification system (M = 125.71, SD = 2.39) (t = 44.70), (p = .000). Therefore, the hypothesis can be modified to mean that "there are statistically significant differences in the mean score of 0.05 between the mean scores of the experimental group (1) students (using a mobile application based on the methods of gamification) and the mean of the first group (using a mobile application without any methods of gamification).

5 Discussion

The above-mentioned result, which has led to the effectiveness model proposed for gamification and the role of which in the development of PWB through applications of digital mobile content in comparison with MDCA that do not rely on methods of gamification, is based on the fact that the gamification system has contributed to create the highest motivation among the learners of the sample. This great motivation has contributed in placing the learners in an active and motivated mood, this led them to exercise all their tasks independently and control the digital mobile environment, as well as the desire to overcome the educational challenges facing them to improve the personal growth of their learning-related skills, and to successfully complete the learning tasks. The experimental group was able to build positive relationships among learning groups individuals. Such positive relationships are reflected on the learners' ability to build level goals and an ability to achieve success in each of these levels, which makes them feel self-satisfied. All previous factors were reflected on the total

indicator of the PWB of the experimental group, which was higher than that of the students of the traditional group [34, 45-47].

Gamification incentives also contributed to a rising state of well-being that led learners to complete their learning tasks. Each incentive represents the beginning of a new rise in the well-being indicator. According to Skinner theory of reinforcement, rewards greatly stimulate the continuation of positive practices, and guarantee that these practices do not fade with time [45]. According to the flow theory, providing positive incentives at varying intervals of time is relevant to the human nature which is largely based on internal motivations stimulated by external obtained reward [43] This corresponds to the study of [7], which suggests that Reward-based Intermittent Reinforcement is one of the most reliable types of gamification systems, as it emphasizes the learner's autonomy and does not affect the learner's internal motivations. In addition, they provide the learner with a state of joy and fun. The flexible adaptive tasks that have been used have supported the learner's personal flexibility in carrying out tasks, moving between the graduating levels of a challenge, and stimulating the building of positive relationships to maintain continuity of the flow state. This supports the processes of environmental empowerment and learner's personal development and the practice of all activities and tasks under clear and specific goals, which eventually led to a rise in the indicators of learner's PWB [37] [38]. The current study results are consistent with a large number of studies that have indicated the effectiveness of gamification in the development of various learning outcomes such as [48], which demonstrated the effectiveness of learning to increase student productivity. And a study by [49], showed that digital badges are effective in increasing the amount of learners' participation, [47], showed the effectiveness of gamification in developing cognitive achievement, [50] demonstrated the effectiveness of gamification in developing motivation for achievement. [51], demonstrated the effectiveness of gamification in reducing the dispersion of learners.

6 Conclusion

The current research is one of the researches that focused on the design elements to develop gamification systems through digital content applications, through which gamification systems can be applied. The research aims at determining the relationship between the applications of digital content based on the gamification and the PWB of postgraduate students through these applications. The best applications depending on gamification on the PWB compared to applications without methods of gamification have specified. In the opinion of the research team that future research related to the employment of gamification through e-learning environments may be more oriented towards study of the intensity of elements of games that can be used within the relevant environment, in addition to finding a clear relationship between the components of visual and verbal games. Nevertheless, study of gamification through electronic learning is of high importance. The research team, also, believes that it is necessary to have a new research trend that aims at establishing a clear framework for the digital environment- gamification for people with special needs

such as deaf or blind. Also, linking the gamification to the augmented reality is one of the research issues to be studied.

7 References

- P. Buckley and E. Doyle, "Individualising gamification: An investigation of the impact of learning styles and personality traits on the efficacy of gamification using a prediction market," Computers & Education, vol. 106, pp. 43-55, 2017/03/01/ 2017. <u>https://doi.org/ 10.1016/j.compedu.2016.11.009</u>
- [2] S. Deterding, M. Sicart, L. Nacke, K. O'Hara, and D. Dixon, "Gamification. using gamedesign elements in non-gaming contexts," in CHI'11 extended abstracts on human factors in computing systems, 2011, pp. 2425-2428. <u>https://doi.org/10.1145/1979742.1979575</u>
- [3] S. Nebel, S. Schneider, M. Beege, and G. D. Rey, "Leaderboards within educational videogames: The impact of difficulty, effort and gameplay," Computers & Education, vol. 113, pp. 28-41, 2017/10/01/ 2017. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2017.05.011</u>
- [4] C. Perryer, N. A. Celestine, B. Scott-Ladd, and C. Leighton, "Enhancing workplace motivation through gamification: Transferrable lessons from pedagogy," The International Journal of Management Education, vol. 14, pp. 327-335, 2016. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/ j.ijme.2016.07.001</u>
- [5] E. L. Deci, R. Koestner, and R. M. Ryan, "Extrinsic rewards and intrinsic motivation in education: Reconsidered once again," Review of educational research, vol. 71, pp. 1-27, 2001. <u>https://doi.org/10.3102/00346543071001001</u>
- [6] E. Kyewski and N. C. Krämer, "To gamify or not to gamify? An experimental field study of the influence of badges on motivation, activity, and performance in an online learning course," Computers & Education, vol. 118, pp. 25-37, 2018/03/01/ 2018. <u>https://doi.org/ 10.1016/j.compedu.2017.11.006</u>
- [7] S. Luo, H. Yang, and C. Meinel, "Reward-based Intermittent Reinforcement in Gamification for E-learning," in CSEDU (1), 2015, pp. 177-184. <u>https://doi.org/10.5220/000540220</u> <u>1770184</u>
- [8] S. L. Wise and C. E. DeMars, "Low Examinee Effort in Low-Stakes Assessment: Problems and Potential Solutions," Educational Assessment, vol. 10, pp. 1-17, 2005/02/01 2005. <u>https://doi.org/10.1207/s15326977ea1001_1</u>
- [9] C. McLoughlin and M. J. Lee, "Personalised and self regulated learning in the Web 2.0 era: International exemplars of innovative pedagogy using social software," Australasian Journal of Educational Technology, vol. 26, 2010. <u>https://doi.org/10.14742/ajet.1100</u>
- [10] C. Hu, C. Zhang, T. Wang, and Q. Li, "An adaptive recommendation system in social media," in System Science (HICSS), 2012 45th Hawaii International Conference on, 2012, pp. 1759-1767. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/hicss.2012.94</u>
- [11] W. S. Al-halafawy and M. Z. Tawfiq, "The Relationship between Types of Image Retrieval and Cognitive Style in Developing Visual Thinking Skills," Life Science Journal, vol. 11, pp. 865-879, 2014.
- [12] H.-T. Chen and X. Li, "The contribution of mobile social media to social capital and psychological well-being: Examining the role of communicative use, friending and selfdisclosure," Computers in Human Behavior, vol. 75, pp. 958-965, 2017/10/01/ 2017. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2017.06.011
- [13] S. Y. Park and Y. M. Baek, "Two faces of social comparison on Facebook: The interplay between social comparison orientation, emotions, and psychological well-being," Comput-

ers in Human Behavior, vol. 79, pp. 83-93, 2018/02/01/ 2018. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2017.10.028</u>

- [14] P. Barr, "Video game values: Play as human-computer interaction," Doctoral Dissertation, Victoria University of Wellington, 2008.
- [15] S. Deterding, D. Dixon, R. Khaled, and L. Nacke, "From game design elements to gamefulness: defining gamification," in Proceedings of the 15th international academic Mind-Trek conference: Envisioning future media environments, 2011, pp. 9-15. <u>https://doi.org</u> /10.1145/2181037.2181040
- [16] K. K. Hewitt, W. Journell, and R. Zilonka, "What the flip: impact of flipped instruction on self-regulated learning," International Journal of Social Media and Interactive Learning Environments, vol. 2, pp. 303-325, 2014. https://doi.org/10.1504/ijsmile.2014.067638
- [17] M. Sailer, J. Hense, H. Mandl, and M. Klevers, "Psychological Perspectives on Motivation through Gamification," IxD&A, vol. 19, pp. 28-37, 2013.
- [18] P. Andersen, What is Web 2.0?: ideas, technologies and implications for education vol. 1: JISC Bristol, 2007.
- [19] G. Solomon and L. Schrum, Web 2.0: New tools, new schools: ISTE (Interntl Soc Tech Educ, 2007.
- [20] K. Salmi, H. Magre, H. Sefraoui, and A. Ziyyat, "Development of a Mobile Application for Teaching Transmission Line Theory," International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies (iJIM), vol. 13, pp. 78-88, 2018. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v13i02.10000</u>
- [21] A. A. Zeidan, W. S. Alhalafawy, M. Z. Tawfiq, and W. R. Abdelhameed, "The effectiveness of some e-blogging patterns on developing the informational awareness for the educational technology innovations and the King Abdul-Aziz University postgraduate students' attitudes towards it," Life Science Journal, vol. 12, 2015.
- [22] I. Chard, "Share, Collaborate, Exploit Defining Mobile Web 2.0," Juniper Research. Hampshire, England, 2008.
- [23] S. Wijaya, M. R. Spruit, and W. J. Scheper, "Webstrategy formulation: Benefiting from web 2.0 concepts to deliver business values," in Web 2.0, ed: Springer, 2009, pp. 1-30. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/978-0-387-85895-1_7</u>
- [24] N. Mills, "Situated learning through social networking communities: The development of joint enterprise, mutual engagement, and a shared repertoire," Calico Journal, vol. 28, pp. 345-368, 2011. <u>https://doi.org/10.11139/cj.28.2.345-368</u>
- [25] F. Ozdamli and E. Ercag, "Opinions of Teacher Candidates on the Usage of Mobile Applications in the Multimedia Development Processes," International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies (iJIM), vol. 12, pp. 27-38, 2018. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v1</u> <u>2i2.7679</u>
- [26] H. H. Muljo, A. S. Perbangsa, and B. P. Yulius, "Mobile Learning for Early Detection Cancer," International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies (iJIM), vol. 12, pp. 39-53, 2018. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v12i2.7814</u>
- [27] Z. Karabatzaki, A. Stathopoulou, G. Kokkalia, E. Dimitriou, P. I. Loukeri, A. Economou, et al., "Mobile Application Tools for Students in Secondary. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v</u> <u>12i2.8158</u>
- [28] Education. An Evaluation Study," International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies (iJIM), vol. 12, pp. 142-161, 2018.
- [29] H. Hedberg, J. Nouri, P. Hansen, and R. Rahmani, "A Systematic Review of Learning through Mobile
- [30] Augmented Reality," International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies (iJIM), vol. 12, pp. 75-85, 2018.

- [31] N. Aljojo, "The Design and Implementation of a Mathematics GameBase Learning Application for Primary Students," International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies (iJIM), vol. 12, pp. 142-152, 2018. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v12i3.8739</u>
- [32] M. A. Al-Khateeb, "The Effect of Teaching Mathematical Problems Solving Through Using Mobile Learning on the Seventh Grade Students' Ability to Solve them in Jordan," International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies (iJIM), vol. 12, pp. 78-191, 2018. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v12i3.8713</u>
- [33] A. A. Zeidan, W. S. Alhalafawy, and M. Z. Tawfiq, "The Effect of (Macro/Micro) Wiki Content Organization on Developing Metacognition Skills," Life Science Journal, vol. 14, p. 12, 2017.
- [34] C. Ryff, "Psychological Well-being in Adult Life, Current Directions," Psychological Science, vol. 4, pp. 99-104, 1995. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/1467-8721.ep10772395</u>
- [35] C. D. Ryff, "Happiness is everything, or is it? Explorations on the meaning of psychological well-being," Journal of personality and social psychology, vol. 57, p. 1069, 1989. <u>https://doi.org/10.1037//0022-3514.57.6.1069</u>
- [36] C. D. Ryff and B. H. Singer, "Know thyself and become what you are: A eudaimonic approach to psychological well-being," in The exploration of happiness, ed: Springer, 2008, pp. 97-116. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/978-94-007-5702-8_6</u>
- [37] K. W. Springer and R. M. Hauser, "An assessment of the construct validity of Ryff's scales of psychological well-being: Method, mode, and measurement effects," Social science research, vol. 35, pp. 1080-1102, 2006. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ssresearch.2005.07.0</u> 04
- [38] R. M. Ryan and E. L. Deci, "Self-determination theory and the facilitation of intrinsic motivation, social development, and well-being," American psychologist, vol. 55, p. 68, 2000. <u>https://doi.org/10.1037//0003-066x.55.1.68</u>
- [39] M. Sailer, J. U. Hense, S. K. Mayr, and H. Mandl, "How gamification motivates: An experimental study of the effects of specific game design elements on psychological need satisfaction," Computers in Human Behavior, vol. 69, pp. 371-380, 2017/04/01/ 2017. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2016.12.033
- [40] A. Suh, C. Wagner, and L. Liu, "The effects of game dynamics on user engagement in gamified systems," in System Sciences (HICSS), 2015 48th Hawaii International Conference on, 2015, pp. 672-681. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/hicss.2015.87</u>
- [41] R. M. Ryan and E. L. Deci, "Intrinsic and Extrinsic Motivations: Classic Definitions and New Directions," Contemporary Educational Psychology, vol. 25, pp. 54-67, 2000/01/01/ 2000. <u>https://doi.org/10.1006/ceps.1999.1020</u>
- [42] K. Seaborn and D. I. Fels, "Gamification in theory and action: A survey," International Journal of Human-Computer Studies, vol. 74, pp. 14-31, 2015/02/01/ 2015. <u>https://doi.org/ 10.1016/j.ijhcs.2014.09.006</u>
- [43] J. Simões, R. D. Redondo, and A. F. Vilas, "A social gamification framework for a K-6 learning platform," Computers in Human Behavior, vol. 29, pp. 345-353, 2013. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2012.06.007</u>
- [44] G. Zichermann and C. Cunningham, Gamification by design: Implementing game mechanics in web and mobile apps: "O'Reilly Media, Inc.", 2011.
- [45] F. Groh, "Gamification: State of the art definition and utilization," Institute of Media Informatics Ulm University, vol. 39, 2012.
- [46] J. Nakamura and M. Csikszentmihalyi, "Flow theory and research," Handbook of positive psychology, pp. 195-206, 2009.

- [47] G. Richter, D. R. Raban, and S. Rafaeli, "Studying gamification: the effect of rewards and incentives on motivation," in Gamification in education and business, ed: Springer, 2015, pp. 21-46. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-10208-5_2</u>
- [48] S.-K. Thiel, "Reward-based vs. Social Gamification: Exploring Effectiveness of Gamefulness in Public Participation," in Proceedings of the 9th Nordic Conference on Human-Computer Interaction, 2016, p. 104. <u>https://doi.org/10.1145/2971485.2996739</u>
- [49] Z. Turan, Z. Avinc, K. Kara, and Y. Goktas, "Gamification and Education: Achievements, Cognitive Loads, and Views of Students," International journal of emerging technologies in learning, vol. 11, 2016. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/ijet.v11i07.5455</u>
- [50] M. Restivo and A. Van De Rijt, "Experimental study of informal rewards in peer production," PloS one, vol. 7, p. e34358, 2012. <u>https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0034358</u>
- [51] P. Denny, "The effect of virtual achievements on student engagement," in Proceedings of the SIGCHI conference on human factors in computing systems, 2013, pp. 763-772. <u>https://doi.org/10.1145/2470654.2470763</u>
- [52] K. F. Hew, B. Huang, K. W. S. Chu, and D. K. Chiu, "Engaging Asian students through game mechanics: Findings from two experiment studies," Computers & Education, vol. 92, pp. 221-236, 2016. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2015.10.010</u>
- [53] D. Kayımbaşıoğlu, B. Oktekin, and H. Hacı, "Integration of Gamification Technology in Education," Procedia Computer Science, vol. 102, pp. 668-676, 2016. <u>https://doi.org/10.10</u> <u>16/j.procs.2016.09.460</u>

8 Authors

Dr. Waleed Salim Mohamed Alhalafawy, Professor, Instructional technology Department, College of Educational Graduate Studies, king abdulaziz University, Jeddah- Saudi Arabia, and Ain shams university, Cairo, Egypt, Research Interests in the field of e-learning, digital video, applications of smart phones, digital platforms. (e-mail: welhlafawy@kau.edu.sa, waleed doc@hotmail.com)

Dr. Marwa Zaki Tawfiq Zaki, associate Professor, Instructional technology Department, College of Specific Education, Ain Shams University, Cairo, Egypt, Research Interests in the field of E-Learning, Mobile Games, 3D environments, Augmented Reality. (e-mail: dr.marwa.zaki@sedu.asu.edu.eg, drmarwaa_doc@hotmail. com)

Article submitted 2019-04-23. Resubmitted 2019-05-25. Final acceptance 2019-05-26. Final version published as submitted by the authors.

Paper-Diagnosing Adoption to Mobile Learning

Diagnosing Adoption to Mobile Learning

https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v13i08.10083

Eliza B. Ayo ^(⊠), Marcial L. Anacio, Lani E. Sakay, Rosemarievic A. Bustamante, Teresita S. Mijares Centro Escolar University, Manila, Philippines ebayo@ceu.edu.ph

Abstract—This study was undertaken to address the need to modernize the modes of teaching and learning pedagogy by taking advantage of the proliferation of electronic gadgets and mobile devices since, as counted there are more computers than the people in the world [1]. This research found out how learning in the new platform could be adopted by teachers and students. In addition, it tested the different variables involved in the use of mobile in learning by faculty and students of Centro Escolar University (CEU) to determine factors that made implementing technology a success or a failure.

To attain the set objectives, this study made use of descriptive and inferential method to the data gathered from respondents via stratified random sampling. Specifically, it employed frequency, mean, standard deviation, t-test, analysis of variance and multiple linear regressions for the treatment of data derived from the survey questionnaires. To complete the triangulation approach and for consistency of findings, observation and interview were also conducted.

Subsequently, in order to determine adoption to mobile learning the modified Unified Theory of Acceptance and Use of Technology (UTAUT) model was employed. This model shows relationship of moderating variables which are age, gender, voluntariness of use and experience from independent variables like performance expectancy, effort expectancy, social influence, facilitating conditions, anxiety and self-efficacy.

After all the statistical treatments were applied, Anxiety, Self-Efficacy, Effort Expectancy, Performance Expectancy and Facilitating Condition contribute to the success of the introduction of technology to the organization, while social influence was excluded as the reasons why users adopt it.

Keywords-Mobile learning, technology adoption,

1 Introduction

A new breed of era started when mobile devices landed on peoples' hands. These technology savvy individuals find ways on how to use these gadget to their advantage. With the recent studies [2], [3] it revealed that by 2020 the number of things connected to the internet will reach 50 billion and by the year 2019 there are 5 billion smart phone and tablet users.

Looking at the spread of these gadgets, this will make an impact in all fields. From industrial to manufacturing to agriculture, this phenomenon could be an enabler to more advanced things or could disrupt existing traditions and processes. Education will not be spared from it. In fact Daniel Burrus, chief executive officer of Burrus Research Associates Inc., predicted that mobile learning represents an amazing disruption and opportunity [4].

The use of innovative technology in the classroom has a positive impact on students learning [5]. As a way of embracing changes, it is interesting to note that schools and universities are coping up by searching and introducing new platforms. They are working towards improvement and innovation, knowing that classroombased lessons and other approaches may not suffice to the growing mobile users and fast paced development in technology. The availability of these gadgets combined with creativity of teachers, this tool can be used to deliver quality teaching and amazing learning experiences among students.

However, implementing mobile learning is still not as easy as *abc*, aside from learning the technicality to use this state the of the art technology, human factors in order to adopt it, needs to be studied as well. What are the factors that will make teachers and students adopt mobile learning? If there are studies that show people reject new technologies when they replace humanity while embraces them when they support human desire for purpose, challenge, meaning and alignment with nature even if these technologies are unwieldy, expensive, time-consuming to use, and constantly break down [6].

In fact, when smart phones and tablet landed on the hand of teachers and students and a number of website offers on-line education at no cost, there was an assumption that adopting to it will take a leapfrog. However when Edx was launched even Harvard faculty argued on its impact to its current system [7]. Moreover, since technology gadgets can influence the socio emotions of students, balancing and controlling the use of it are needed [8]. This is one of the evidences of human's resistance to adopt to changes. An illustration that even technological advances offers a modern way on how to do things there are barriers for its implementation.

Since financial investment is at stake in implementing mobile learning, identifying variables on user adoption to it is deemed necessary. This study gives light on which factors to address and the challenges administrators are facing in enhancing teaching and learning through technology. When all these where identified and considered, adoption will no longer an issue if in the future new technology for improvement and sustainability are introduced.

2 Background of the Study

Currently, Centro Escolar University is considering a new learning management system (LMS) as an enhancement to its various learning modalities for its diverse learners that can be accessed in mobile. In the context of this study, mobile learning includes the use of LMS in mobile devices. Since both technologies offers features that when adopted could provide a brand new way to conduct classes as well as inPaper-Diagnosing Adoption to Mobile Learning

crease teachers' productivity and enrich classroom experiences to the students, this study was conducted. This study determined the adoption of mobile learning using Unified Theory of Acceptance and Use of Technology (UTAUT). Using this model, it could determine teachers' and students' attitude, preparedness and concerns with regard to mobile learning adoption [9].

3 Statement of the Problem

- 1. What is the profile of the respondents in terms of:
 - (a) age;
 - (b) gender;
 - (c) experience;
 - (d) voluntariness of use and
 - (e) mobile devices ownership?
- 2. How do the respondents assess mobile learning based on the following determinants of user intention?
 - (a) Performance Expectancy (PE);
 - (b) Effort Expectancy (EE);
 - (c) Social Influence (SI);
 - (d) Facilitating Conditions (FC);
 - (e) Anxiety(AX);
 - (f) Self-Efficacy(SE);
- 3. How do the respondents assessments of mobile learning in terms of performance expectancy, effort expectancy, social influence and facilitating conditions compare when grouped according to age, gender, voluntariness of use and experience?
- 4. Among the determinants of behavioral intention, which are the factors that will make the teachers and students adopt mobile learning?

4 Hypothesis

The factors that will make the teachers and students adopt mobile learning will not be determined by the use of UTAUT.

5 Methods and Procedures

The Sloven's Formula was used to identify the number of respondents needed in this study. The questionnaire was composed of two parts. The first part is for demographic profiling that served as moderating variables which includes the age, gender, voluntariness of use and experience. Part II is patterned to the UTAUT model that made use of determinants of behavioral intention namely performance expectancy, effort expectancy, social influence, facilitating conditions anxiety and self-efficacy. A marked of .957 or excellent verbal interpretation when the questionnaire was checked for internal consistency using Chronbach's Alpha. 461 questionnaires were distributed among the students and employees in CEU. These were tested and treated using Statistical Packages for Social Sciences (SPSS) application. The following statistical method, frequency distribution, percentage, mean, standard deviation, T-test, Analysis of Variance (ANOVA) to come up with the needed answers to the question posted.

5.1 Theoretical framework

This study is anchored at The Unified Theory of Adoption and Use of Technology. This theory explores the different factors that make adoption to the technology a success. UTAUT is consists of moderating variables such as age, gender, experience and voluntariness of use. These variables when relate to dependent variables performance expectancy, effort expectancy, social influence and facilitating condition factors on the use and adoption can be identified. These identified factors are useful to make necessary adjustment to ensure success in implementation. In the case of this study, all moderating variables were tested to the different dependent variables and on the additional factors, anxiety, self-efficacy and attitude towards using technology thereby increasing the scope on what to consider.



Fig. 1. Modified Unified Theory of Acceptance and Use of Technology (UTAUT)

5.2 **Profile of the respondents**

Out of 461 respondents, majority of it is within the age ranges from 19 to below or 65.9% percent. The respondents were mostly female or 63.4%, which is in the third year level and consider using mobile in learning as voluntary. A number of respondents answered smartphones as the device they use for mobile learning which is 76.8 percent while tablets and netbooks scored 34.5% and 9.3 percent respectively. Paper-Diagnosing Adoption to Mobile Learning

6 **Results and Discussions**

In assessing the different determinants of user intention a five-point Likert scale was used.

The Assessments of Mobile Learning in terms of Performance Expectancy is presented on table1. The respondents agreed that learning from mobile is useful to his/her work or study (x=4.25). It enables them to accomplish the task quickly (x=4.18), increases productivity (x=4.13), and increases the chance of getting good grades or good performance in their job (x=4.02). The overall mean (x=4.48) strongly suggest that learning from mobile help them attain gain in study/job performance. Performance expectancy has direct effect on the adoption of web based training [10] [11].

To take advantage of the results presented, teachers could use mobile devices in enriching the teaching and learning experience of the students within or outside the campus by creating activities because students will surely take interest on it.

Performance Expectancy							
	N	Mean	Std. Devia- tion	Verbal Interpretation			
Learning from mobile is useful to my work/study.	460	4.2478	1.3331	Agree			
Using mobile devices enables me to accomplish task more quickly.	460	4.1826	1.3008	Agree			
Learning from mobile increases my productivity.	458	4.1332	1.2715	Agree			
Learning from mobile increases my chances of getting a good grade/good performance rating.	459	4.0261	1.2466	Agree			
Performance Expectancy	461	4.478	1.2094	Agree			

Table 1. Assessments of Mobile Learning in terms of Performance Expectancy

As seen on Table 2, on the Assessments of Mobile Learning In Terms of Effort Expectancy. The result on effort expectancy connotes that both students and faculty do not have a hard time to use mobile devices in teaching and learning. The overall mean (X=3.65) suggests that respondents exerted less effort to use the system to achieve his/her goals in using mobile to learn/teach. Based on the rating, respondent's claimed that it is easier for them to use mobile in the learning/teaching(x=3.59) as well as to become skillful (x=3.87). On the other hand, the rating on the use of mobile devices (x=3.62) and connecting to internet (x=3.51) using their gadgets were easy for them as noted on the results. Effort expectancy confirms that when a technology is easy to use and require less effort is one of the reasons why user adopts a system [12].

Social Influence as defined by Venkatesh is the degree to which an individual perceives that people who are important to him/her believe that he/she should use the new technology which the overall mean of (x=3.92) implies as reflected on table 3.

People who influence respondent's behavior (x=3.87) and those that are important to them (x=3.82) think that they should teach/learn through mobile. The support to use mobile devices is also seen in their classmates and colleagues, in fact respondents claimed they have been helpful in the use mobile in the teaching/learning (x=3.92). However, the results minimally agree was yielded when the respondents were ask on

the university's support on the use of mobile in teaching/learning (x=3.09). On the interview with the respondents in investigating on why the aforementioned results were derived, the policy on mobile use inside the classroom as well as the low wi-fi signal in the campus are the two common reasons. People adopt technology to blend or connect to other people [13]. However, after the user used the technology social influence is no longer significant [14].

Effort Expectancy							
	N	Mean	Std. Deviation	Verbal Interpretation			
Using mobile to learn/teach is easy for me.	461	3.5900	1.19920	Agree			
It is easy for me to become skillful through mobile learning/teaching	461	3.8698	1.12113	Agree			
Mobile devices in teaching/learning is easy for me.	461	3.6291	1.20467	Agree			
Connecting to internet for mobile learning is easy for me.	460	3.5087	1.20182	Agree			
Effort Expectancy	461	3.6497	1.05943	Agree			

Table 2. Assessments of Mobile Learning In Terms of Effort Expectancy

Table 3. Assessments of Mobile Learning in terms of Social Influence

Social Influence							
	N	Mean	Std. Deviation	Verbal Interpretation			
People who influence my behavior think that I should teach/learn through mobile	461	3.8655	1.07102	Agree			
People who are important to me think that I should use mobile devices in teaching/learning	461	3.8265	1.09358	Agree			
My classmates/colleagues have been helpful in the use mobile in teaching/learning	460	3.9174	1.15363	Agree			
In general, the university has supported the use of mobile in learn- ing.	461	3.0954	1.18119	Minimally Agree			
Social Influence	461	3.9262	.99850	Agree			

On facilitating condition as seen on table 4, the overall mean score of 4.14 shows the respondents' belief that an organizational and technical infrastructure exists to support the use of mobile in the teaching and learning. The ratings on the table reflected that availability of resources exists in CEU (x=4.23) and respondents have the necessary knowledge (x=4.34) to use mobile devices in teaching and learning. The respondents also agreed that their mobile device is always compatible with other systems they use (x=3.95) and in case they need assistance there is a specific person or group is available (x=4.04). Financing, skills, capacity and infrastructure are examples of challenges encountered when implementing technologies [15].

In the case of CEU, the Teaching and Learning Technology Department (TLTD) and Information Communication Technology (ICT) are the departments responsible in

facilitating the use of modern technology. The former is responsible in implementing technological advances in the teaching and learning process while the latter is on implementing such infrastructure needed to modernize CEU.

Facilitating Condition								
	N	Mean	Std. Deviation	Verbal Interpretation				
I have the resources necessary to learn from mobile	461	4.2321	1.13842	Agree				
I have the knowledge necessary to use mobile in learning	460	4.3413	1.12354	Agree				
My mobile device used in learning is always compatible with other systems I use.	460	3.9565	1.18370	Agree				
A specific person (or group) is available for assistance with my mobile device	459	4.0414	1.15805	Agree				
Facilitating Condition	461	4.1421	.98192	Agree				

Table 4. Assessments of Mobile Learning in terms of Facilitating Condition

Anxiety and Self efficacy are the additional variables tested in this study, this test that aside from perceived usefulness other factors are being considered by users before adapting to new technology [16]. Anxiety questions measure the degree of an individual apprehension or even fear when he/she is faced with the possibility of using mobile devices in teaching and learning is reflected on table 5. All indicators of anxiety level were rated minimially agree, from respondents apprehension (x=2.91), security issues (x=2.76), fear of making mistakes (x=2.59), down to the feeling of being intimidated (x=2.61). The overall rating of (x=2.72) suggests that anxiety in using mobile devices is not a matter to consider when in using mobile in the teaching and learning.

Table 5. Assessments of Mobile Learning in terms of Anxiety

Anxiety								
	N	Mean	Std. Deviation	Verbal Interpretation				
I feel apprehensive about using mobile in learning	459	2.9107	1.07303	Minimally Agree				
It scares me to think that mobile learning is not safe	460	2.7630	1.09780	Minimally Agree				
I hesitate to use mobile in learning of fear of making mistakes I cannot correct.	458	2.5939	1.09750	Minimally Agree				
Mobile learning is somewhat intimidating to me.	459	2.6144	1.08054	Minimally Agree				
Anxiety	461	2.7178	.96465	Minimally Agree				

Table 6 shows the result on self-efficacy of the respondents. Self-efficacy refers to an individual's belief in his or her capacity to execute behaviors necessary to produce specific performance attainments [17]. The capacity of the respondents to use mobile in the teaching and learning is high as seen on the different indicators of self-efficacy. This means that respondents believe in their own ability to succeed in accomplishing

task. Students will use technology when it is capable of increasing their efficiency [18].

The overall rating of 3.29 translated to as minimally agree when ask whether the respondents could perform the task when there is someone around to tell them what to do while working (x=4.30), calling help desk for oral instruction(x=3.24), plenty of time and resources are provided (x=3.35) and instruction readily available (x=3.26) are not necessary for them to complete their job or task.

Self-Efficacy								
	N	Mean	Std. Deviation	Verbal Interpretation				
I can complete a job or task using mobile:								
If there is someone around to tell me what to do as I work.	461	4.3080	1.16120	Minimally Agree				
If I can call to help desk for oral instruction	460	3.2391	1.04130	Minimally Agree				
If I have a lot of time to complete the job and resources are provided.	461	3.3536	1.09084	Minimally Agree				
If I have the instruction readily available	461	3.2646	1.09912	Minimally Agree				
Self- Efficacy	461	3.2914	.98283	Minimally Agree				

Table 6. Assessments of Mobile Learning in terms of Self Efficacy

Table 7 presents the comparison of respondents' assessments of mobile learning technology in terms of performance expectancy, effort expectancy, social influence and facilitating conditions when grouped according to age bracket. Looking at the table age of a person yielded a very significant variable in the results of performance expectancy, effort expectancy, social influence and facilitating conditions when analyzing the adoption of an individual to technology. An F value of .949 with a mark of 001 with a verbal interpretation of very significant was observed on pair 19-below VS 30-39, connotes that in terms of performance expectancy, older respondents tend to adopt the technology more compared to younger respondents. This means that technology will be adopted more by older individuals if this will help them excel in their performance or help them in their task or job compared to younger individuals. Therefore, performance expectancy has positive impact to older individuals when compared to younger individuals on mobile learning.

On the other hand, effort expectancy has positive impact to younger individuals when compared to older individuals. An F value of 9.117 with a mark of .001 with a verbal interpretation of very significant was observed to pairs 19-below VS 20 - 29, 19- below VS 30 - 39, 19- below VS 40 -49 and 19- below VS 50-above in terms of effort expectancy. This data connotes that young ones exerted less effort in mobile learning compared to older people.

Influencing younger individuals on the adoption to mobile learning is much easier compared to older individuals. The data prove this because an F value of 5.823 with a mark of .000 with a verbal interpretation of very significant was observed to pairs 19-below VS 20 - 29, 19- below VS 30 - 39, 19- below VS 40 - 49 and 19- below VS 50-above in terms of social influence. Opinions of the people who are important to them

are much regard and by young ones compared to older people. Therefore social influence in mobile learning has positive impact to younger compared to older individuals.

When it comes to facilitating condition, there is a positive impact on older individuals on the adoption to mobile learning compared to younger individuals. An F value of 5.9775 with a mark of .000 with a verbal interpretation of very significant was observed to pairs 19- below VS 30 - 39, 19- below VS 40 -49 and 19- below VS 50above was the basis of this analysis. Older persons have more positive views that organizational and technical infrastructure exist to support mobile learning compared to younger individuals. This shows that older persons are more aware that in the organization there is a unit that will assist them on the use of mobile learning. This difference suggest that adults put emphasis on facilitating condition compared to younger person [19]. Using this finding older people will look for someone to assist them on their technology needs.

An F value of 2.963 with a mark of .016 and a verbal interpretation of significant was observed to pairs 19 - below VS 50 above, 20 - 29 VS 50 above, 30 - 39 VS 50 above and 40 - 49 VS 50 above yielded from Anxiety. The data connotes that younger individuals exhibit a positive emotional reaction towards mobile learning compared to older persons.

It is safe to say that self-efficacy of the respondents when related to age is not significant in the adoption of mobile learning, an F value of 1.504 with a mark of .200 as seen on table. Understanding age difference is beneficial on the use of technology [20].

Among the determinants of user intention, facilitating condition and self-efficacy were found to have a significant difference when the respondents are grouped according to gender. The scores for facilitating condition in female respondents(x=3.0234, SD=.98717) and male respondents (x=3.3159, SD=.94511) with a value of =3.096, p=.003) suggests that male respondents have higher belief that organizational and technical infrastructure such as hardware, software and people resources exists in CEU for mobile learning compared to female respondents.

In terms of self-efficacy, the results show that female respondents(x=3.1750, SD=1.02900) and male respondents (x=3.4835, SD=.86999) with a value of =3.259 p=.001). Male users' belief in his capacity towards mobile learning is greater when compared to female respondents. This suggests that male users are more independent in doing task related to mobile learning and that male are more users of technology compared to female. This findings relates to that male students has higher self-efficacy in computing than the male students.[21]

However in table 8, there is no significant relationship when respondents' assessments of mobile learning in terms of performance expectancy, effort expectancy, social influence and anxiety when grouped according to gender.

		Mean	SD	F	Sig.	V.I.	Pair							
	19 below	4.01	1.19											
	20 - 29	4.24	1.21											
Performance Expec- tancy	30 - 39	4.80	1.05	040	001	Very	10 halow VS 20 20							
	40 - 49	4.5	1.30	.949	.001	Signin-	19- Delow VS 50-59							
	50-above	4.91	1.14			cunt								
	Total	4.14	1.22											
	19 below	3.53	0.99											
	20 - 29	3.60	1.00			X 7	19- below VS 20 - 29							
Effort	30 - 39	4.19	1.13	0.117	001	very Signifi	19- below VS 30 - 39							
Expectancy	40 - 49	4.39	1.48	9.117	.001	cant	19- below VS 40 -49							
	50-above	4.84	1.16			can	19- below VS 50-above							
	Total	3.65	1.06											
	19 below	3.83	0.98											
	20 - 29	3.88	0.99	5.823		Very Signifi	19- below VS 20 - 29 19- below VS 30 - 39							
Social	30 - 39	4.45	0.83		000									
Influence	40 - 49	4.39	1.07		.000	cant	19- blow VS 40 -49							
	50-above	4.75	1.18			cant	19- below VS 50-above							
	Total	3.92	0.99											
	19 below	4.02	0.95											
	20 - 29	4.22	0.91		000									
Facilitating	30 - 39	4.54	1.04			000	000	000	000	000	000	000	Very	Very
Condition	40 - 49	4.56	1.16	5.977	.000	cant	19- below VS 40 -49							
	50-above	4.98	1.16											
	Total	4.14	0.98											
	19 below	3.7803	0.94302											
	20-29	3.7323	0.94102				19 - below VS 50above							
	30-39	3.5081	1.02161	2.072	016	Signifi-	20 - 29 VS 50 above							
Anxiety	40-49	3.625	1.07626	2.963	.016	cant	30 - 39 VS 50 above							
	50 above	2.8409	1.10834				40 - 49 VS 50 above							
	Total	3.7178	0.96465											
	19 below	3.2281	0.9947											
	20-29	3.4066	0.91584											
	30-39	3.5806	0.86936	1 50 4	200	Not								
Self-Efficacy	40-49	3.375	1.03682	1.504	.200	Signifi-								
	50 above	3.0682	1.33272	1		can								
	Total	3.2914	0.98283	1										

Table 7. Comparison of Respondents' Assessments of Mobile Learning Technology In Terms
Of Performance Expectancy, Effort Expectancy, Social Influence and Facilitating Con-
ditions When Grouped According To Age

Group Statistics									
	Gender	Mean	Std. Deviation	t value	Verbal Interpretation				
Douforman on Exmantan av	Male	3.1921	1.24308	750 - 448	Not Significant				
Performance Expectancy	Female	3.1024	1.19989	.739 p=.448	Not Significant				
Effort Evenoston ov	Male 2		1.13387	1 842 - 066	Not Significant				
Effort Expectancy	Female	2.5718	1.00489	1.842 p=.066	Not Significant				
	Male	2.9686	1.02718	915 - 415	Not Significant				
Social Influence	Female	2.8893	.98506	.815 p=.415					
	Male	3.3159	.94511	2.000 002	V. C				
Facilitating Condition	Female	3.0234	.98717	3.096 p=.003	Very Significant				
A	Male	2.8009	1.01366	1 480 120	Not Significant				
Anxiety	Female	2.6623	.93250	1.480 p=.139	Not Significant				
G.16 Eff	Male	3.4835	.86999	2 250 001	Var Ciarificant				
Self -Efficacy	Female	3.1750	1.02900	3.239 p=.001	very Significant				

 Table 8. Comparison of the Determinants of User Intention When grouped according to Gender

Table 9 presents the results on the comparison of the respondents' assessments of mobile learning in terms of performance expectancy, effort expectancy, social influence and facilitating conditions when grouped according to experience. Among the determinants of user behavior, experience when related to self-efficacy has no significance. This was based on the yielded data 1st Year (x=3.30, SD=0.86), 2nd Year (x=3.54, SD=0.99), 3rd Year (x=3.17, SD=1.037), 4th Year (x=3.47, SD=1.093) and Employee (x=3.48, SD=0.98) with a value of =1.601 p=.158).

Significant findings were found between pair 1st Years and faculty On the assessment on performance expectancy, the mark of 1st Year (x=3.05, SD=1.11) and faculty (x=3.95, SD=1.19) suggests that employees adoption to mobile learning is higher because they believe that this will help them in their work compared to students' rating. The same findings are on effort expectancy 1st Year (x=2.55, SD=0.94) vs Faculty (x=3.51, SD=1.00), social influence 1st Year (x=2.88, SD=0.97) vs Faculty (x=3.43, SD=1.06) and anxiety 1st Year (x=2.87, SD=0.90) vs Faculty (x=2.13, SD=0.98). These data suggest that there is a higher tendency for the faculty compared to 1st Year students to adopt mobile learning if the use of such technology is easy and effortless, influenced by their peers to use and a worry free adoption.

 Table 9. Comparison Of The Respondents' Assessments Of Mobile learning In Terms Of

 Performance Expectancy, Effort Expectancy, Social Influence And Facilitating Conditions When Grouped According To Experience

		Mean	SD	F	Sig.	V.I.	Pair
Performance Expectancy	1 st Year	3.0525	1.11944	3.294	.011	Very Significant	1 VS 5
	2 nd Year	3.4645	1.24428				
	3 rd Year	3.0127	1.20667				
	4 th Year	2.9265	1.31626				

Paper—Diagnosing Adoption to Mobile Learning

	Employee	3.9464	1.13162				
	Total	3.1085	1.19753				
	1 st Year	2.5543	.94596			Very Significant	1 VS 5
	2 nd Year	2.6968	1.01341		.003		
Effort Executor or	3 rd Year	2.4552	.98122	4.152			
Effort Expectancy	4 th Year	2.7500	1.12152				
	Employee	3.5179	1.31728				
	Total	2.5675	1.00756				
	1 st Year	2.8804	.97094			Significant	
	2 nd Year	3.1330	.95104	2.564	.038		1 VS 5
Seciel Influence	3 rd Year	2.7690	.94394				
Social influence	4 th Year	2.9265	1.07079				
	Employee	3.4286	1.0620				
	Total	2.8800	.97122				
	1 st Year	2.87	0.90	4.007	.000	Very Significant	1VS5 2VS 5
	2 nd Year	3.03	1.00				
A	3 rd Year	2.69	0.93				
Anxiety	4 th Year	2.41	0.78	4.927			
	Employee	2.13	0.98				
	Total	2.72	0.95				
Self-Efficacy	1 st Year	3.30	0.86		.158	Not Significant	
	2 nd Year	3.54	0.99				
	3 rd Year	3.17	1.037	1.601			
	4 th Year	3.47	1.093				
	Employee	3.48	1.096				
	Total	3.29	0.98				

Comparison Of The Respondents' Assessments Of Mobile Learning In Terms Of Performance Expectancy, Effort Expectancy, Social Influence And Facilitating Conditions When Grouped According To Voluntariness Of Use. In terms of respondents' assessments of WI-FI technology when grouped according to voluntariness of use compared with the different determinants of user intention no significant finding were yielded. Free will is not a factor to consider in adopting mobile learning.

Table 10.	Predictor	of the	User	Intention	to ado	pt mobile	learning
1 4010 100	110010101	or the	0.001	meention	to ado	pt moone	ieur ming

Determinants	R square (Coefficient of Determination)	β (Beta Coefficient)
Facilitating Condition	36 %	
Performance Expectancy	44%	
Effort Expectancy	48%	
Self-Efficacy	51%	
Anxiety	53%	
Excluded		
Determinants	R square (Coefficient of Determination)	β (Beta Coefficient)
Social Influence		

Between determinants of user to adopt mobile learning, anxiety top the rank (53%), followed by self-efficacy (51%), effort expectancy (48%), performance expectancy (44%) and facilitating condition (36%) as the last factor. Excluded from the factor is social influence. This explains that among the determinants of user intention respondents' anxiety is a good predictor in adopting mobile learning while influences from their peers will not contribute its success.

7 Conclusion

Anxiety, self-efficacy and effort expectancy are the top three identified factors in the use and adoption of mobile learning using UTAUT model. There is a need to mitigate faculty and students findings of apprehension, fear, hesitation and intimidation. Increase the confidence of the faculty and students by providing training workshops and demonstration on the use of mobile learning is necessary. A comprehensive program to implement to develop skills needed in shifting on the use of technology in the teaching and learning process. Since self-efficacy was also identified as one of the factors inclusion of criteria in their performance ranking and on grading system on mobile learning can be a scheme to make adoption a success. Moreover recognizing the effort on the use of technology could also be a strategy. Hence forth in the future anxiety, self-efficacy and effort expectancy will no longer be a factor why adopting to new technology will fail.

8 Recommendation

As an initial action to address anxiety on the adoption to mobile learning, training of users, provision of technical assistance to faculty and students and readily available manuals and guidelines should be drafted to ensure success in mobile learning implementation.

9 References

- Boren, Z. D. (2014, October 7). Independent. Retrieved from Indendent: more-mobiledevices-than-people-in-the-world-9780518.html
- [2] Nordrum, A. (2016, August 18). IEEE Spectrum. Retrieved December 13, 2017, from IEEE Spectrum: <u>https://spectrum.ieee.org/tech-talk/telecom/internet/popular-internet-of-thi</u> <u>ngs-forecast-of-50-billion-devices-by-2020-is-outdated</u>. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/mspec.201</u> <u>6.7572524</u>.
- [3] Statistica. (2016). The Statistical Portal. Retrieved Deceber 13, 2017, from Statistica: <u>https://www.statista.com/statistics/268232/top-10-countries-by-number-of-mobile-cellular-subscriptions/</u>
- [4] Gutierrez, K. (2016, December 1). Shift-Disruptive E-Learning. Retrieved from Shift-Disruptive E learning: <u>https://www.shiftelearning.com/blog/bid/331987/mobile-learning-stats-that-will-make-you-rethink-your-training-strategy</u>

Paper-Diagnosing Adoption to Mobile Learning

- [5] Hsiung, W. Y. (2018). The Use of E-Resources and Innovative Technology in Transforming Traditional Teaching in Chemistry and its Impact on Learning Chemistry. International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies, 86-96. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/</u> <u>ijim.v12i7.9666</u>
- [6] Joma, C. (2016, 7 6). World Economic Forum. Retrieved from World Economic Forum: <u>https://www.weforum.org/agenda/2016/07/why-do-people-resist-new-technologies-history</u> <u>-has-answer/</u>
- [7] Wu, R. J. (2012, 12 12). The Harvard Crimson . Retrieved from The Harvard Crimson : http://www.thecrimson.com/article/2012/12/12/faculty-edx-courses- debate/?page=1
- [8] Zakiah Mohamad Ashari, A. A. (2018). The Relationship between Knowledge and Attitude towards Technology Gadget Usage with Students' Socio-Emotions Development. International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies, 152-63. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/ ijim.v12i7.9711</u>
- [9] Viswanath Venkatesh, Michael G. Morris, Gordon B. Davis and Fred D. Davis. MIS Quarterly Vol. 27, No. 3 (Sep., 2003), pp. 425-478
- [10] Alrawashdeh, Thamer & Muhairat, Mohammad & Qatawneh, Sokyna. (2012). Factors affecting acceptance of web-based training system: Using extended UTAUT and structural equation modeling. <u>https://doi.org/10.5121/ijcseit.2012.2205</u>
- [11] Riquelme H, Rios RE (2010). The moderating effect of gender in the adoption of mobile banking. International Journal of Bank Marketing 28: 362-380. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/026</u> <u>52321011064872</u>
- [12] Sripalawat J, Thongmak M, Ngramyarn A (2011) M-banking in metropolitan Bangkok and a comparison with other countries. The Journal of Computer Information Systems 51: 67-76.
- [13] Pederson P, Ling R (2002) Modifying adoption research for mobile internet service adoption: cross-disciplinary interactions. In proceedings of the 36th Hawaii International Conference on System Sciences, Big Island, HI. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/hicss.2003.117421</u>
- [14] Hao, Haijing & Padman, Rema & Sun, Baohong & Telang, Rahul. (2014). Examining the Social Influence on Information Technology Sustained Use in a Community Health System: A Hierarchical Bayesian Learning Method Analysis. Proceedings of the Annual Hawaii International Conference on System Sciences. 2751-2758. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/h</u> icss.2014.345
- [15] Kasse, John Paul & Moya, Musa & Nansubuga, Annette. (2015). Facilitating Condition for E-learning Adoption—Case of Ugandan Universities. Journal of Communication and Computer. 12. <u>https://doi.org/10.17265/1548-7709/2015.05.004</u>
- [16] Satwinderjit Singh, I. A. (2018). New Wave in Mobile Commerce Adoption via Mobile Applications in Malaysian Market: Investigating the Relationship Between Consumer Acceptance, Trust, and Self Efficacy. International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies, 152-163. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v12i7.8964</u>
- [17] Bandura, A. (1997). Self-Efficacy: The exercise of control. New York, NY: W. H. Freeman.
- [18] Ali Tarhini, Mazen El-Masri, Maged Ali, Alan Serrano, (2016) "Extending the UTAUT model to understand the customers' acceptance and use of internet banking in Lebanon: A structural equation modeling approach", Information Technology & People, Vol. 29 Issue: 4, pp.830-849, <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/ITP-02-2014-0034</u>.
- [19] Isa SM, Wong KW "Age Differences in Behavioral Intention to
- [20] Use Internet Marketing: A Comparative Study Between Malaysian And Taiwanese".International Journal of Business and Society, Vol. 16 No. 3, 2015, 386 – 396

Paper-Diagnosing Adoption to Mobile Learning

- [21] W.A. Rogers, T.L. Mitzner, W.R. Boot, N.H. Charness, S.J. Czaja, J. Sharit, Understanding Individual And Age-Related Differences In Technology Adoption, Innovation in Aging, Volume 1, Issue suppl_1, July 2017, Page 1026, <u>https://doi.org/10.1093/geroni/igx004</u>.3733.
- [22] Marann Byrne, Barbara Flood, Julie Griffin. (2014) Measuring the Academic Self-Efficacy of First-year Accounting Students. Accounting Education 23:5, pages 407-423. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/09639284.2014.931240</u>

10 Authors

Dr. Eliza B. Ayo, PhD, Marcial L. Anacio, Dr. Lani E. Sakay, PhD, Dr. Rosemarievic A. Bustamante, PhD, Dr. Teresita S. Mijares, PhD are with Centro Escolar University at Manila, Philippines.

Article submitted 2019-05-06. Resubmitted 2019-06-17. Final acceptance 2019-06-18. Final version published as submitted by the authors.

A Systematic Review of Tablet Technology in Mathematics Education

https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v13i08.10795

Alexander Svela ^(⊠), Jalal Nouri Stockholm University, Stockholm, Sweden alexander.svela@gmail.com

Olga Viberg Royal Institute of Technology, Stockholm, Sweden

Lechen Zhang Stockholm University, Stockholm, Sweden

Abstract—In 2019, the mobile learning body of knowledge is extensive and much is known about the technology impacts and affordances of mobile devices in educational settings. A particular focus has now shifted toward specific technologies in specific subjects. Mathematics is one such subject and tablets are one such technology that is gaining attention. This systematic review representing the latest generation of tablet technology within the tablet-mediated learning in mathematics body of knowledge sought to derive evidence that supported questions into (a) what math sub-disciplines were covered, (b) what technology (application/hardware) was utilized, and (c) what pedagogical approaches were deployed in educational settings. This included analysis of the (d) advantages and (e) disadvantages present in those elements. Thirty-nine relevant articles were collected from various academic technology and educational databases. The results demonstrate that tablets are being predominantly deployed in various sub-disciplines such as Arithmetic, Computation, and Geometry with the iPad as the dominant choice for tablet hardware/applications. Pedagogical approaches lean heavily on game-based learning, environment interaction, and special needs support. Technological advantages include increased collaboration and mathematics engagement enabled by tablet mobility and a high potential for customization of solutions. Developers, teachers, and researchers need to be informed of potential challenges in designing content for tablet technology deployments in mathematics.

Keywords—Tablets, evidence, mathematics, systematic review, mobile learning, tablet-mediated learning

1 Introduction

The impact of technology on mathematical education and the importance of tabletmediated learning is recognized as an important area of study [1]. Mathematical skills and competencies are seen as key life competencies and are crucial for "active engagement in all aspects of life" [2 p.1]. Since the launch of the current generation of tablets in 2010, the development of tablet hardware technology has reached a mature state [3]. This allows for more stable platforms for applications to be developed for educational use. The popularity of tablets has led to an increased interest in educational applications, especially in schools [4]. A major driver toward this development of tablet technology is the adoption of said technology within mathematical faculties. Many global governments have introduced procurement programs for schools to enable purchase and supply of tablets to their faculty and student bodies [5] [6] [7]. The development of such programs is a direct result of the combined efforts of the academic community in the last eight years within the field of tablet-mediated learning.

Because use of tablets has the potential to enhance learning, researchers during the last years have become interested in the tablets' affordances in the learning process and their effects on students' achievements [2]. In their review of tablet use in schools, [4] highlighted several affordances of tablets that contribute to improving learning. They include: i) high usability and integration of multiple features (e.g., built-in cameras, accelerometers, and microphones) within one device, ii) easy customization and supporting inclusion, iii) touch screen, as well as iv) availability and v) portability. Furthermore, the authors pinpoint that applications developed for tablets may be "simpler and more "intuitive" to use than their counterparts used with technologies such as laptops [...] because tablet-based application are designed to work with a range of screen sizes and as they often lack the notion of opening and closing applications" (p.10). In comparison with most computers, tablets that incorporate touch interaction make possible manipulation that is similar to how children manipulate physical objects and exploit their natural sensorimotor form of interaction [8] [9].

Moreover, in contrast to computers and mobile phones, tablets' touch screen supports the interaction of two or more students as the same time which makes them especially suited for collaborative work [10]. After all, the small screen size of mobile devices is an obstacle to learning, especially because of the difficulty in collaboration with shared digital displays [11]. Tablets have also been shown to support multimodal learning, i.e., the use of different and combined modalities (e.g., text, sound, video and pictures) to support learning and meaning-making and to support learners to become both producers and consumers of knowledge material [12].

However, certain technologies are considered to be more suitable for chosen tasks than others. In relation to tablets' use, keyboards, larger screens and special software may be needed to support some specific tasks, for instance, mathematical constructions and computer programming [4]. Furthermore, the results of the research on the affective aspect of learning indicate that tablets contribute to students' engagement and sustain their interest (e.g., [13] [14]). Also, [15] found that students preferred learning with tablets compared to text-books.

2 Background

Previous meta-studies and reviews within tablet-mediated and computer-supported learning in mathematics education have focused on: (1) technological impacts on learning effectiveness (high, medium, low) [16]; (2) learning outcomes/gains from usage of tablet technology (positive, neutral, negative) [1] [17]; (3) educational spaces, as classrooms and laboratories [18]; (4) effective educational programs, such as classroom management, motivation, and supplemental tutoring programs [19]; (5) instructional improvement strategies (technology and nontechnology curricula, manipulatives, and technology tools) [20]; and (6) educational cohorts (K-12, higher education) [16] [17]. Each of these studies either focuses purely on the broader application of computer technology in mathematics or where tablets were the focus, mathematics was not due to a broader overall learning approach.

Furthermore, tablet-mediated learning can be seen as a part of the mobile learning research field. Although there is much debate on what comprises and defines mobile learning in its entirety, there is a growing consensus that the subcategory of 'tools' is one such included factor within the technology area (e.g., [21] [22]). Hence, several relevant reviews focusing mobile learning in mathematical education rather than tablet-mediated learning per se have been conducted (e.g., [23] [24] [25]). In these studies, tablets are largely considered as one of many other mobile devices, without any particular focus on their specific affordances and/or characteristics in terms of user interaction patterns. One of the recent reviews of mobile learning for science and mathematics school education [23] emphasized the review of empirical evidence. However, similarly, the authors have not focused and/or examined specific affordances of tablets compared to other mobile technologies used. In the same vein, [24] reviewed mobile learning in mathematics only reported that tablets, in relation to the types of mobile devices used, were next in frequency (31%) after mobile phones (38%); no analysis of the differences between tablets and other mobile technologies has been presented.

With the high-level understanding of where tablets are located within the mobile learning body of knowledge, it is important to reflect upon previous research where these tools are concerned. In addition to a host of individual journals on the subject, several previous systematic reviews have examined research where tablets have been employed in education. Firstly, [18] analyzed the iPad's instructional benefits in educational settings. Despite finding 'tempting technology features' and 'ease of use' as drawing factors toward using the iPad as an educational tool, they could not conclude that the iPad had any positive academic effect in respect to tablet-mediated learning outcomes - emphasizing a lack of pedagogy-wide and long enough research works. Secondly, scholars reviewed relevant research focusing on the use of iPads in higher education, with a focus on student and teacher perspectives [17]. In line with [18], they found that students' learning outcomes were not improved when using tablets. Some benefits for teachers were pinpointed in respect to information dissemination, academic administration and professional development support [17]. A key finding in respect to technology in the form of tablet applications suggests that no up-to-date research that evaluated the use of apps within the subject of mathematics was con-

ducted. Thirdly, another review [1] evaluated the use of tablets - not just iPads amongst primary and secondary students concerning learning outcomes. The results indicate that the knowledge base was fragmented and lacked rigorous studies sufficient enough to draw any firm conclusions. When discussing technological affordances, it was noted that in consideration of tablet technology, keyboards, larger screens, and specialized software may be needed to support specialized tasks such as mathematical constructions [1]. Finally, one of the latest reviews investigated *if*, *when* and *how* using tablets impacts on learning outcomes [4]. Based on the analysis of 33 studies, including those that were performed in a mathematical education context, they conclude that overall tablets have significant potential for enhancing learning, but "the most important element remains the teacher, and their classroom practice" (p.115).

In summary, the results of the research mentioned above suggest that the tabletmediated learning body of knowledge in education overall lacks the pedagogical sense. Besides, a limitation to complete understanding is that these studies do not specifically address tablets in mathematics but tablets from a broader perspective.

Largely the above-mentioned studies lack the combined focus on tablet-mediated learning in mathematics and do not offer thorough insight into the pedagogical practices, the specific affordances of tablets' use that aid students' learning of mathematics, implementation advantages and specific challenges faced by end-users, teachers and developers.

This study thus aims to fulfil this gap by presenting a systematic review of the literature comprising the tablet-mediated learning body of knowledge with a focus on mathematics.

2.1 Research questions

The purpose of this systematic review is to investigate how tablet technology is utilized for mathematics learning and what pedagogical practices tablets support. This is addressed through the following research questions:

- **RQ1:** In what math-disciplines are tablets used?
- **RQ2:** What kinds of tablet technology are used?
- RQ3: What kinds of pedagogical practices are enacted?
- **RQ4:** What are the advantages of tablet-mediated mathematics learning?
- **RQ5:** What are the challenges of tablet-mediated mathematics learning?

3 Methodology

To investigate how tablet technology has been utilized for mathematics learning and what pedagogical practices tablets support the existing body of knowledge surrounding tablet-mediated learning in mathematics has been assessed and analysed. Methodological considerations are thus concerned with analysing an aggregate of single research projects that have been conducted in this area and timeframe.

3.1 Data collection

Database searched: Evidence articles were collected from the technology and education-based databases described in Table 1. Databases were selected from an aggregate of those used in previous tablet-mediated and mobile learning systematic reviews (e.g., [1] [17] [18] [22]).

Database	Link				
ACM Digital Library	http://dl.acm.org/				
EBSCO host Research Databases	https://www.ebscohost.com/				
ERIC	DB included in EBSCO and ProQuest Searches				
IEEE Xplore Digital Library	http://ieeexplore.ieee.org/Xplore/home.jsp				
ProQuest	http://www.proquest.com/				
ScienceDirect	http://www.sciencedirect.com/				
Elsevier Science	DB included in ScienceDirect search				

Table 1. Databases searched

Supplemental manual searches – **Journals**, In order to ensure subject matter coverage of mathematics in education, manual searches were also conducted in for the following journals: *Computers & Education, Journal of Computer Assisted Learning, Computers in Human Behavior, British Journal of Educational Technology, Journal of Educational Technology & Society, and the International Review of Research in Open and Distance Learning.*

Search terms: Three different categorization of search terms and potential variations within those categories were derived from a combination of previous tabletmediated learning systematic reviews by [1] and [17]:

- Tablets: 'tablet' or 'iPad' or 'Android' or 'Windows' AND;
- Education: 'education' or 'pedagogy' or 'learning' AND;
- Mathematics: 'mathematics' or 'math'.

Selection of papers for inclusion in the review: In respect to timeframe, the scope of this study only included evidence gathered between January 2010 and January 2018.

For assessment of the relevant academic body of knowledge, conference proceedings, articles, and journal publications consisted of the evidence articles collected.

The criteria mentioned above, as well as the following inclusion and exclusion criteria, are adapted from previous systematic reviews [1][17][18]. In addition to the specific criteria stated above, evidence articles were included according to the criteria presented in Table 2:

Inclusion	Rationale				
Focused on any mathematical sub-discipline	In order to address RQ1, studies that cover such sub- disciplines (non-exhaustive) as geometry, algebra, fractions, arithmetic, calculus.				
Reported use of any tablet hardware	This includes iPads, Android and custom platforms. In order to address RQ2.				
Reported use of tablet mathematical applications	In order to address RQ2 for the understanding of what applications are deployed in mathematics.				
Described pedagogical practices deployed	Concerning RQ3.				
Written in English Peer-reviewed original articles	Self-explanatory limitation of the researcher.				
All educational cohorts	From junior kindergarten to higher learning. Mathemat- ics is a subject covered at all levels.				

Table	2.	Incl	lusion	Crit	teria

In addition to the specific inclusions stated above, evidence articles were included after exclusion evaluation according to Table 3.

Exclusion	Rationale				
Non-academic sources	In order to assess the academic body of knowledge, evidence sources such as news, websites, and other non-peer reviewed articles were excluded.				
Mobile learning technology papers that do not concern tablet technology	Mobile learning technology is a broad topic and tablets is a subset. It is important to include mobile learning technology papers where tablets are concerned yet exclude the rest.				
'Grey Literature' [1]	Excluded due to non-academic nature or does not fully meet inclusion criteria. Includes technical writings, white papers, feasibility studies.				
Duplicates	Individual searches from databases may yield duplicate returns.				

Coding and categorization of articles: Evidence articles that meet the inclusion criteria were subject to coding by reviewing each article's full text and categorizing the evidence based on the prescribed categories. The categories were derived from the research questions, which were in line with methods used in previous systematic reviews [1] and [18]. Articles in the chosen sample were categorized according to the following non-exhaustive dimensions:

- Math Discipline [RQ1] The specific math discipline that is the focus of an individual study.
- Utilized Technology [RQ2] Tablet hardware or software deployed.
- Pedagogical Practices [RQ3] Commonly identified learning practices applied using technology.
- Advantages [RQ4] Clear benefits realized from tablet technology.
- Challenges [RQ5] Commonly documented challenges within evidence articles.

To assess inter-rater reliability concerning the coding of the papers, a sub-sample of 20 of the 39 papers (50%) was coded independently by the authors. The inter-rater reliability (r) was .89, showing good agreement between the coders.
4 Results

4.1 Evidence articles identified by search terms

Table 4 presents a record of the search query syntax in the form of Boolean strings constructed from the defined search terms. It also includes various notes important to each search that were applied as refinements based on inclusion criteria and the dates that that searches were run. The total number of articles returned from the searches (275 in a six-year period before exclusions) suggests that there may be a limited interest within the area of tablet-mediated learning in mathematics.

4.2 Evidence articles selected using inclusion criteria

Table 4 also tallies the number of papers each database yielded as well as how many articles were selected based on the inclusion criteria. The ProQuest search generated the most usable results (21 articles), as it also included the ERIC (Education Resources Information Center) databases. In total, 39 relevant articles were found and serve as evidence for this systematic review. A full overview of the reviewed articles is presented in <u>Appendix 1</u>.

4.3 Categorization results

Math discipline [RQ1]

RQ1: In what math-disciplines are tablets used? Of the 39 articles in the final set:

- Nine articles were related to Arithmetic;
- Six articles were related to Computation;
- Five articles were related to Geometry;
- Nine articles covered multiple disciplines and;
- Algebra, Fractions, Trigonometry, Calculus, Logic and Common Core was also math disciplines of focus.

Arithmetic - Which includes simple addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division - is frequently studied within the tablet-mediated learning mathematics body of knowledge. There is a clear distinction of its use within elementary school levels [26] [27] [28] [30] [31], special needs [32] [33] and even where more advanced equations (and costs) are concerned [34].

Computation: Evidence articles that reported on the computation sub-discipline are concerned primarily with counting, skip counting, and matching activities [35] [36] [37]. More complex computation activities such as subitizing, quick number judgments [38] [39]; cardinality, number of elements in a number set; relative magnitude, size of a number compared to another; and composition/decomposition, breaking numbers into ones, tens, one hundreds and vice-versa [40] are similarly present.

Database	Query Syntax	Note	No. of Articles	No. of Articles Meeting Inclu- sion Criteria
ACM Digital Library	RcordAbstract:(tablet iPad android windows) AND (education pedagogic learning) AND (mathematics math)	Refinements: Published since 2010 Published to 2018	56	6
EBSCO host Research Data- bases	(AB (tablet OR iPad OR android OR windows)) AND (AB (education OR pedagogy OR learning)) AND (AB (mathematics OR math))	Published Date:20100101- 20180431Source Types: Academic Journals, Re- views, JournalsLanguage: English	85	3
IEEE Xplore Digital Library	(("Abstract":tablet OR "Abstract":iPad OR "Abstract":android OR "Ab- stract":windows) AND (p_Abstract:education OR "Ab- stract":pedagogy OR "Ab- stract":learning) AND (p_Abstract:mathematics OR "Ab- stract":math))	Year: 2010-2018 Content Type: Conference Publications, Journals	39	4
ProQuest	(AB(tablet) OR AB(iPad) OR AB(windows) OR AB(android)) AND (AB(education) OR AB(learning) OR AB(pedagogy)) AND (AB(mathematics) OR AB(math))	Date: From 2010 January 01 to 2018 April 31 Source type: Scholarly Journals Language: English	67	21
Sci- enceDi- rect	pub-date > 2009 and TITLE-ABSTR- KEY((("tablet" OR "ipad" OR "an- droid" OR "windows") AND ("educa- tion" OR "pedagogy" OR "learning") AND ("mathematics" OR "math")))	Date Range: '2010' to 'Present'	28	5

Geometry: A more complex math sub-discipline than arithmetic and computation, geometry applications take advantage of tablet technology when interacting with environments through camera and compass functions. This is demonstrated in learning situations by capturing angles and distance measurements of real-world images [41] [42]. More advanced geometric activities include i) spatial geometry, consisting of points, lines, polygons [43], ii) translation, reflection, and rotation [44]; and iii) 3D Geometry where users can manipulate shapes in the third dimension using hand gestures and touchscreens [45]

Multi-discipline articles: There were multiple articles where a specific math subdiscipline was either not mentioned. These covered the broader topic of mathematics yet discussed either important pedagogical/technology approaches [10] [15] [46] [47] [48] or multiple math sub-disciplines were researched. In cases where multiple subdisciplines were discussed, geometry mixed with fractions [49], geometry mixed with computation activities [50]; and mathematical problem solving [51] [52] was identified.

Other math disciplines: More complex math sub-disciplines require more specialized applications that potentially reach smaller educational audiences than foundation level sub-disciplines such as arithmetic and computation in elementary settings. The

least complex fractions [53] [54] and algebra [55] [56] accounted for two evidence articles respectively. At the more complex end of the math spectrum, calculus [57] [58] and trigonometry [59] [60] also accounted for two findings each. A sole article researched mathematical logic [61].

4.4 Utilized technology [RQ2]

RQ2: How is the tablet technology used? What kinds of hardware/applications are utilized?

Of the 39 evidence articles in the final set:

- 26 articles were based on the iPad tablet;
- Six articles were based on the Android platform;
- The remaining articles' hardware was either not named or purely custom solutions;
- Frequently studied applications included Motion Math and
- Many custom apps were studied.

Tablet hardware technology: Collected evidence supports the notion that Apple may have the educational market covered as 67% of articles deployed iOS based tablets such as the iPad (e.g., [15] [31] [45] [46] [49] [50] [55] [61]). The Android platform has less evidence in support. Many companies develop tablets that run Android, yet the Samsung Galaxy Tab is the only device specifically researched [27] [43] [59]. Other articles present an Android solution but do not specifically state which manufacturer has supplied the tablet [34] [36] [56].

Seven articles do not specifically state what the underlying hardware technology solution is, thus focusing purely on the application itself (e.g., [28] [29] [44] [51] [52]). These kinds of studies are important because they can help explain whether it is the hardware or the software side of technology that impacts other researched factors (i.e., pedagogical approaches).

4.5 Pedagogical practices [RQ3]

RQ3: What kind of pedagogical practices are enacted? Of the 39 evidence articles in the final set:

- 16 articles were based on Game-Based Learning;
- Five articles were based on some form of Environment Interaction;
- Four articles were customized for Special Needs Learning;
- Other frequent pedagogical approaches included: Feedback, Scaffolding, Drill and Practice, and Reciprocal Peer Tutoring.

Game-based learning: It is no surprise that there is a large volume of evidence in support of game-based learning as a pedagogical practice. The logic is somewhat simple too: games are fun. Therefore math-based games can be fun too. They engage the student in what can be seen by some as mundane math topics presented in a fun way [15] and one case potential for distraction [48]. So, researched was game-based

learning as a pedagogical approach that multiple articles focused purely on it [27] [39] [53] [54] [61] [62]. Other evidence combines game-based learning with other pedagogical approaches, such as i) environment interaction, where the tablet technology interfaces with the real world [38] [57]; ii) feedback, where results and comments or positive reinforcement are immediately communicated to the user/student [28] [40]; and iii) immersion through flow experience, i.e., being in the zone [26] or through repetition of math levels [56].

Environment interaction: Utilizing tablet hardware features such as cameras, gyros, GPS and compasses, they can easily interact with the outside environment. This is especially true where geometry apps are concerned. Angles and shapes can be extrapolated from pictures, location data from GPS and other such measures can be inputs from the student's environment. As a pedagogical approach, using the real-world environment makes understanding practical applications easier for the learner [37] [42] and can even bring learning into the third dimension which is more difficult on paper [45].

Special needs learning: Since tablet technology is extremely customizable, special needs pedagogical approaches are customized. Physical disabilities can be accounted for through a specialized touch-input system that removes previous limitations of pencil and paper and enables learning to draft complex trigonometric equations [59]. Combined with environment interaction, game-based learning, and drill & practice pedagogies, down-syndrome [36] or autism [32] students can also be taught mathematics. Scaffolding, or level of support given during learning, is also combined with special needs learning [30] to offer a customized pedagogical approach.

Other pedagogical approaches: Feedback and scaffolding are also commonly utilized in pedagogical approaches. They have been used within games [38], as standalone approaches [46] [47] or in combination with a virtual tutor [34] [50].

Drill and practice, a traditional pedagogical approach where apps provide welldesigned learning based on repeated drill-and practice [33] are also frequent approaches. Such approach was found to be combined with tech and test - another traditional approach - to validate the repetition for average [43], as well as special needs students [36].

Another pedagogical approach to be mentioned is that of reciprocal peer tutoring. This is identified to be enabled by network and real-time communication features where learners can solve math problems within an app but also use the same app to demonstrate and teach other learners through video [44] and visual communication [41] [52] [60].

4.6 Advantages [RQ4]

RQ4: What are the advantages of tablet mediated mathematics learning?

Collaborative learning: As one of the primary affordances of tablet technology is its collaborative features (e.g., network and email), there is strong evidence in support of the advantages with respect to collaborative learning. Scribing, peer assessment, learning by teaching or "show and tell" are collaborative advantages whereby students can draw, build, and/or solve mathematical equations, diagrams or representations that

subsequently can be visually shown to other students and teachers. This enhances mathematical communication of all involved as students are motivated to clarify and reflect their ideas (e.g., [10] [31] [41].

Mobility: Since tablets are lightweight, wireless, and have long-lasting batteries, there is evidence to support that mobility of the devices is an advantage that is exploited in mathematics learning [44]. The mobility of the devices can lead to arguments against using PC or laptop technology. Laptops are too unwieldy for two students to compare work. Putting two tablets side-by-side is more practical than laptops [57]. Such kind of mobility also leads to the creation of engaging learning environments beyond the traditional boundaries of a classroom: the mobility of tablets result in altering the physical structure of the classroom as well as promoting a classroom environment is more conducive to learning mathematics [61].

Level of customization: The sheer volume of presented in the chosen sample custom math applications is a testament to the seemingly infinite number of ways that tablet technology can be customized. The most researched type of customization was when usable interfaces are designed to the specific needs of the end users – creating an easy-to-use interface. Whether it regards special needs [36] [59] or a more standard interface [37] [49] [54], students need to be comfortable with how they interact with their devices.

Customization of apps with respect to digital tutors or other kinds of built-infeedback was shown to lead to a lowered requirement for direct teacher support [32]. Additionally, apps were shown to serve as teaching tools or purely learning tools [27], as well as tools used for measurement of teaching effectiveness [40].

Mathematics engagement: Games, visuals, and rewards lend themselves to students being more engaged in mathematics. Overall, the most important factor in mathematics engagement is that math apps are fun [28]. Learners and teachers are most engaged when they are having fun. As outlined by [56], the video game was able to provide entertainment and at the same time was contextually relevant. Even compared to traditional methods such as "chalk & talk," levels of engagement and focus are much higher when tablet technology is used [44]. It is even demonstrated that highly engaged or even variably engaged students to achieve learning gains when utilizing tablets [62].

4.7 Challenges [RQ5]

RQ5: What are the challenges of tablet mediated mathematics learning?

Design/Content: One of the major challenges when it comes to deploying tablet technology in mathematics is getting the design of the solution correct which includes having the right content for the learner/teacher end users. Potential design issues include but are not limited to blurred images from cameras [44], light sensitivity settings [45], inadequately accounting for personal disabilities [59], poor user interfaces [29] [59], and at the most extreme, "inadequacies in representing the accuracy and richness of the mathematics content" [47]. Failure in design and content can lead to costly re-design or abandonment of the solution altogether by the students or teachers

as extreme examples. Minor design failures can lead to an increased need for technical support or maintenance teams to be onsite [31] [32] [40] [58].

Solutions to this challenge have been suggested in various application design approaches such as user-centered design [55] and ethnographic design [34].

Cognitive load: The cognitive load placed on students is also a definite challenge as new technology, interfaces, and new math applications first need to be learned themselves before students and teachers can capture the full potential of the learning experience [36] - the brain can only process so much. It has been demonstrated that "extraneous cognitive load can interfere with learning" [48] and lead to distractions within the learning environment. Cognitive load can lead to an increased need for technical training (cost) in addition to learning the math subject being taught [42].

This potential for 'information overload' is a challenge for designers as solutions tend to be based on hardware where potential users already have a technical ability due to ownership at home or elsewhere in an attempt to address this challenge [37].

Another possible solution presented is the use of pre-task instruction in order to alleviate potential high cognitive load that can lead to "digital interface performance deficits" [43].

Hardware vs. Software: A challenge to researchers is represented in the difficulty of "disentangling the exact features of the software and hardware" that defines a given study or intervention as successful [50]. This is a product of the fact that software cannot operate without a hardware platform. An attempt to overcome this challenge was an intervention with three groups: one with a tablet and math app; one with a tablet without the app; and a control group representing a traditional classroom without technology [46]. Even then, deciphering whether it is the hardware or the software that benefitted learners or teachers or resulted in some form of technological limitation remained a challenge [58].

Comparison against traditional methods: Another important challenge that needs to be addressed is the comparison between traditional teaching methods or pedagogical approaches versus those that are enhanced by tablet technology. Comparing enhanced learning environments to the traditional will set a benchmark to measure the effects of tablets within mathematics learning [56]. Unfortunately, there is limited evidence available to support that research is conducting these kinds of comparisons in order to alleviate this challenge [35] [53].

Novelty: The most interesting challenge and a question on researchers' minds are that of novelty. What happens when games are no longer fun or technology is no longer exciting? It "is commonly found in learning processes, the gains attributed to the novelty of a new approach may eventually become attenuated over time" [62]. More evidence is required to support the notion of novelty, and it impacts on tablet mediated learning in mathematics [10].

5 Discussion

This systematic review aimed to investigate how tablet technology is utilized for mathematics learning. In particular, it focused at the understanding of in what mathdisciplines tablets were used; what kind of tablet technology was employed; what pedagogical practices were enacted, as well as at the understanding of advantages and challenges of tablet-mediated mathematics learning.

5.1 Foundational mathematics is the dominant math discipline

The results show that there is a clear focus on foundational level mathematics in elementary school settings. Arithmetic (addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division) and computation (counting, number sorting/ordering, and subtilizing) are simple mathematical teaching concepts and lay the groundwork for more complex topics such as geometry, algebra, trigonometry, and calculus. Thus foundation subjects that tend to reach a wider audience of learners will be subject to application development and deployment on tablet hardware in educational settings in higher volume and frequency than more complex applications dealing with, for example, 3D geometry.

5.2 Pedagogical approaches

The most used pedagogical approach, either standalone or combined with others is game-based learning. Tablet technology opens the door for mathematical games to be designed that are touchscreen based, networked, visually and audibly stimulating and most of all fun. The ability to make complex and boring math subjects into fun and engaging experiences are strongly desired by teachers and learners. Except for gamebased learning, the reviewed studies either specifically targeted pedagogical approaches or inferred the existence of approaches used. Such table features as cameras, GPS, WiFi, and compasses enable unique opportunities for students and teachers to interact with their environments. Pictures of houses can turn into geometry lessons, and wireless network connections can ensure that students can collaborate and teachers can provide real-time feedback or scaffolding to assist teaching efforts. Special needs pedagogical approaches also not only include games, feedback, environmental interaction, and scaffolding but can be customized depending on physical or mental disability. Students who have lost the use of their hands for example can have custom interfaces developed which limit the impact of the physical disability when interfacing with tablets. These approaches, as well as traditional drill and practice or teach and test, can be programmed and deployed on top of tablet technology. Tablets allow teachers and students to customize their learning by selecting pedagogical approaches relevant to an individual student and/or a specific mathematical subject.

5.3 Advantages of deploying tablets

The affordances of tablets are widely researched and generally accepted in mobile learning circles. Coincidently, the evidence gathered in this review identifies some of the main advantages of tablets deployed in mathematics learning and directly links to tablet affordances [4]. For example, the collaborative affordances of tablet technology - related to, e.g., Wifi, graphical output, and document sharing - translates into math classrooms in which increased levels of collaborative learning is manifested where

students can act as peer-tutors and use tablets to solve math problems but also teach and gain peer feedback from other students. Students and teachers also take advantage of the portability and mobility of the technology when setting up unique learning experiences outside of the traditional classroom settings. These advantages, coupled with gaming pedagogical approaches lead to increased levels of mathematical engagement of students when compared to traditional classrooms and tools [63]. Perhaps the prevalent discovered benefit is the level of customization that tablet technology can bring to the student learning experience. Not only can applications be customized to include various pedagogical approaches, but apps can also be tailored toward the specific mathematical sub-disciplines being taught. Lastly, hardware can be customized to interact with external environments or even provide usable interfaces to accommodate special needs students.

5.4 Challenges faced by researchers, teachers, and students

While this review has mainly focused on the positive aspects of tablet technology, there is evidence to suggest that a few key challenges are also present. Design and content challenges plague not only developers but also teachers: how to best design the app for its intended audience and ensure that content is not only relevant but easily understood and navigated by learners is a constant challenge. Development of math apps can take multiple iterations and testing using classroom interventions of variable design. Teachers also face the challenge of how to design effective learning experiences that not only incorporate tablet technology but also apt mathematical pedagogical approaches.

Design and content challenges also need to consider the cognitive load challenge, i.e., interfacing with tablet technology should not put an extraneous cognitive load onto teachers and/or students. Time spent learning how to use an app or tablet interface can negatively impact mathematic teaching, as more time can be spent with technology learning than the subject at hand. The results also show that where there is a demand for high cognitive load, there is also a requirement for increased levels of technical support/maintenance from IT experts for teachers and students – which suggests a financial and time cost.

5.5 The novelty factor

When analysing other minor challenges one less frequently spoken of, yet very interesting and potentially high impact disadvantage came to the forefront – that of novelty. It is yet to be determined whether the novelty of technology fades over time and student/teacher engagement becomes less fun or less exciting as a result. The majority of evidence in this review seems to support the premise that tablet technology in iOS-based teaching is primarily deployed, and perhaps most effective in elementary school levels. That being said, it opens the door to further investigation to determine when the novelty of tablets essentially runs its course as students' progress in grades (potentially leading to disengagement and boredom) or improve other learning outcomes.

5.6 Limitations

This systematic review has several limitations. The first of which is a common limitation facing all systematic reviews – building the snapshot in time of the body of knowledge around tablet mediated learning in mathematics. Necessary conditions of this limitation include

- The exact search parameters represented by the Boolean strings
- The databases searched and choice of inclusion criteria; and the exact time the searches were performed, as well as the time period sample

Since in 2018, we are in the "late majority" maturity level of tablet technology, not only was this potentially a good time for a snapshot but this was also dependent on the almost commonly accepted notion that 2010 was the beginning of the latest generation of tablet technology.

Lastly, the databases themselves and the searches within them were limited to English only results. It follows then that all evidence and findings are limited to one language and not a representative extrapolation of the entire global body of knowledge for tablet mediated learning in mathematics.

6 Conclusion

This systematic review representing the latest generation of tablet technology within the tablet-mediated learning in mathematics body of knowledge sought to derive evidence that supported questions into what math sub-disciplines, what technology and what pedagogical approaches were deployed in educational settings. This included an analysis of the advantages and disadvantages present in those elements.

The most notable finding was that with a low volume of evidence articles in support of tablet-mediated learning in mathematics, the overall body of knowledge requires much more academic development. Researchers going forward should focus on specific mathematical sub-disciplines such as calculus, algebra, trigonometry and mathematical logic with a comparative look into which pedagogical approaches are effective in more complex math vs. foundational math subjects. Comprehensive endto-end studies that look at tablet technology and pedagogy are needed.

A potential disadvantage discovered also requires more research into the impact of novelty over time. It is plausible to suggest to novelty is not infinite and game base learning or tablet technology may become less interesting in older learning cohorts or even in corporate learning situations and be viewed more as a tool rather than a novel device.

What this study has shown is that despite almost eight years into this generation of tablet technology, the body of knowledge in respect to tablet-mediated learning in mathematics is still limited. Most research to date has focused on broader topics of mobile learning. In closing, it is hoped that this review will serve as a guide and a tool for tablet technology developers, teachers/students and researchers in the field of the tablet-mediated learning in mathematics.

7 References

- Hassler, B., Major, L., & Hennessy, S. (2016, April). Tablet use in schools: a critical review of the evidence for learning outcomes. *Journal of Computer Assisted Learning*, 32(2), 139-156. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/jcal.12123</u>
- [2] Volk, M., Cotič, M., Zajc, M., & Starcic, A. I. (2017). Tablet-based cross-curricular maths vs. traditional maths classroom practice for higher-order learning outcomes. *Computers & Education*, 114, 1-23. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2017.06.004</u>
- [3] Woods, V., & van der Meulen, R. (2016). Worldwide Device Shipments to Grow 1.9 Percent in 2016, While End-User Spending to Decline for the First Time. Retrieved January 20, 2017, from gartner.com: http://www.gartner.com/newsroom/id/3187134
- [4] Major, L., Haßler, B., & Hennessy, S. (2017). Tablet use in schools: impact, affordances and considerations. In *Handbook on digital learning for K-12 schools*, 115-128. Springer, Cham. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-33808-8_8</u>
- [5] Department for Education and Crown Commercial Service. (2016, April 28). Register to buy tablet devices for your school. Retrieved January 20, 2017, from gov.uk: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/news/register-to-buy-tablet-devices-for-your-school</u>
- [6] Tamim, R., Borokhovski, E., Pickup, D., & Bernard, R. (2015). Large-Scale, Government-Supported Educational Tablet Initiatives. Retrieved from Commonwealth of Learning: <u>http://oasis.col.org/bitstream/handle/11599/809/COL%20Tablet%20Initiatives.pdf?sequen</u> <u>ce=1&isAllowed=y</u>
- [7] Trucano, M. (2013, July 31). Big educational laptop and tablet projects -- Ten countries to learn from. Retrieved February 2, 2018, from The World Bank: <u>http://blogs.world bank.org/edutech/big-educational-laptop-and-tablet-projects-ten-countries</u>
- [8] Blackwell, C. K., Lauricella, A. E., & Wartella, E. (2016). The influence of TPACK contextual factors on early childhood educators' tablet computer use. *Computers & Education*, 98(2). <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2016.02.010</u>
- [9] Price, S., Jewitt, C., & Crescenzi, L. (2015). The role of iPads in pre-school children's mark making development. *Computers & Education*, 87, 131-141. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2015.04.003</u>
- [10] Ingram, N., Williamson-Leadley, S., & Pratt, K. (2016). Showing and Telling: Using Tablet Technology to Engage Students in Mathematics. *Mathematics Education Research Journal*, 28(1), 123-147. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s13394-015-0162-y</u>
- [11] Rossing, J., Miller, W., Cecil, A., & Stamper, S. (2012). iLearning: The future of higher education? Student perceptions on learning with mobile tablets. *Journal of the Scholarship* of Teaching and Learning, 12(2), 1–26.
- [12] Nouri J. & Cerratto Pargman, T. (2016). When Teaching Practices Meet Tablets' Affordances. Insights on the Materiality of Learning. In: K. Verbert, M. Sharples & T. Klobučar (Eds.) Adaptive and Adaptable Learning. EC-TEL 2016. Lecture Notes in Computer Science, vol. 9891, 179-192. Cham: Springer. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-45153-4_14</u>
- [13] Hu, H., & Garimella, U. (2014). iPads for STEM teachers: A case study on perceived usefulness, perceived proficiency, intention to adopt, and integration in K-12 instruction. *Journal of Educational Technology Development and Exchange (JETDE)*, 7(1), 4. <u>https://doi.org/10.18785/jetde.0701.04</u>
- [14] Zydney, J. M., & Warner, Z. (2016). Mobile apps for science learning: Review of research. Computers & Education, 94, 1-17. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2015.11.</u> 001

- [15] Carr, J. (2012). Does Math Achievement "h'APP'en" when iPads and Game-Based Learning Are Incorporated into Fifth-Grade Mathematics Instruction? *Journal of Information Technology Education*, 11(1), 269-286. <u>https://doi.org/10.28945/1725</u>
- [16] Cheung, A. C., & Slavin, R. E. (2013). The effectiveness of educational technology applications for enhancing mathematics achievement in K-12 classrooms: A meta-analysis. *Educational Research Review*, 9, 88-113. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.edurev.2013.01.001</u>
- [17] Nguyen, L., Barton, S. M., & Nguyen, T. (2015, January). iPads in higher education -Hype and Hope. *British Journal of Educational Technology*, 46(1), 190-203. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/bjet.12137</u>
- [18] Dhir, A., Gahwaji, N. M., & Nyman, G. (2013). The Role of the iPad in the Hands of the Learner. *Journal of Universal Computer Science*, 19(5), 706-727.
- [19] Slavin, R. E., & Lake, C. (2008). Effective Programs in Elementary Mathematics: A Best-Evidence Synthesis. *Review of Educational Research*, 78(3), 427-515. <u>https://doi.org/10.31</u> 02/0034654308317473
- [20] Rakes, C., Valentine, J., McGatha, M., & Ronau, R. N. (2010). Methods of Instructional Improvement in Algebra: A Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis. *Review of Educational Research*, 80(3), 372-400. <u>https://doi.org/10.3102/0034654310374880</u>
- [21] Taylor, J., Sharples, M., O'Malley, C., Vavoula, G., & Waycott, J. (2006). Towards a task model for mobile learning: a dialectical approach. *International Journal of Learning Technology*, 2(2), 138-158. <u>https://doi.org/10.1504/ijlt.2006.010616</u>
- [22] Frohberg, D., Göth, C., & Schwabe, G. (2009). Mobile Learning Projects a critical analysis of the state of the art. *Journal of Computer Assisted Learning*, 25(4), 307-331. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1365-2729.2009.00315.x</u>
- [23] Bano, M., Zowghi, D., Kearney, M., Schuck, S., & Aubusson, P. (2018). Mobile learning for science and mathematics school education: A systematic review of empirical evidence. *Computers & Education*, 121, 30-58. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2018.02.</u> 006
- [24] Crompton, H., & Burke, D. (2015). School culture for the mobile digital age. *Media Education*, 6(2).
- [25] Drigas, A., & Pappas, M. (2015). A review of mobile learning applications for mathematics. *International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies (iJIM)*, 9(3), 18-23. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v9i3.4420</u>
- [26] Hung, C.-Y., Chih-Yuan Sun, J., & Yu, P.-T. (2015). The benefits of a challenge: Student motivation and flow experience in tablet-PC-game-based learning. *Interactive Learning Environments*, 23(2), 172-190. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/10494820.2014.997248</u>
- [27] Masood, Z., & Hoda, R. (2014). Math Tutor: An Interactive Android-based Numeracy Application for Primary Education. *Proceedings of the Fifteenth Australasian User Interface Conference. 150.* Auckland: SEPTA Research, Electrical and Computer Engineering, The University of Auckland.
- [28] van der Ven, F., Segers, E., Takashima, A., & Verhoeven, L. (2017). Effects of a tablet game intervention on simple addition and subtraction fluency in first graders. *Computers in Human Behavior*, 72, 200-207. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2017.02.031</u>
- [29] Halloluwa, T., Vyas, D., Usoof, H., Hewagamage, K., & Sahama, T. (2016). Gamifying Mathematics for Primary Students in Rural Sri Lanka. *Proceedings of the 9th Nordic Conference on Human-Computer Interaction: Game-Changing Design.* Association for Computing Machinery. <u>https://doi.org/10.1145/2971485.2971522</u>
- [30] Zhang, M., & Asam, R. (2015). Using Math Apps for Improving Student Learning: An Exploratory Study in an Inclusive Fourth Grade Classroom. *TechTrends: Linking Research*

and Practice to Improve Learning, 59(2), 32-39. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s11528-015-0837-</u>y

- [31] Soto, M. (2015). Elementary Students' Mathematical Explanations and Attention to Audience with Screencasts. *Journal of Research on Technology in Education*, 47(4), 242-258. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/15391523.2015.1078190</u>
- [32] O'Malley, P., Lewis, M., Donehower, C., & Stone, D. (2014). Effectiveness of Using iPads to Increase Academic Task Completion by Students with Autism. Universal Journal of Educational Research, 2(1), 90-97.
- [33] Bryant, B. Ok, M., Kang, E., Kim, M., Land, R., Bryant, D., & Pfannestiel, K. (2015). Performance of fourth-grade students with learning disabilities on multiplication facts comparing teacher-mediated and technology-mediated interventions: A preliminary investigation. *Journal of Behavioral Education*, 24(2), 255-272. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10</u> <u>864-015-9218-z</u>
- [34] Kumar, V., Sinha, A., Dhareshwar, A., & Joshi, L. (2015). Mathematics Tutoring Apps for Low-Cost Devices: An Ethnographic Study of Requirements. *Proceeding of the 3rd International Symposium on Women in Computing and Informatics* (pp. 729-733). ACM. <u>https://doi.org/10.1145/2791405.2791563</u>
- [35] Mattoon, C., Bates, A., Shifflet, R., Latham, N., & Ennis, S. (2015). Examining Computational Skills in Prekindergarteners: The Effects of Traditional and Digital Manipulatives in a Prekindergarten Classroom. *Early Childhood Research & Practice*, 17(1), 9.
- [36] Ahmad, W., Muddin, H., & Shafie, A. (2014). Number skills mobile application for down syndrome children. 2014 International Conference on Computer and Information Sciences, ICCOINS 2014 - A Conference of World Engineering, Science and Technology Congress, ESTCON 2014 - Proceedings, 2014 International Conference on Computer and Information Sciences. Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers Inc. <u>https://doi.org/ 10.1109/iccoins.2014.6868844</u>
- [37] Tucker, S., Moyer-Packenham, P., Westenskow, A., & Jordan, K.(2016). The complexity of the affordance–ability relationship when second-grade children interact with mathematics virtual manipulative apps. *Technology, Knowledge and Learning, 21*(3), 341-360. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10758-016-9276-x</u>
- [38] Barendregt, W., Lindström, B., Rietz-Leppänen, E., Holgersson, I., & Ottosson, T. (2012, June). Development and evaluation of Fingu: A mathematics iPad game using multi-touch interaction. In *Proceedings of the 11th international conference on interaction design and children* (pp. 204-207). ACM. <u>https://doi.org/10.1145/2307096.2307126</u>
- [39] Schacter, J., & Jo, B. (2016). Improving low-income preschoolers mathematics achievement with Math Shelf, a preschool tablet computer curriculum. *Computers in Human Behavior*, 55, 223-229. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2015.09.013</u>
- [40] Blair, K., Cutumisu, M., Hallinen, N., Schwartz, D., & Pfaffman, J. (2015). Testing the Effectiveness of iPad Math Game: Lessons Learned from Running a Multi-Classroom Study. *Conference on Human Factors in Computing Systems* (pp. 727-734). Association for Computing Machinery. <u>https://doi.org/10.1145/2702613.2702974</u>
- [41] Harless, P. (2011). SCRIBING: A Technology-Based Instructional Strategy. Mathematics Teacher, 104(6), 420-425.
- [42] Crompton, H. (2015). Using Context-Aware Ubiquitous Learning to Support Students' Understanding of Geometry. Journal of Interactive Media in Education, 2015(1), <u>http://doi.org/10.5334/jime.aq</u>.

- [43] Goodman, S., Seymour, T., & Anderson, B. (2016). Achieving the performance benefits of hands-on experience when using digital devices: A representational approach. *Computers* in Human Behavior, 59, 58-66. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2016.01.006</u>
- [44] Ramkalawon, L., & Bholoa, A. (2016). Using tablet PC in the teaching and learning of secondary mathematics: A case of a girl's class in Mauritius. *Proceedings of 2016 SAI Computing Conference* (pp. 850-857). Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers Inc. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/sai.2016.7556078</u>
- [45] Bertolo, D., Nigay, L., Pelurson, S., & Vivian, R. (2015). Exploratory Experimentation of Three Techniques for Rotating a 3D Scene by Primary School Students. *IHM 2015 - Actes de la 27eme Conference Francophone sur l'Interaction Homme-Machine*. Association for Computing Machinery, Inc. <u>https://doi.org/10.1145/2820619.2825024</u>
- [46] Pitchford, N. (2015). Development of early mathematical skills with a tablet intervention: A randomized control trial in Malawi. *Frontiers in Psychology*. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2015.00485</u>
- [47] Cayton-Hodges, G. A., Feng, G., & Pan, X. (2015). Tablet-Based Math Assessment: What Can We Learn from Math Apps? *Journal of Educational Technology & Society*, 18(2), 3-20.
- [48] McEwen, R. N., & Dubé, A. K. (2015). Engaging or distracting: Children's tablet computer use in education. *Educational Technology & Society*, 18(4), 9-23.
- [49] Dubé, A., & McEwen, R. (2015). Do gestures matter? The implications of using touchscreen devices in mathematics instruction. *Learning and Instruction*, 40, 89-98. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.learninstruc.2015.09.002</u>
- [50] Outhwaite, L., Gulliford, A., & Pitchford, N. (2017). Closing the gap: Efficacy of a tablet intervention to support the development of early mathematical skills in UK primary school children. *Computers & Education*, 43-58. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2017.01.011</u>
- [51] Muis, K. R., Psaradellis, C., Chevrier, M., Di Leo, I., & Lajoie, S. P. (2016). Learning by preparing to teach: Fostering self-regulatory processes and achievement during complex mathematics problem solving. *Journal of Educational Psychology*, 108(4), 474-492. <u>https://doi.org/10.1037/edu0000071</u>
- [52] Yang, E., Chang, B., Cheng, H., & Chan, T.-W. (2016). Improving pupils' mathematical communication abilities through computer-supported reciprocal peer tutoring. *Journal of Educational Technology & Society*, 19(3), 157-169.
- [53] Riconscente, M. M. (2013). Results From a Controlled Study of the iPad Fractions Game Motion Math. Games and Culture, 8(4), 186-214. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/1555412013496</u> <u>894</u>
- [54] Ninaus, M., Kiili, K., McMullen, J., & Moeller, K. (2017). Assessing fraction knowledge by a digital game. *Computers in Human Behavior*, 70, 197-206. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.c. hb.2017.01.004</u>
- [55] Isabwe, G., & Reichert, F. (2012). Developing a formative assessment system for mathematics using mobile technology: A student centred approach. 2012 International Conference on Education and e-Learning Innovations (pp. 1-6). ICEELI 2012. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/iceeli.2012.6360619</u>
- [56] Siew, N., Geofrey, J., & Lee, B. (2016). Students' Algebraic Thinking and Attitudes towards Algebra: The Effects of Game-Based Learning using Dragonbox 12 + App. *Electronic Journal of Mathematics & Technology*, 10(1), 1-17.
- [57], B., Lucas, T., & Galstyan, A. (2013). The role of iPads in constructing collaborative learning spaces. *Technology, Knowledge and Learning*, 18(3), 165-178. <u>https://doi.org/1</u> 0.1007/s10758-013-9207-z

- [58] Isabwe, G. (2012). Investigating the usability of iPad mobile tablet in formative assessment of a mathematics course. *International Conference on Information Society* (pp. 39-44). i-Society 2012.
- [59] Choi, K., & Chan, T. (2015). Facilitating mathematics learning for students with upper extremity disabilities using touch-input system. *Disability And Rehabilitation. Assistive Technology*, 10(2), 170-180. <u>https://doi.org/10.3109/17483107.2013.873490</u>
- [60] Audi, D., & Gouia-Zarrad, R. (2013). A New Dimension to Teaching Mathematics Using iPads. 13th International Educational Technology Conferenc (pp. 51-54). Elsevier Ltd. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sbspro.2013.10.306</u>
- [61] Kyriakides, A., Meletiou-Mavrotheris, M., & Prodromou, T. (2016). Mobile Technologies in the Service of Students' Learning of Mathematics: The Example of Game Application A.L.E.X. in the Context of a Primary School in Cyprus. *Mathematics Education Research Journal*, 28(1), 53-78. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s13394-015-0163-x</u>
- [62] Deater-Deckard, K., El Mallah, S., Chang, M., Evans, M. A., & Norton, A. (2014). Student behavioral engagement during mathematics educational video game instruction with 11–14 year olds. *International Journal of Child-Computer Interaction*, 2(3), 101-108. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijcci.2014.08.001</u>
- [63] Papadakis, S., Kalogiannakis, M., & Zaranis, N. (2016). Comparing tablets and PCs in teaching mathematics: An attempt to improve mathematics competence in early childhood education. Preschool and Primary Education, 4(2), 241-253.

8 Authors

Alexander Svela has done M.Sc in Computer Science, Department of Computer and System Sciences, Stockholm University.

Jalal Nouri is an Associate professor and researcher in TEL, Department of Computer and System Sciences, Stockholm University.

Olga Viberg is an Associate professor and researcher in TEL, Royal Institute of Technology

Lechen Zhang is a PhD candidate in TEL, Department of Computer and System Sciences, Stockholm University

Article submitted 2019-05-06. Resubmitted 2019-06-17. Final acceptance 2019-06-18. Final version published as submitted by the authors.

Mobile Application Based Modified Screening and Assessment Tools for Children with Autism

https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v13i08.10563

Arpita Mazumdar ([⊠]) Haldia Institute of Technology, Haldia, India arpitamazumdar.hit@gmail.com

Biswajoy Chatterjee University of Engineering & Management, Kolkata, India

Mallika Banerjee Indian Institute of Information Technology, Kolkata, India

> Irfan H Bhati Haldia Institute of Technology, Haldia, India

Abstract—The researchers have focused on mobile application of screening tool to profile a child according to the degree of autism as per Indian Scale for Assessment of Autism (ISAA) with some modification. The work also emphasizes on practical implementation of various educational assessment tools viz. Indian Portage guide, BASIC-MR (Behavioural Assessment Scales for Indian Children with Mental Retardation) Part A, (FACP) Functional Assessment Checklist for Programming to assess children with autism in form of mobile application. The aim of this study is to enhance easiness, to improve accuracy, to monitor the child's progress and to make the whole process a time efficient one.

Keywords—ISAA, FACP, Indian Portage guide, BASIC MR (Part A), assessment tools, mobile application, ASD

1 Introduction

In an era where `inclusive development' is being emphasized as the right path towards sustainable development (Disabled-persons-in-India-2016) [1] as every student can learn just not on the same day or in the same way, focused initiatives for the welfare of persons with disability are essential.

In the disability spectrum about 1% of the global population suffers from Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD). 1 in 68 Indian is affected with this neuro developmental disorder that onsets at an early age & limits the child's interaction with the world. It is extremely essential to diagnose or measure autism at the earliest. Childhood Autism Rating Scale (CARS) [2] is the commonly used scale for rating the severity of autism for the children more than two years of age. The scale lacks the information about the

disability percentage. NIMH (National Institute for Mentally Handicapped) developed the Indian Scale for Assessment of Autism (ISAA) for diagnosis and measuring the severity of autism in 2009 [3].

As an assistive tool TOBY (tobyplaypad.com) a play pad application is developed to teach children with ASD by a group of scientists in Deakin University, Curtin University, Australia [7,8]. It acts as a technical support to an early intervention program for children with ASD between diagnosis and commencement of formal therapy.

Children with ASD exhibit individual learning abilities and disabilities. Hence educational assessment is very useful to identify their strength and weakness. Some commonly practiced standard educational tools applied on Indian population are Indian Portage guide developed by CBR network, Behavioural assessment scales for Indian Children with mental retardation (Basic-MR) (Part A/B), Functional Assessment Checklist for Programming (FACP) etc.

Our initiative adds easiness and simplicity to the process to classify a child according to the degree of autism as per Indian Scale for Assessment of Autism (ISAA) with some modification. This work also helps educator to visualize and analyze periodical assessments which may help them to design Individualized Program (IEP).

2 About the Tools

2.1 ISAA

ISAA is a screening tool for persons with Autism. Experts closely observe the person, clinically evaluate the behaviour, test by interacting the subject and seek information from parents and care givers to diagnose autism. The assessment period is about 20-30 minutes.

ISAA consists of 40 activities rated on a 5-point rating Likert scale ranging from 1(never) to 5 (always). The 40 items of ISAA are categorised under six domains viz.

- 1. Social relationship & reciprocity
- 2. Emotional responsiveness
- 3. Speech language & Communication
- 4. Behaviour Patterns
- 5. Sensory Aspects
- 6. Cognitive Component.

All qualitative data are further quantified for providing percentages to indicate the frequency, degree & intensity of behavioural characteristics that are observed. The categories depending up on the occurrence of the activity observed are associated with numeric score.

- Rarely (up to 20 %) Score 1
- Sometimes (21-40 %) Score 2
- Frequently (41-60 %) Score 3
- Mostly (61-80%) Score 4

• Always (81-100%) Score 5

ISAA reports the levels of autism and disability percentage of a person. ISAA is a standard psychometric tool for making diagnosis of persons with autism and is reliable and valid in Indian population.

2.2 Indian Portage Guide to Early Childhood Education

Portage is an international program on holistic child development. It provides knowledge on understanding the current development and plan early intervention making optimum use of potential in every child. Portage guide developed by CBR Network (South Asia) is very useful for professionals and parents invoked in the care and development of 0-6 age group children with or without special needs.

Children with autism in India often are assessed and evaluated by Portage guide developed by CBR network, India [4]. The guide considers cognitive development, language and communication, motor development, self-help skills and social development area of a child and determine the child's ability level in various academic areas. This phase is necessary before a child receives special education and related services.

Each functional area covers numerous age-related activities. The activities are rated on a 6-point rating scale (0-5) based on the levels of responses.

2.3 Behavioural Assessment Scales for Indian Children with Mental Retardation (BASIC MR)

The Behavioural Assessment scales for Indian children with mental retardation has been developed by National Institute for the Mentally Handicapped (NIMH) [5] in 1992 to extract systematic information about the current level of behaviour of preschoolers or school going children (3 to 16 years) with mental disorder. BASIC MR has been designed in 2 parts. - Part A and Part B.

Part A: The items included in Part A of the scale helps to assess the current level of skill behaviours in the child. The part A consists of 280 items grouped under the following seven domains viz.

1. Motor

- 2. Activities Daily Living (ADL)
- 3. Language
- 4. Reading-Writing
- 5. Number Time
- 6. Domestic-Social
- 7. Pre-Vocational-Money

We have implemented only Part A in our application as the part appropriately assess the functional areas of a child with autism during early intervention process.

Scoring of BASIC-MR (Part A): Each child with mental blockage may show different levels of performance on every item in part A. There are six possible levels of

performance under which each item can be scored. The appropriate score obtained by the child are converted into domain wise percentage and cumulative percentage. And finally, the progress profile is plotted on graph. The Assessment is done initially and before starting the teaching program of a child with autism called baseline assessment. During teaching quarterly assessments are done. At the end of teaching program evaluation is done using this tool.

2.4 Functional Assessment Checklist for Programming (FACP)

The Department of Special Education, National Institute for Mentally Handicapped, Secunderabad, introduced a series of Checklists to facilitate programme planning in each child with mental handicap. [6]

There are positive checklists in this series. Each checklist considers different levels of child's functioning namely pre-primary (3-6 years of age), primary I (7-8 years of age), primary II (8-14 years), secondary group (11-14 years), prevocational-I & II (15-18 years)

The checklist covers the following areas: - Personal, Social, Academic, Occupational, Recreational. The checklist is activity based rather than skill based as the activities require multiple skills. Moreover, an activity is easier to observe and measure the progress in the given area. In addition, this tool is flexible regarding the inclusion or deletion of activities in any given area.

Scoring of FACP: Activities performed by occasional cuing or independently are counted as a point while calculating percentages. Achievement of 80% of items in the checklist is considered for promotion of the next higher level. Recreational activities are evaluated by grade system.

The tool follows the evaluation scheme followed in mainstream education system i.e., the child's progress is periodically monitored, quantified and promotion or detention is decided logically.

3 Design of the Proposed Application

Our goal is simple: to help special educators, parents during the stressful time of diagnosis & commencement of formal therapy. In this work, we have implemented ISAA tool in form of mobile app for classifying a child according to the degree of severity of autism. Each item of ISAA is assessed and rated based on intensity, duration and frequency of the characteristics. In our application a special educator must input the levels of each activities based on keen observation and information supplemented by parents or care givers. ISAA tool reports the degree of autism of a child and the percentage of disability as per the score. We added a new feature i.e., domain wise degree of impairment. This may be beneficial to identify the strength and weakness of the child in a particular domain. This information may act as a guideline during baseline assessment done prior to a formal intervention program.

The standard practice in the special education setup surveyed is as follows:

- 1. When child with autism comes to join a special school, he/she is keenly observed by the educators.
- 2. For some days (3-7days). Student's cognitive development, social development etc. are assessed.
- 3. Various standard educational assessment tools are consulted viz. Indian Portage guide developed by CBR network, Behavioural assessment scales for Indian Children with mental retardation (Basic-MR), FACP (Functional Assessment Checklist for Programming) (Part A/B) etc.
- 4. Based on the assessment, Individualized Educational Plan (IEP) is designed by the educator for each student.
- 5. Student is assisted with appropriate teaching learning material.
- 6. Periodic evaluation of their progress is done & revised IEP is designed.

It is also aimed to represent the performance data in intelligible way using summarisation, visualisation & interactive interfaces which will help educators /caregivers to visualize and analyze the ongoing activities of the students. In this work, we have also implemented few frequently practiced educational assessment tools [4] [5] [6] in form of mobile app. We have adapted few changes regarding scoring calculation. The modifications are due to maintain uniformity among the tools, to measure the progress of a child and to quantify the qualitative data. The educator has to observe the child's behaviour and activities and record their performance level. The performance data are to be analyzed to generate the learning pattern at regular interval. All activities irrespective of tools are rated on a 6-point rating scale (0-5). Table 1 describes the levels of responses and score assigned in each level in detail

Levels	Meaning	Score Assigned
Total Dependent	One must do the task for the child	0
Physical prompt	Child needs physical help to do the task	1
Verbal prompt	Child requires verbal commands to perform the task	2
Gestural prompt	Child requires gestural help to accomplish the task	3
Occasional cuing	Child needs clues for thinking to perform the given task	4
Independent	Child can do the task on his own	5

Table 1. Levels of responses and score assigned in each level in our proposed application

Domain wise percentage indicates the levels of the performance, their strength and weakness too. The report incorporates graphical representation mentioning the comparison with previous assessment done (if any). Figure 1 and Figure 2 illustrates the input screen and report graph screen of the application implementing BASIC-MR assessment tool respectively.





Fig. 1. Input Screen -BASIC-MR

Fig. 2. Output Graph BASIC-MR

4 **Experiments**

We have undertaken 2 trials during the development of Autism Management tool app.

Trial 1: - About 20 children have been diagnosed by ISAA tool using the app. Also 10 students were assessed by Portage Guide, Basic MR (Part A), FACP (Pre-Primary) through the app. The qualitative feedback received lead to the design iterations.

Trial 2: - Trial was conducted at home of children. Trained parents of 16 children were involved in using ISAA app. Report generated by app (Figure 3 and Figure 4) is appreciated by parents as they were able to find out strength and weakness of their child in a systematic method.

name		
	 	_
username		
birth date	 	
enroll date	 	
parent name		
analyst name		
Male Female Transgender		



Fig. 3. Input Screen -ISAA app

Fig. 4. Output Graph -ISAA app

5 Acknowledgements

We would like to express our whole-hearted appreciation to the educators and the children (Pradip Centre for Autism Management, Kolkata) participated in this study - without whom this research would have never been possible.

Û

6 References

ŵ[•]

Sym 😁

zxcvbnm

- [1] << Disabled persons in India a statistical profile 2016, Social Statistics Division, Govt. of India, Retrieved from <u>http://www.mospi.gov.in</u>
- [2] Russell PS., Daniel A., Russell S., Mammen P., Abel JS., Raj LE., (2010). Diagnostic accuracy, reliability and validity of Childhood Autism Rating Scale in India. World Journal of Pediatrics. [PubMed]. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s12519-010-0029-y</u>
- [3] New Delhi: Ministry of Social Justice & Empowerment: Government of India 2009.
- [4] ISAA. Report on assessment tool for autism: Indian Scale for Assessment of Autism.
- [5] Indumathi Rao (2010), Portage to Early Childhood Education, JAIISH, Vol. 29(1), 128-130.
- [6] Reeta P., Venkatesan S. (1992), Behavioural assessment scales for Indian Children with Mental Retardation (BASIC-MR), Retrieved from <u>http://www.niepid.nic.in/Behavioural</u> assessment scales for indian children-basic-mr.pdf
- [7] Functional Assessment Checklist for Programming, Department of Special Education, National Institute for Mentally Handicapped, Secunderabad, Retrieved from http://www.niepid.nic.in/facp.pdf

- [8] Venkatesh, S., Phung, D., Duong, T., Greenhill, S., Adams, B. (2013), TOBY: Early intervention in autism through Technology. Proceedings of the SIGCHI, (pp. 3187 -3196). ACM. <u>https://doi.org/10.1145/2470654.2466437</u>
- [9] Dennis W. Moore, Venkatesh S., Anderson A., Greenhill S., Phung D., Duong T., ... Whitehouse A. (2015), TOBY play-pad application to teach children with ASD -A pilot trial., Taylor & Francis, Vol 18, 213-217. <u>https://doi.org/10.3109/17518423.2013.784817</u>

7 Authors

Arpita Mazumdar is an Assistant Professor of Dept. of Computer Science & Engineering in Haldia Institute of Technology. She is currently pursuing her Ph. D degree under University of Engineering & Management Kolkata. She has been awarded as WIPRO certified faculty in Java EE in 2018. Her current research interest area is machine learning and assistive technology in special education domain.

Biswajoy Chatterjee is currently Professor in Dept. of Computer Science & Engineering in University of Engineering & Management Kolkata. His research interest includes Nano Science & Nano technology, assistive technology and machine learning. He is an author of 23 SCI International Journal & many other national journal and conferences. He is a member of Confederation of Indian Industries (CII), Computer Society of India (CSI) & IEEE.

Mallika Banerjee is a retired Professor of University of Calcutta and now joined as Visiting Professor in IIIT, West Bengal. She is the State Awardee (Ministry of Women Development & Social Welfare, Child Development, Health and Family Welfare), 2013, for Best Applied Research in the field of Disability. Invited and delivered Key-Note address in 'European Congress on Autism', 2019, Croatia. She has seven International and four National training on several areas of disability. Published four papers in International Journal and thirty-five papers in different esteemed peerreviewed National journals. Nineteen scholars have awarded for Doctoral thesis under supervision. Completed thirteen research projects on disability funded by UGC, ICSSR, DST, Lady Tata etc. Recent Project on 'Autism: Brain research' in collaboration with Institute of Neuroscience funded by Govt. of West Bengal.

Irfan H Bhati is a student of B. Tech in Information Technology in Haldia Institute of Technology. He has successfully completed various projects on IOT, Machine learning and mobile application.

Article submitted 2019-03-27. Resubmitted 2019-05-13. Final acceptance 2019-05-14. Final version published as submitted by the authors.

Digital Assessment Resources in Primary and Secondary School Classrooms

Teachers' Use and Perceptions

https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v13i08.10730

Sri Kusuma Ningsih University of Muhammadiyah, Prof. Dr Hamka, Jakarta, Indonesia

Herri Mulyono ^(⊠) University of Muhammadiyah, Prof. Dr Hamka, Jakarta, Indonesia hmulyono@uhamka.ac.id

Abstract—This short article reports on teachers' use and perception of digital assessment recourses in primary school classroom. A total of eighteen primary school teachers participated in the study where they were asked to experience of using Kahoot and ZipGrade as digital assessment resources. Selfreflection survey was distributed to the teacher participants to capture their attitude and perception about the two applications. Findings revealed that teachers were positive towards the application of two assessment technology in classroom practice. The findings highlighted some factors that encouraged teachers to use Kahoot! and ZipGrade as digital assessment tools including the creation of fun learning environment, practicality, automated scoring and direct feedback. Despite these benefits, two critical challenges were addressed by teachers when incorporating the digital application at school such as the school context as well as teachers.

Keywords—Digital assessment, assessment resources, teacher attitude and perception.

1 Introduction

The advancement of information and communication technology for teaching and learning has influenced the way teachers evaluate students' learning performance. Digital technology for educational assessment enhances assessment capabilities, offering teachers an opportunity "for improvement and diversification in the evaluation of learners, including addressing written communication skills, cooperation, teamwork, and reflective thinking" [1, p. 40]. Alderson [2] also argues that technology enables teachers to address the diversity of learners when undergoing classroom assessment. Moreover, assessment technological tools provide teachers with technical support to create tests, deliver students' responses to test items, allow automatic scoring and reporting [3].

This study aimed to explore teachers' perception of incorporating two digital applications for classroom assessment, Kahoot! and ZipGrade. Kahoot! is a free web and android based learning platform, a game-based student response system (GSRS) that combines the game-based learning approach and student response system or SRS [4], [5]. In the context of educational assessment, the combination of a game-based learning approach and SRS has enabled both teachers and students to engage with "gamelike pre-made or impromptu quizzes, discussions and surveys" [6, p. 49]. Although many authors have perceived Kahoot! as an online learning platform such as Bicen and Kocakoyun [7], Dellos [6], Graham [8], Plump and LaRosa [4], Zarzycka-Piskorz [9], there is evidence of the incorporation of Kahoot! in classroom assessment practice in the literature, among others Ismail and Mohammad [10], Iwamoto, Hargis, Taitano and Vuong [11] and King [12].

Technically, Kahoot! is regarded as a simple and user-friendly application allowing instructors to use it at their ease [4]. In Kahoot!, teachers play their role as game show hosts and students act as players in a fun game show competing to earn points through answering various questions correctly [5]. Using the application, teachers are enabled to project the questions and alternative answers on a large screen, then students are asked to respond by clicking/pressing the colour and symbol of the correct answer on their own digital device, such as smartphone or tablet. Feedback of students' answers is displayed between questions. The students' score is evaluated not only through their correct answers but also by the amount of time they had spent to think of the possible answer and press the button in the applicaton.

The other application, ZipGrade, is a grading application that enables teachers to accelerate the grading process [13]. LeHew [14] suggests that as a digital application, ZipGrade helps teachers scan students' responses on ZipGrade generated answer sheets using their smartphone or tablet. As students' responses are appropriately scanned, ZipGrade automatically analyses the responses and imports the result into a digital grade book in the application [15]. Teachers then can obtain the scores with additional details, such as score distribution charts and statistical analysis for each test item.

Despite the benefits offered by the two digital applications as in the literature, our early observation prior to the study had revealed that only few Indonesian teachers in primary education have incorporated such applications to facilitate their classroom assessment. Lack of time, teachers' insufficient experience, or doubts regarding the scholarly advantages of such application use in the classroom may be contributing factors to teachers' reluctance to incorporate the applications in classroom practice [4].

2 Method

This current study aimed to explore teachers' perception of the incorporation of two digital applications for classroom assessment: Kahoot! and ZipGrade. To this end, a total of eighteen primary and secondary school teachers participated in the study and were asked about their experience of using Kahoot! and ZipGrade as digital

assessment resources. Most participants were females (N=15), with few males (N=3) aged between 25 and 45 years old. Participants were designated by number to maintain anonymity (e.g. Teacher 12). Teacher participants were observed to have basic computer competence and internet browsing skills, allowing them to operate several Windows-based applications, such as Microsoft Word, Excel and Powerpoint. Teachers were also able to perform online activities such as email correspondence, uploading and downloading files to/from online databases and web browsing, activities which were believed to benefit teachers' online assessment using Kahoot! and ZipGrade.

2.1 Research procedure

Teacher participants were asked to take part in a one-day workshop on digital assessment methods for classroom practice held by the school. The workshop comprised two sessions, the first of which was a 90-minute seminar to provide teachers with knowledge regarding the nature of educational evaluation, classroom assessment and the role of technology to facilitate teachers' classroom assessment. The second session was a teacher workshop in which they were introduced to the two digital applications, Kahoot! and ZipGrade. Kahoot was introduced to facilitate online assessment in classroom practice, while the other application was aimed to help teachers with the scoring process in classroom settings. During the second session, teachers were given an opportunity to experience Kahoot! and ZipGrade with both teacher and student roles. After the workshop sessions, teachers were given three weeks to exercise digital assessment using Kahoot! and ZipGrade in classroom practice.

2.2 Data collecting method and analysis

Data were collected using observation and a self-evaluation survey. The researcher observed the workshop of eighteen participants where they practised using Kahoot! and ZipGrade to capture teachers' perceptions and attitudes towards the use of the applications for classroom assessment. In addition to observation, teacher participants were asked to complete a self-evaluation survey after three weeks of using the digital assessment tools in the classroom. Specifically, teachers were asked to respond to three questions:

- What do you think of Kahoot! and ZipGrade as digital assessment resources in the classroom?
- What benefits do you obtain when using Kahoot! and ZipGrade for classroom assessment?
- What challenges do you encounter when using the two digital assessment tools?

The collected data then were analysed qualitatively.

3 Findings and Discussion

Findings from both observation and self-evaluation survey revealed that teachers were positive towards the incorporation of technology for classroom assessment. Furthermore, teachers thought that Kahoot! and ZipGrade were of benefit to their classroom assessment practices as evidenced by Teacher 2 comment in the survey, "Kahoot! would be beneficial for the daily exams and it promoted the use of gadget for students' learning". Teachers considered that these digital assessment tools helped to create a fun learning environment, were practical, and they thought that the automated scoring and direct feedback were positive factors encouraging their application. Teacher 4 said that students were excited to perform tests with Kahoot! She suggested, "children were conditioned as they were playing a fun game instead of learning". Furthermore, Teacher 1 and 2 mentioned the practicality aspects of the applications. Kahoot! and ZipGrade were considered easy to use, with icon menus and functions helpful in guiding navigation of the application.

In addition, teachers affirmed that they allowed automatic scoring, providing students with direct feedback, which benefited teachers by speeding up their scoring, particularly for those teaching parallel classes at school (Teacher 1). Teacher 2 also commented that "ZipGrade application would help [her] in correcting students' exam". Such benefits have also been reported in Llamas-Nistal et al. [3].

Despite teachers' positive perception of assessment technology, the findings revealed several challenges that teachers encountered when using Kahoot! and ZipGrade, such as school infrastructure, school policy, assessment types, teachers' lack of knowledge and inappropriate scanning results. Some teachers felt that internet access was not reliable to support the use of Kahoot! and ZipGrade for classroom assessment. Teacher 3 affirmed that she was not using the two assessment tools frequently due to unreliable internet connection. She said that the poor internet connection had resulted errors in Kahoot!, thus had prevented her from using the application.

In addition, teachers mentioned that the incorporation of Kahoot! and ZipGrade in classroom assessment practice was restricted by school policy on smartphones. For many schools in Indonesia, the policy regarding whether smartphones are allowed to be used in the classroom varied and there has been dispute among teachers themselves. In the current study, teachers said that the school administration had restricted students bringing smartphones to school, so teachers did not use Kahoot! particularly in the primary school classroom setting. Teacher 1 wrote in her reflection:

"I felt that Kahoot! benefited me in 'ice breaking' session. Using Kahoot was fun and students enjoyed it. But, it was rather difficult to use Kahoot! so frequent. [it was because] students were restricted to bring smartphone to school. I had to obtain administrator's permission [if I want] to use Kahoot!"

Other challenges relevant to school policy concerned the answer sheet format. As discussed earlier, the ZipGrade application generated a formatted answer sheet to allow the application to scan students' responses [13]. Unfortunately, the school administration had assigned teachers to use pre-prepared school answer sheets. Teacher 2 emphasised that "we have not yet agreed on the model for school answer sheet and whether or now we can use Kahoot! model of answer sheet".

Teachers' reluctance to use Kahoot! was also driven by teachers' lack of knowledge related to the application. For instance, Teacher 14 mentioned her ignorance of using Arabic in Kahoot! had prevented her from not using the application for classroom assessment. However, according to the Kahoot! website, this application allows multiple languages (see Figure 1).

🗢 😐 🔣 Create a kahoot Desc	ription × +		Latviešu valoda	
← → C 🔒 https://create.k	ahoot.it/create#/new/quiz/de	scription	Lietuvių kalba	1 🌚 🤇
X Close	K]	Quiz	Magyar Malay Marathi	r, go
Title (required)		Cover image	Māori Nederlands	
Description (requ	uired)	Polski Português		
A #math #k	olindkahoot	Român		
to introduce	e the basics	1	Slovenščina	
of #algebra	to #grade8	Suomi		
		o	Tiếng Việt Türk	
Location ⊘	Visibility ⊘	h	Íslenska	
My Kaho	Everyon	e 🔻	Cestina ′Ōlelo Hawai′i ελληνικά	
Credit resources	0		Русский язык	
			Українська мова български език српски иссили	
Intro video 📀			العربية	

Fig. 1. Language support in Kahoot! (Image source: https://create.kahoot.it/create#/new/quiz/description)

In addition, teachers encountered inappropriate scanning results in ZipGrade! Four teachers reported that ZipGrade did not appropriately scan students' answers, resulting in some test items not being correctly scored. Teacher 6, for example, reported that she found some items were not scanned by ZipGrade: "when I did manual scoring, students' score was different from in ZipGrade's grade book". A similar situation was experienced by Teacher 16, assuming that "I was thinking if pauses in the scanning process may affect the ability of ZipGrade in producing correct scan". This is a critical issue for the ZipGrade developer to address in their further version development.

The challenges that teachers have experienced during the incorporation of assessment technology were interesting, though not surprising. Discussion on teachers' challenges in incorporating information and communication technology abound in the literature [16]–[19]. A literature review by Groff and Mauza [17] summarised several factors that affect the incorporation of technology in classroom contexts, two of which include school context and teacher factor. As the current study found, the school context, such as school culture, lack of support and resources, discouraged teachers from

integrating technology in classroom instruction practice. Teachers also reflected that they had insufficient knowledge and competence to use technology, with school administrators not responding to such a situation, neglecting to provide teachers with technological support and responses. Moreover, teachers felt they were restricted to obtain equitable access to classroom technology or other school resources. Without full support from school administrators, teachers will achieve little success in incorporating classroom technology in their instructional practices [17], [19], [20].

4 Conclusion

The current study evaluated teachers' perceptions of the incorporation of two digital applications for classroom assessment: Kahoot! and ZipGrade, finding that teachers had a positive attitude and perception of the use of Kahoot! and ZipGrade in classroom practice. Teachers perceived that these applications benefited them in the creation of a fun and enjoyable learning environment, enabling automatic scoring and direct feedback. Nonetheless, the issue of the school culture related to the use of smartphones in the classroom as well as little technological support and resources needs to be addressed for successful implementation of such applications, as these issues may constrain teachers from achieving the success in the use of technology for assessment activity in the classroom context.

5 Acknowledgement

This current study was funded by the institute of community service and empowerment, University of Muhammadiyah Prof. DR. HAMKA, Jakarta, Indonesia No. 589/H.04.02/2018.

6 References

- L. Eyal, 'Digital assessment literacy—The core role of the teacher in a digital environment', J. Educ. Technol. Soc., vol. 15, no. 2, pp. 37–49, 2012.
- [2] J. C. Alderson, 'Technology in testing: The present and the future', System, vol. 28, no. 4, pp. 593–603, 2000.
- [3] M. Llamas-Nistal, M. J. Fernández-Iglesias, J. González-Tato, and F. A. Mikic-Fonte, 'Blended e-assessment: Migrating classical exams to the digital world', Comput. Educ., vol. 62, pp. 72–87, 2013. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2012.10.021</u>
- [4] C. M. Plump and J. LaRosa, 'Using Kahoot! in the classroom to create engagement and active learning: A game-based technology solution for eLearning novices', Manag. Teach. Rev., vol. 2, no. 2, pp. 151–158, 2017. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/2379298116689783</u>
- [5] A. I. Wang, 'The wear out effect of a game-based student response system', Comput. Educ., vol. 82, pp. 217–227, 2015.
- [6] R. Dellos, 'Kahoot! A digital game resource for learning', Int. J. Instr. Technol. Distance Learn., vol. 12, no. 4, pp. 49–52, 2015.

- [7] H. Bicen and S. Kocakoyun, 'Perceptions of students for gamification approach: Kahoot as a case study', Int. J. Emerg. Technol. Learn., vol. 13, no. 02, pp. 72–93, 2018. <u>https://doi.org/10.3991/ijet.v13i02.7467</u>
- [8] K. Graham, 'TechMatters: Getting into Kahoot!(s): Exploring a game-based learning system to enhance student learning', LOEX Q., vol. 42, no. 3, p. 4, 2015.
- [9] E. Zarzycka-Piskorz, 'Kahoot it or not? Can games be motivating in learning grammar?.', Teach. English with Technol., vol. 16, no. 3, pp. 17–36, 2016.
- [10] M. A.-A. Ismail and J. A.-M. Mohammad, 'Kahoot: A promising tool for formative assessment in medical education.', Educ. Med. J., vol. 9, no. 2, 2017.
- [11] D. H. Iwamoto, J. Hargis, E. J. Taitano, and K. Vuong, 'Analyzing the efficacy of the testing effect esing KahootTM on student performance.', Turkish Online J. Distance Educ., vol. 18, no. 2, pp. 80–93, 2017. <u>https://doi.org/10.17718/tojde.306561</u>
- [12] A. King, 'Using Kahoot!', Aust. Math. Teach., vol. 73, no. 4, pp. 35–37, 2017.
- [13] N. Muslu, 'Exploring and conceptualizing teacher formative assessment practices and digital applications within a technology-enhanced high school classroom'. Doctoral dissertation. The University of Missouri, 2017.
- [14] M. LeHew, 'Technology Note: Efficiently analyzing in-class assessment data with ZipGrade', J. Acad. Excell., vol. 5, no. 4, p. 7, 2018.
- [15] T. Chermer, C.-Y. Lee, A. Fegely, and L. Santaniello, 'A detailed rubric for assessing the quality of teacher resource apps', J. Inf. Technol. Educ. Innov. Pract., 2016. <u>https://doi.org/ 10.28945/3527</u>
- [16] A. Al-Bataineh and L. Brooks, 'Challenges, advantages, and disadvantages of instructional technology in the community college classroom', Community Coll. J. Res. &Practice, vol. 27, no. 6, pp. 473–484, 2003. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/713838180</u>
- [17] J. Groff and C. Mouza, 'A framework for addressing challenges to classroom technology use', Assoc. Adv. Comput. Educ. J., vol. 16, no. 1, pp. 21–46, 2008.
- [18] R. Woods, J. D. Baker, and D. Hopper, 'Hybrid structures: Faculty use and perception of web-based courseware as a supplement to face-to-face instruction', Internet High. Educ., vol. 7, no. 4, pp. 281–297, 2004. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.iheduc.2004.09.002</u>
- [19] H. Mulyono, 'Technology enhanced collaborative writing in Indonesian EFL classroom'. Doctoral dissertation. University of York, 2016.
- [20] Y. Zhao, K. Pugh, S. Sheldon, and J. L. Byers, 'Conditions for classroom technology innovations', Teach. Coll. Rec., vol. 104, no. 3, pp. 482–515, 2002. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/ 1467-9620.00170</u>

7 Authors

Sri Kusuma Ningsih is a lecture at University of Muhammadiyah Prof. DR. HAMKA, Indonesia. She holds a master degree in English Education with research focus on teaching English as a foreign language. E-Mail <u>sri_kusuma@uhamka.ac.id</u>

Herri Mulyono is a senior lecture at University of Muhammadiyah Prof. DR. HAMKA, Indonesia. He received his Ph.D from University of York. UK. His research interests include teaching English as a foreign language, computer assisted language learning (CALL), and teacher professional development.

Article submitted 2019-04-24. Resubmitted 2019-06-02. Final acceptance 2019-06-03. Final version published as submitted by the authors.

Imprint

iJIM – International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies

Editor-in-Chief

Michael E. Auer, IAOE, Vienna, Austria

Associate Editors-in-Chief

Arthur Walter Edwards, Universidad de Colima, Mexico Thrasyvoulos Tsiatsos, Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, Greece

Section Editor

Apostolos Gkamas, Greece

Regional Associate Editors

Abdallah Yusuf Al-Zoubi, Associated Editor Middle East Rhena Delport, Associated Editor Africa Daphne Economou, Associated Editor Western Europe Arthur Walter Edwards, Associated Editor Latin America Ferial Khaddage, Associated Editor Australia Tzu-Chien Liu, Associated Editor Asia Doru Ursutiu, Associated Editor Eastern Europe Mudasser Fraz Wyne, Associated Editor North America

Technical Director

Sebastian Schreiter, Vallon Pont d'Arc, France

Editorial Board

A.Y. Al-Zoubi, Princess Sumaya University for Technology Amman, Jordan Yacob Astatke, Morgan State University, United States Rhena Delport, University of Pretoria, South Africa Daphne Economou, Senior Lecturer, University of Westminster, United Kingdom Arthur Walter Edwards, Universidad de Colima, Mexico, Mexico Juan Antonio Guerrero-Ibáñez, University of Colima, Mexico Hyo-Joo Han, Georgia Southern University Markus Feisst, University of Applied Sciences Offenburg, Germany Ferial Khaddage, Lecturer in Mobile Computing and I.T., Australia Dr. Kinshuk, Athabasca University Canada Adamantios Koumpis, ALTEC Software S.A., Greece Tzu-Chien Liu, National Central University, Taiwan Hiroaki Ogata, Tokushima University, Japan Andreas Pester, Carinthia University of Applied Sciences, Austria Raul Aquino Santos, University of Colima, Mexico Doru Ursutiu, University Transilvania of Brasov, Romania Mudasser Fraz Wyne, National University, USA

Indexing

International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies is indexed in Elsevier Scopus, INSPEC, Ulrich, DOAJ, EBSCO, Google Scholar, and DBLP.

Publication Frequency

Bimonthly (January, March, May, July, September, November)

Publisher

International Association of Online Engineering (IAOE) Kirchengasse 10/200 A-1070 WIEN Austria

Publishing House

kassel university press GmbH Diagonale 10 D-34127 Kassel Germany